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Corporate Profile and Corporate Information

REFNMRDBEHR

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company” or “we”) is a one-stop
provider of signal transmission and connectivity solutions and related
products for the global 3Cs (computing, communication and consumer
electronics) markets. Many of our key customers are global top tier
players and we have leading market share for several of our key products
including signal cable assembly, power cord assembly, wire and cable
assembly, connectors, antennas, automotive wiring harness and other
products. We have also entered the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
automotive wiring harness market in 2011.
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Corporate Profile and Corporate Information

REFNMRDBEHR

REGISTERED OFFICE

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Limited Corporation
Scotia Centre, 4th Floor

P.O. Box 2804, George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER

Pudong Road, Economic and
Technological Development Zone
Weihai

Shandong Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit 1805, Admiralty Centre Tower Two

18 Harcourt Road

Admiralty

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Bank of China (Weihai Branch)

Agricultural Bank of China (Weihai Branch)
China Everbright Bank (Changshu Sub-branch)

LEGAL ADVISERS

Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe (as to Hong Kong law)
Deheng Law Firm (as to PRC law)

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Piper Jaffray Asia Limited

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

SHARE REGISTRAR

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
Transfer Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

LISTING EXCHANGE INFORMATION
Place of Listing
Main Board, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

STOCK CODE
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COMPANY WEBSITE

www.hong-lin.com.cn
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of HL Technology Group
Limited, together with its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”), I am pleased to
present the Group’s annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2011.

HEMURER
RAMABRRKRAMBZEERRARER
EHWBAR (B AKE)REBE_"F
—— &+ A=+ - HLFENFERE -

Mr. Chi Shaolin & 4>k
Chairman, Executive Director and CEO

(EE ~ BITEFFAEE)
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

PERFORMANCE REVIEW

The year 2011,
challenging and difficult year for most of the global economies, including
the global computer and consumer electronics industries. Despite the
challenging operating environment affecting sales growth momentum,
we managed to record a satisfactory sales growth for the full year and
demonstrated stronger resilience to the market downturn than other

especially the second half of 2011, was overall a

industry peers as a result of our continued ability to win market share
and add new important customers in the global computer and consumer
electronics markets, continuous product innovation and our growing
presence in new markets such as PRC automobile and communication
sector. As a result, the Group recorded revenue amounting to
approximately Renminbi (“RMB”) 1,865.4 million in 2011, representing
an increase of 31.9% as compared to approximately RMB1,414.0 million
in 2010.

Due to the slowdown in market demand and our pricing strategy to
capture more market share, affecting the average selling price of some of
our products, especially in the second half of 2011, coupled with overall
increase in raw materials and labor costs and the continued depreciation
of US dollar against RMB in 2011, the Group’s gross profit margin has
decreased to approximately 20.3% as compared to approximately 23.0%
in 2010. To position the Group for sustainable long term growth, the
Group has also continued to invest heavily in developing new products
and new markets and therefore has incurred significantly higher
operating expenses in areas including sales and marketing and research
and development. As a result, the Group’s net profit has decreased to
approximately RMB119.4 million as compared to approximately
RMB155.0 million in 2010.

Even though such investments affect short term profit, they are necessary
to make the Group a more competitive and diversified connectivity
solutions provider, and new products we have managed to develop
towards the end of 2011 include the SFP+ (Small form-factor pluggable)
and MHL (Mobile High-definition Link) cable, which we believe can
provide the Group with promising growth opportunities in the
communication and high-end consumer electronics markets respectively.
We are also on track to provide connectivity products for new markets
such as the PRC solar and industrial markets in 2012.
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Chairman’s Statement

ERHRE

OUTLOOK

With a history of almost 15 years, the Group has navigated through
different economic crises over such period and has consistently
overcome them and become a more competitive and stronger enterprise
as a result. Under the current tough environment, we believe that the
Group is well positioned to be one of a few winners by delivering value
to our customers, improving product mix, and increasing market share.
The Group is also proactively addressing the impacts of the uncertain
operating environment by implementing appropriate inventory policy,
tightening credit and cost control and scaling back capital expenditure in
certain areas to better manage our operations. In 2012, the Group will
however continue to invest, when necessary, in research and
development, staff recruitment, production facilities and marketing efforts
in order to strengthen the Group’s competitive advantage and to best
position ourselves to benefit from market recovery.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all staff
members for their contribution in the past year and at the same time, |
would also like to express our gratitude towards our shareholders,
customers, suppliers and business partners for your continued confidence
in and support to the Group.

Sincerely yours,

Chi Shaolin
Chairman and CEO of HL Technology Group Limited

22 March 2012
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Financial Summary S\
DUECEES R

Revenue Profit Attributable to Shareholders Total Assets
Yz iyl RERE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBFRT ARBTR
1,865,376
- 152,670 2,294,139
1,500,000 1,413,960 150,000 e 2,000,000 1,981,220 -
— N m m
m m -
— 116,071
1,200,000 120,000 —_—
' m 1,500,000
900,000 897,999 872 396 90,000 88,265
m m 1,000,000 989,535
652,628 62,663 - 806,632 "_
600,000 |m m 60,000 | 54,402 638522 [mm
= m m
- 500,000
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0 0 0
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A summary of revenue breakdown in terms of end markets is as follows: BRmEmiZE oS ENT
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Financial Summary

MBEEE

A highlight of results, selected financial ratio information, assets and — ¥#& « LR FH LR ER EEHEAERIR
liabilities and cash flow is as follows: TRENBMEWT :
RESULTS ES

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-—A=1+—HLEE

2011 2010 Change

—g—-—-F —ZT-FF =
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
ARBTRT ARKBTT ERid
Revenue U #5 1,865,376 1,413,960 +31.9
Gross profit EH 378,405 325,614 +16.2
Profit before taxation B F BT Al 135,000 173,255 -22.1
Profit for the year FERF 119,360 155,021 -23.0

Profit attributable to: LA &7 (G & T

— Owners of the Company — RREHEEA 116,071 152,670 -24.0
— Non-controlling interests — IEIESE R 3,289 2,351 +39.9
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) SR AT — AR (ARES) 16.1 27.5 -41.5

08  HLTechnology Group Limited * JiEl % EEGR AT



Financial Summary S —
HBEE A

SELECTED FINANCIAL RATIOS INFORMATION RETHEEERER

Gross profit margin EREN 20.3% 23.0% 22.7% 19.5% 20.7%
Net profit margin SRR AN 6.4% 11.0% 10.1% 6.1% 10.0%
Current ratio (times) BN T (%) 1.3 1.4 1.0 0.9 0.9
Gearing ratio" BEAXRRELEY 28.4% 33.5% 35.7% 30.2% 22.0%
Return on total assets* A ER R 5.6% 10.5% 9.9% 7.5% 12.3%
Return on total equity* AR [ 11.8% 24.9% 32.3% 27.4% 47.5%

* The above ratios are calculated by using average balances of total assets and total ~ * i EIREDEAFHREENGRRHRBEIES
equity. e

(1) Calculated by using short term borrowings divided by total assets. 1) REREERAAEESE

Annual Report 2011 « —Z——4443% (09



Financial Summary

MBEEE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES INFORMATION EEHBEERRK

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—B-—-F ZT-TF ZTTNF ZTT/\F ZTTLHF
RMB000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000

ARBTR ARETRT AREBTT ARETT ARETET
# # #

Bank balances and cash IRITHEBRIRS
(excluding pledged bank (T BIEE KA

deposits) 72 106,650 160,408 73,744 23,413 19,805
Current assets MBNEE 1,543,252 1,489,849 654,690 512,856 419,880
Non-current assets IEMBEE 750,887 491,371 334,845 293,776 218,642
Current liabilities mENEE 1,191,894 1,057,749 662,585 582,396 460,972
Non-current liabilities FEnEaE 9,718 — — 3,090 —
Equity attributable to owners 2N A Bl A A FE(S

of the Company R 1,031,694 909,888 316,558 221,146 170,081
Non-controlling interests FEIT IR 60,833 13,583 10,392 — 7,469
CASH FLOW INFORMATION RERERER

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—®——% ~“T-TF "TTAE —BEN\F —FTELHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AB®FR ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETFT
# # #

Net cash (used in)/from KRB (FTA),/

operating activities FTi8IR& F58 (167,546) (114,539) 470 1,743 10,753
Net cash from/(used in) KE RS

investing activities (FTR) B &35 161,211 (549,936) 70,495 (117,525) (91,953)
Net cash (used in)/from mEEE (),

financing activities FTi3IR & R 8 (47,423) 751,139 120,356 119,390 90,904

# The financial information was extracted from the Company’s prospectus dated 3 # FZUMBEMDBEAARA T -SF+—-A=H
November 2010 (the “Prospectus”). MRS (TBEEER]) -
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Financial Summary

MBEEE

A summary of consolidated results for the five years ended 31 December

2011 is as follows:

RAEFENBEINT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

BE—_T——F+-_A=+—HIRAEFEHD

2011 2010 2009 2008
—E——F —Z-TF —TTNF TENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARKETT ARKETT ARETET
# #
Revenue Wz 1,865,376 1,413,960 872,396 897,999 652,628
Cost of sales SHERAR (1,486,971) (1,088,346)  (674,422)  (723,211)  (517,283)
Gross profit E7 378,405 325,614 197,974 174,788 135,345
Other income, gains and losses ~ E UL A ~ HAbUias
NIER 22,080 (2,579) 8,273 (2,506) 10,821
Distribution and selling expenses %34 & $5 & F 2 (49,056) (27,233) (20,480) (18,891) (14,809)
Administrative and general THR—MHAX
expenses (116,714) (72,525) (47,978) (45,422) (30,915)
Research and development RS
expenses (62,179) (30,932) (27,278) (26,280) (23,152)
Finance costs BERAE (37,536)  (19,090)  (13,924)  (15,625) 9,117)
Share of loss of an associate JE(E—H B NREE — — — — (214)
Profit before taxation B B A 135,000 173,255 96,587 66,064 67,959
Income tax expenses FriefiY (15,640) (18,234) (8,090) (11,529) (2,449)
Profit and total comprehensive FERAREEKE
income for the year e 119,360 155,021 88,497 54,535 65,510
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 EWE
Exchange difference on BEHNREB
translating foreign operations ERER (733) 742 — — —
Total comprehensive income FEEAK=ERE
for the year 118,627 155,763 88,497 54,535 65,510
Profit attributable to: IAT&FEIERET
— Owners of the Company — RAREE A 116,071 152,670 88,265 54,402 62,663
— Non-controlling interests — JEE SR 3,289 2,351 232 133 2,847
119,360 155,021 88,497 54,535 65,510
Total comprehensive income WT&FELEE
attributable to: WS4 %8 -
— Owners of the Company — RAREE A 115,338 153,412 88,265 54,402 62,663
— Non-controlling interests — JEEHIEE 3,289 2,351 232 133 2,847
118,627 155,763 88,497 54,535 65,510
Earnings per share — M
Basic (RMB cents) ER(ARER) 16.1 27.5 16.9 1.2 13.2
# The financial information was extracted from the Company’s Prospectus. # ZUBERYEEE BN BMRARRZBRER -
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEBENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW

2011

XK EEE
Year ended 31 December
BE+=-B=1t—HLEE

2010

—_E——fF

Revenue
RMB’000
Wz
ARBTT

% of
Revenue
(=g
Batt

Revenue
RMB’000
Wz
ARETTT

% of
Revenue
(6
At

Change

in O
In 7o

External signal cable assembly INEESRERA G 337,750 18.1 353,376 25.0 4.4
Internal signal cable assembly SR A 339,859 18.2 307,049 21.7 +10.7
Power cord assembly IR 329,016 17.6 246,777 17.5 +33.3
Signal transmission wire & cable — {S9E{E#H 44 488,422 26.2 348,306 24.6 +40.2
Connectors B 49,928 2.7 46,443 3.3 +7.5
Antennas PN 28,462 1.5 11,798 0.8 +141.2
Automotive wiring harness VBRI 156,678 8.4 — — NATEA
Others Eh 135,261 7.3 100,211 7.1 +35.0
Total it 1,865,376 100.0 1,413,960 100.0 +31.9
2011 Revenue Breakdown by Products 2011 Revenue Breakdown by End Markets
—E-—FREMED 2V B EIRRETIE RS > U
18.1% 18.2%
7.3%
17.6%
30.4%
8.4%
1.5%
' 26.2%
11.4%
I External signal INEERS 18.1% I Computing HE 45.3%
cable assembly et B Consumer electronics EEEF  30.4%
I nternal signal MEESRSR 18.2% B Communication & 11.4%
cable assembly At )
\ I Automotive e 9.3%
I Power cord assembly  ERgENH 17.6%
I Others Hify 3.6%

I Signal transmission
wire & cable

s Connectors
I Antennas

I Automotive wiring
harness

Others

FREEE 26.2%
s

B 2.7%
PN 1.5%
TERR 8.4%

Aty 7.3%

Annual Report 2011

e —T——x 13



Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Total revenue increased by approximately RMB451.4 million or
approximately 31.9% as compared to 2010 as we witnessed growth in
revenue across most of our key product segments including strong
growth in our communication cable segment. The increase was primarily
due to (i) our ability to gain market share in our key target markets
despite the weak operating environment and (ii) revenue contribution
from new products such as wireless antennas and automotive wiring
harness that only began to have revenue contribution from the fourth
quarter of 2010 and beginning of 2011 respectively. However, our
overall revenue was also negatively affected by the depreciating US
dollar in 2011 and decrease in average selling price of some of our
products because of pricing strategy to increase market share and also
due to overall weakness in market demand especially in the second half
of 2011.

While uncertainties and challenges are expected to continue in the
global economies and 3Cs industries in general in 2012, we remain
optimistic that the Group is well positioned to continue increasing
market share in our target markets. The Group is also proactively
addressing the impacts of the uncertain operating environment by
implementing appropriate inventory policy, tightening credit and cost
control and scaling back capital expenditure in certain areas to better
manage our operations. In 2012, the Group will however continue to
invest, when necessary, in research and development, staff recruitment,
production facilities and marketing efforts in order to strengthen the
Group’s competitive advantage and to best position ourselves to benefit
from a recovery.

14 HLTechnology Group Limited ¢ S5 iiHEEEAR A
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
External Signal Cable Assembly

¥KOE e
IMES SR GA M

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—HLFE

2011 2010
—B2——F —E-TF

Revenue % of Revenue % of Change
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue in %

Wi e Wz (e &
AR¥T R Botkk ARETT BA ERalsd
RGB assembly RGB ## 178,773 52.9 174,379 49.3 +2.5
DVI assembly DVI #81 92,765 27.5 90,445 25.6 +2.6
HDMI assembly HDMI #4815 561 0.2 974 0.3 —42 .4
USB assembly USB 41 49,984 14.8 75,065 21.2 -33.4
DC assembly DC 41 15,667 4.6 12,513 3.6 +25.2
337,750 100.0 353,376 100.0 —4.4

Our external signal cable assembly segment recorded a decrease in
revenue of approximately RMB15.6 million or approximately 4.4% as
compared to 2010, as increase in revenue for RGB, DVI and DC
assembly was offset by the decrease in revenue for USB assembly
product due to our decision to exit the supply chain of two customers in
2011 as we re-schedule our production capacity for new customers we
target to enter in 2012.

MR ARMANR - —FEANHEERS -
BOEFRIRMEFTELNERBZRE
EHEMERFPAMEESE - EERGB  DVIK
DC#B {4 U 25 42 hn sk USB 48 {1 22 T Uk 2508 A 4K
i MAEEMNIMNEERRATS BR=_F—
TEFEEBHARE15.6 AE LKL 4.4% KUK
T -
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥(%E@Ee
Internal Signal Cable Assembly REEERAAH

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=T—HLEFE

2011 2010
—E——F

Revenue % of Revenue % of

RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue

Wz e Wz (e

AR%T R Baotk AREFIT AL
LVDS LVDS 270,220 79.5 261,871 85.3 +3.2
Harness BR — — 973 0.3 -100.0
Flexible Flat Cable (FFC) Z R4 (FFC) 69,639 20.5 44,205 14.4 +57.5
339,859 100.0 307,049 100.0 +10.7

Our internal signal cable assembly segment recorded an increase in ~ AEERZERGDLHEBURER —F—FTF
revenue of approximately RMB32.8 million or approximately 10.7% as &M ARE32.8 BETHAI10.7% T2 H
compared to 2010 mainly driven by the growth in our FFC segment RS E G H 2P EER LB REETERN
which targets the global flat screen TV and monitor industry. FFC &g & -

Revenue for our FFC segment increased by approximately 57.5% as our ~ HIRAEBN — TS N FH# H A FFC
FFC products which was only launched in the second half of 2009 Efm—EXEFPEM - #AEEFFC o FFHIUL
continued to gain momentum with our customers. As we increased — FIENNKI57.5% c AR AEEHBE —T—ZTF L
production capacity significantly since the first half of 2010, we were ~ FFRARIEMELE - HAEEWEZF AR
able to ramp up production to meet the increase in demand from our & @ #HR —T——FHEES TE LFHF

o

customers in 2011.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEBENWR D

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Power Cord Assembly

Sales of power cord assembly increased by approximately RMB82.2
million or approximately 33.3% as compared to 2010, mainly driven by
increase in sales volume as we continue to increase our market share
with increasing order from existing customers. As we strategically seek to
increase our market share ahead of ongoing industry landscape change
where we believe that in the next few years, increasing proportion of
cable jacket for power cord assembly would be manufactured using
halogen-free materials instead of conventional plastic materials due to
increasing environmental awareness. To better position ourselves to
benefit from such trend (and given that we are already capable of
producing our own internally generated halogen-free materials), we
undertook a more aggressive pricing strategy in 2011 which resulted in
an overall decrease in unit selling price. In addition, in the first half of
2011, in order to improve efficiency at our Weihai plant which is mainly
used for the manufacturing of our power cord assembly products, we
integrated our wire & cable and power cord assembly business unit in
terms of production and management team. During such integration
process, we sacrificed certain level of production output and therefore
sales, which together with a weak operating environment, also negatively
impact the profit margin of our power cord assembly segment.
Nonetheless, in 2011, we also managed to win orders from important
new customers in this segment including Dell, Sharp and Panasonic.

Signal Transmission Wire & Cable
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Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1T—HLEFE

2011 2010
—z——% —r—%

Revenue % of Revenue % of Change
RMB’000 Revenue RMB’000 Revenue in %

Wz (& Yoz (=g

AR¥T R Botkk ARETT A7t
Communication cable BGE 134,491 27.5 8,212 2.4 +1,537.7
Consumer electronics cable SHEB T4 263,863 54.0 254,712 73.1 +3.6
Automotive cable B ARE 16,342 3.4 18,196 5.2 -10.2
Power cable BIRGES 60,043 12.3 59,126 17.0 +1.6
Others Hith 13,683 2.8 8,060 2.3 +69.8
488,422 100.0 348,306 100.0 +40.2
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BEEENWE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Signal Transmission Wire & Cable (Continued)

Our signal transmission wire & cable segment recorded an increase in
revenue of approximately RMB140.1 million or approximately 40.2% as
compared to 2010, as we saw a strong increase in sales across products
such as communication cable which increased by approximately
1,537.7% primarily due to increased revenue contribution from the
customers of Huizhou Daya Bay Heping Telecommunication Co., Ltd.
(“Huizhou Daya Bay”) post our acquisition in May 2011 and increased
procurement volume from our existing customers. We have also started
sale of wire & cable (primarily consumer electronics cable) manufactured
using halogen-free materials towards the end of 2010. Of the total
revenue of approximately RMB488.4 million for our signal transmission
wire & cable segment, approximately RMB84.8 million or approximately
17.4% of revenue for this segment was generated by our halogen-free
wire & cable as compared to approximately RMB25.9 million in 2010.

Connectors

Our connector segment recorded an increase in revenue of
approximately RMB3.5 million or approximately 7.5% as compared to
2010, as our existing customers increased their procurement amount
from us despite the weak global PC operating environment.

Antennas

Revenue for antennas increased by approximately RMB16.7 million or
approximately 141.2% as compared 2010 as we only started to
manufacture and sell wireless antenna products in 2010. We continued
to add new customers and has 4 customers as at 31 December 2011.

Automotive Wiring Harness

We identified the automotive wiring harness as a new segment market
after we made an acquisition of 55% interest in Tianjin Rituo Automotive
Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Tianjin Rituo”) in February 2011 and primarily
supplies to six Chinese automobile manufacturers as at 31 December
2011. Revenue attributable to automotive wiring harness segment for
2011 amounted to approximately RMB156.7 million or represented
approximately 8.4% of the total revenue of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEBENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Gross Profit and Margins

As a result of the foregoing, our gross profit increased by approximately
RMB52.8 million, or approximately 16.2% in 2011 as compared to
2010. Our gross profit margin decreased from 23.0% in 2010 to 20.3%
in 2011. Specifically,

51 % 151 B
ERREME

ER BB d AEER _T——FHEMNK
—ZFEREEMOARE52.8 AETHA

162% - REEMEMNEE T —FFH
23.0% FNS‘KEZZT——FM203% AEEA -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
—B——fF —T—FF
Gross Gross Gross Gross
profit profit profit profit Change
RMB’000 margin  RMB’000 margin in %
E7 ERE EM EH= =
ARET T % ARETFIT %
External signal cable assembly SMEAS SRARAE 1 67,863 20.1 79,867 22.6 -15.0
Internal signal cable assembly WS SR AR 92,270 27.1 85,784 27.9 +7.6
Power cord assembly BIRGRAEN 42,799 13.0 40,276 16.3 +6.3
Signal transmission wire & cable {57 E@RFE 101,548 20.8 78,245 22.5 +29.8
Connectors ek 13,273 26.6 14,637 315 -9.3
Antennas KAF 5,294 18.6 1,233 10.5 +329.4
Automotive wiring harness TEBRR 35,444 22.6 — — NATEA
Others Hth 19,914 14.7 25,572 25.5 —22.1
Total at 378,405 20.3 325,614 23.0 +16.2

During the year, the Group recorded gross profit of approximately
RMB378.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 16.2% as
compared to 2010. Overall gross profit margin has decreased from
23.0% in 2010 to 20.3% in 2011. The decrease in gross profit margin for
the year was mainly due to the negative impact of the depreciating US
dollar had on our gross profit margin, decrease in average selling price
for some of our products especially in external signal cable assembly and
power cord assembly due to weakened market demand and that in order
to increase our market share ahead of ongoing industry landscape
change, we also undertook a more aggressive pricing strategy especially
in the second half of 2011 and higher cost pressure in terms of labor and
raw material costs in 2011 as compared to 2010.

FRN AEEHEGENOARE3I7848 8
T HERRZZ—ZFEMNE16.2% B3
FHEB-ZT—FFN23.0%KE_FT——F
#920.3% ° ZKiﬁ%%IJ?TE%IKEEEA%mﬁé
BEHEHEMEFEMERNATATZE - MiEHK
255 A R BRI I ERERER A 5 1 0 TE (B R A
RIEEERRTERMMSNECEER S
T——F T HF)BHBME N ER CEHINE
EHRGEGLRERSEAH) NFHEBTHRRE
ZE——FME T REMBR AR A E S8
iﬁi—_v T¢m°

Annual Report 2011 « —Z——44% 19



Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B ¥ BB (&)
Cost of Sales SHE KA

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of sales for the T~ 2k & 51| 7% £2 B 1A BT 7= HA RS 69 8565 Ak ZBR 40
periods indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=1t—HLEE

2011 2010
—E——fF —ZT-TF

% of total % of total
Cost of Cost of Change

RMB’000 sales RMB’000 sales

IEESHE FHEE

ARETT BRAESHE ARETRT KABSL
Raw material costs BRI 1,166,905 78.5 850,696 78.2 +37.2
Utilities NEFERK 19,331 1.3 16,451 1.5 +17.5
Depreciation E 25,646 1.7 24,899 2.3 +3.0
Labor costs ST RN 166,541 11.2 113,725 10.4 +46.4
Outsourcing costs SNELRK R 83,270 5.6 62,209 5.7 +33.9
Others EHfb 25,278 1.7 20,366 1.9 +24.1
1,486,971 100.0 1,088,346 100.0 +36.6

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our raw material costs for T~ 2% & 51 7% & [ 70 P 7= 5 fl 69 JR A1 4 B 7S B9
the periods indicated: an -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2011 2010
—2—-F —E-TF
% of raw % of raw

material material Change
RMB’000 costs RMB’000 costs in %

&R 16 R s
ARBTR BEAER2E ARBTT KABSLL AL
Copper materials A 689,980 59.1 490,851 57.7 +40.6
Plastic materials BRI 239,216 20.5 147,170 17.3 +62.5
Iron materials SR 59,173 5.1 48,490 5.7 +22.0
Others 2 178,536 15.3 164,185 19.3 +8.7
1,166,905 100.0 850,696 100.0 +37.2
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BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Cost of Sales (Continued)

Cost of sales increased by approximately RMB398.6 million, or
approximately 36.6%, as compared to 2010. The increase was primarily
due to (i) an increase in raw material costs of approximately 37.2%,
mainly as a result of an overall increase in sales volume and the higher
raw material prices in 2011 as compared to 2010. For plastic materials,
the increase in cost is also due to increased proportion of higher cost
halogen-free insulating materials used and increased sales level for
internal signal cable assembly and automotive wiring harness products
that required more plastic materials for production; and (ii) an increase in
labor costs of approximately 46.4%, mainly as a result of an increase in
manufacturing staff (including contract workers and interns) from 4,250
as at 31 December 2010 to 8,067 as at 31 December 2011 and an
overall increase in employee salaries in line with general inflation and
our increase in production level for 2011.

Other Income, Other Gains and Losses

We have other income and gains of approximately RMB22.1 million
which was primarily attributable to (i) interest income of approximately
RMB10.1 million we generated on our bank balance which increased
significantly as compared to the same period in 2010 due to the funds
raised from our initial public offering in November 2010; (ii) government
grant of approximately RMB8.0 million as incentives for research and
development effort of the Group; (iii) gains on disposal of property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments of approximately RMB1.7
million; and (iv) net positive changes in fair value of our hedging
positions in copper and US dollar of approximately RMB3.6 million as at
31 December 2011.
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BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately RMB21.8
million, or approximately 80.1% as compared to 2010 primarily as a
result of increased level of sales and marketing activities in line with
overall increase in revenue, the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou
Daya Bay and additional investment we made in strengthening our sales
and marketing department particularly in our high frequency cable
business and also new markets (such as connectivity products for PRC
photovaltaic and industrials market) that the Group will target to
gradually enter in 2012. In particular, the increase was due primarily to (i)
an increase in transportation expenses of approximately RMB6.2 million
or approximately 50.3%, which is generally in line with the increase in
revenue and as level of marketing activities increased; (ii) an increase in
staff costs of approximately RMB7.3 million or approximately 179.9%,
primarily due to the establishment of our Taipei office and Chonggqing
base in September 2010 and March 2011 respectively, new sales and
marketing teams being set up for high frequency cable, solar connector
and specialty power cable segments and the additional staff we took on
after acquiring Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou Daya Bay. As at 31 December
2011, we have a total of 204 sales and marketing staff as compared to
126 as at 31 December 2010; and (iii) an increase in entertainment
expenses of approximately RMB3.2 million or approximately 64.0%,
primarily due to an increase in sales and marketing activities.

22 HLTechnology Group Limited o 3 jiEH%EEGR A A

Bt 5 B B (40)

PHERHEMX
DHEMEERYBE T —SFENOARE
21.8 BB ILHAI80.1%  TEHNHELEH
SEENK TR e BB L AN 4G hn - UkBE R H
R EMATEE  BAREEMNAIRE - 88
EREHEE  CEHAEERIBRERURAN
EEBR T —_FHEERHEANT TS
(PlanFR B YA R TSR EERINER) °
LEZE ZERFTEIZHR()EHBZMLHA
R¥62BETEHA50.3%  KREFGA W
IR & SEEB) K TFE 00 5 (i) B TR ASIE AN 4Y
ARBE73EBETLHA179.9% FEHNAE
ER-—_EBE-—FBENAR-_E——F=AKTE
W EELREEEN - BRIAR - KIGeEEE
BRFEBREDITELINHEE R EHBH A
MAREBUREERE B REMNKSG SR EERS
INET - RZFE——F+ZA=+—H ' &&E
ERE204ZHEEREHET M —TF
AlA1264 ¢ R (iii) EENFASZIZ I A RHE 3.2
BEITHL64.0% TEHANEEN LTS
#an e



Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Administrative and General Expenses

Administrative and general expenses increased by approximately
RMB44.2 million, or approximately 60.9% as compared to 2010. This
increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in salary expenses of
approximately RMB24.9 million or approximately 108.3%, attributable
to the increase in general and administrative personnel and their
corresponding salary as a result of the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo and
Huizhou Daya Bay, the establishment of our Taipei office and Chongging
base in September 2010 and March 2011 respectively and also as
overall, we recruited additional general and administrative personnel in
line with the expansion of our Group. The number of general and
administrative personnel was 678 as at 31 December 2011 as compared
to 661 as at 31 December 2010; (ii) an increase in depreciation expenses
and office expenses of approximately RMB1.8 million or approximately
34.2% and approximately RMB1.6 million or approximately 22.9%
respectively, mainly as a result of office expansion and additional office
related purchase in general as we increased our business scale, the
completion of a new office block in the fourth quarter of 2010 at our
Changshu, Suzhou facility and the additional depreciation expenses as a
result of the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou Daya Bay; (iii) an
increase in transportation expenses of approximately RMB2.5 million or
approximately 83.8%, in line with increased business operations and as
a result of the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou Daya Bay; and
(iv) an increase in rental expenses of approximately RMB3.5 million or
approximately 428.9%, primarily as a result of the new Taipei and Hong
Kong office that was established in September 2010 and June 2011
respectively and also due to the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou
Daya Bay.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses increased by approximately
RMB31.2 million, or approximately 101.0% as compared to 2010. This
significant increase was primarily due to an increase in salary expenses
for research and development personnel of approximately RMB8.8
million, or approximately 85.7%, as we increased the number of R&D
staff to 288 as at 31 December 2011 as compared to 181 as at 31
December 2010. Research and development is important to the
continued growth and development of our Group and as we continue to
invest in constant refinement of existing products, production process
including automation and development of new products such as high
frequency cable, automotive wiring harness, specialty power cable and
solar connectors, we will continue to allocate resources as relevant in
terms of manpower and capital. Our newly set up Taipei office in
September 2010 is also a key R&D center focusing on the research of
products such as antenna and connector for the 3Cs markets. As a result
of our expanded research and development scope and scale, our use of
raw materials also increased by approximately RMB15.6 million, or
approximately 107.2%.

Finance Costs

Finance costs increased by approximately RMB18.4 million, or
approximately 96.6%, as compared to 2010, due to an increase in bank
interest expenses as a result of increased bank borrowings in line with
the expansion in size and scale of our business operations. In addition,
the average interest rate for our short term loans (both in RMB and US
dollar) for 2011 is higher than the average rate for the same period in
2010 and thereby increased the interest cost for our borrowings.

Income Tax Expenses

Our income tax expenses reduced by approximately RMB2.6 million, or
approximately 14.2% as compared to 2010, primarily due to the effect of
negative deferred tax of approximately RMB3.0 million in the year of
2011. We registered such negative deferred tax because of deductible tax
losses carried forward for some of our subsidiaries including the newly
acquired Huizhou Daya Bay. Excluding the effect of deferred tax and
adjustment for over provision of enterprise income tax (“EIT”) in prior
years, our PRC EIT decreased by approximately RMB0.5 million, or
approximately 2.8% as a result of decrease in our profit before taxation.
Overall, for 2011, our effective tax rate was 11.6% as compared to
10.5% in 2010.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEBENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for year ended 31 December 2011
decreased by approximately RMB35.7 million, or approximately 23.0%
as compared to RMB155.0 million 2010. Our net profit margin was
approximately 6.4% in 2011 as compared to approximately 11.0% in
2010. The decrease in net profit margin was primarily due to (i) impact
of decrease in gross profit margin; (ii) the significant increase in operating
expenses, including selling and distribution expenses, administrative and
general expenses and research and development expenses, as the Group
continues to invest in new products and markets that did not yet have
revenue contribution in 2011; and (iii) the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo
and Huizhou Daya Bay where both these newly acquired entities’
profitability is relatively lower than that of our Group’s existing business
as a whole.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group will continue to implement prudent financial management
policy and maintain a reasonable gearing ratio during expansion. As at
31 December 2011, the Group’s gearing ratio (measured by total short
term borrowings as a percentage of total assets of the Company) was
approximately 28.4% (31 December 2010: approximately 33.5%).

As at 31 December 2011, the total short-term borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB653.5 million (31 December 2010:
approximately RMB663.1 million). Out of this amount, approximately
RMB185.3 million was denominated in US dollar and approximately
RMB468.2 million in Renminbi. These loans carried interests at floating
or fixed rates. For the total short-term borrowings of approximately
RMB653.5 million, approximately RMB317.3 million was secured loans.

Breakdown of our short-term borrowings is as follows:
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As at As at

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
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RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AREETIT

Trade financing B E5rE 207,240 115,854
Note receivable discounted FEU IR AL IR 5,096 92,821
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 441,135 454,431
Total HEt 653,471 663,106
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BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

The increase in bank borrowings was mainly attributable to investments
in new factories and production facilities in our Weihai and Suzhou
base, working capital requirements and also the outstanding borrowing
at our two newly acquired entities.

Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, and apart from intra-
group liabilities, the Group did not have outstanding at the close of
business on 31 December 2011, any loan capital issued and outstanding
or agreed to be issued, bank overdrafts, loans or other similar
indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or acceptable credits,
debentures, mortgages, charges, hire purchases commitments, guarantees
or other material contingent liabilities.

The Directors have confirmed that, there has been no material change in
the indebtedness and contingent liabilities of the Company and its
subsidiaries since 31 December 2011.

Foreign Currency Risk

As certain of our trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and bank borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies, hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuation arises. The
Group had entered into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to
mitigate its foreign currency exposure.

Working Capital

Inventory balance as at 31 December 2011 was approximately
RMB319.5 million (31 December 2010: approximately RMB178.5
million). The increase in inventory was primarily as a result of the our
newly acquired entities, namely Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou Daya Bay, in
2011 which increased our overall inventory level, contributing
approximately RMB104.0 million increase in our inventory as at 31
December 2011. The average turnover days for inventory stood at 61
days as compared to 60 days in 2010.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEBENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Working Capital (Continued)

Trade and bill receivables balance as at 31 December 2011 was
approximately RMB946.9 million (31 December 2010: approximately
RMB670.0 million). The increase in trade and bill receivables balance
was mainly due to our overall increase in revenue and the trade and bill
receivables balance attributable to the two acquisitions we made in the
first half of 2011. The average turnover days for trade and bill receivables
stood at 158 days as compared to 134 days in 2010, primarily due to the
relatively longer credit terms for customers of our newly acquired
entities, namely Tianjin Rituo and Huizhou Daya Bay. As at 31
December 2011, approximately 79.4% of our trade and bill receivables
were due within three months.

Trade and bill payables balance as at 31 December 2011 was
approximately RMB462.0 million (31 December 2010: approximately
RMB324.2 million). The increase in trade and bill payables balance was
generally in line with the increased scale of our business operations in
2011. The average turnover days for trade and bill payables was 97 days
as at 31 December 2011 as compared to 93 days in 2010.

Our cash conversion cycle for the year ended 31 December 2011 was
approximately 122 days as compared to 101 days for 2010.

Cash Flow
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For the year ended
31 December
BE+t=-A=+t—HLHFE
2011 2010
—E-FF
RMB’000
ARBETT

—E——F
RMB’000
AR®ET T

Net cash used in operating activities REEBMAEEFER (167,546) (114,539
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities "EFREME(FTA)ReF58 161,211 (549,936)
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities mMEEE (TR MEREF8 (47,423) 751,139

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended 31 December
2011 was approximately RMB167.5 million primarily due to higher trade
and bills receivables balance as at 31 December 2011 as a result of sales
generated in the second half of 2011 of which most receivables is still
outstanding according to our standard credit policy and also due to the
additional trade and bills receivables balance that only arisen as at 31
December 2011 for our newly acquired entities.
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Management Discussion & Analysis

BEBENWR D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Cash Flow (Continued)

Net cash from investing activities for the year ended 31 December 2011
of approximately RMB161.2 million was primarily attributable to the
release of pledged bank deposits of approximately RMB468.8 million
netted against the payment for prepaid lease payments and purchase for
property, plant and equipment as we increase our business operations
and scale.

Net cash used in financing activities for the year ended 31 December
2011 of approximately RMB47.4 million was primarily attributable to
decrease in net borrowings.

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2011, we incurred total capital
expenditures of approximately RMB234.7 million in construction of new
factories and office buildings, the purchase of plant and machinery,
equipment, computer systems and approximately RMB71.9 million for
making acquisitions.

Capital Commitments

As of 31 December 2011, the Group had total capital commitments of
RMB71.3 million (31 December 2010: RMB56.5 million), mainly used in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and manufacturing facilitates.

Employees

As at 31 December 2011, we have a total of 9,566 full time staff, of
which 3,042 were our direct employees (31 December 2010: 1,638) and
5,437 were our contract workers (31 December 2010: 3,870). As at 31
December 2011, we also have 1,087 part time interns. All our contract
workers and part time interns are mainly used for production whereas in
terms of our direct employees, the breakdown as at 31 December 2011
is as follows:
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As at As at

31 December 31 December

2011 2010
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Manufacturing Bl 1,543 380
Sales and marketing HE R T ISHERE 204 126
General and administration —MRRATIR 678 661
Research and development g 288 181
Quality control R & 2 329 290
Total 4t 3,042 1,638
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Use of Proceeds Raised from the Global Offering

The net proceeds from the Global Offering, after deducting the relevant
cost were approximately HKD470.3 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB400.7 million). As at 31 December 2011, the Company utilized the
proceeds of approximately RMB265.9 million to the Group’s new
development projects, research and development and working capital.
The Directors do not anticipate any changes to its plan on the use of
proceeds as stated in the Prospectus.

At present, the utilization of proceeds from the Global Offering is
basically the same with the intended use of proceeds as disclosed in the
Prospectus. As at 31 December 2011, proceeds used on projects are
generally analyzed as follows:
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Accumulated use of proceeds

RETABRARR

Estimated Accumulated
Projects amount expenses
1HH EET SR 23Hx%
RMB (million) RMB (million)
AR (RET) AR (B&T
(1) Expanding production capacity of BRIRBEmMNER
existing products 160.3 65.6
(2)  Development and production of A N BUE T E
new products 176.3 136.2
(3)  Research and development investment #ff 25454 24.0 24.0
(4)  General working capital and —REEERREM—R
other general corporate purposes NRAE 40.1 40.1
Total A% 400.7 265.9

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend a payment of any dividends for the
year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

CAPITAL INCREASE AGREEMENT FOR TIANJIN
RITUO

On 21 February 2011 Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. (“Weihai
Electronic”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered
into the Capital Increase Agreement between Tianjin Rituo, Wang Xiang
(the existing shareholder of Tianjin Rituo, who holds as to 70% of Tianjin
Rituo before the Agreement) and Wang Weiguo (the existing shareholder
of Tianjin Rituo, who holds as to 30% of Tianjin Rituo before the
Agreement), pursuant to which Weihai Electronic has agreed to make
Capital Contribution of RMB58.60 million (equivalent to approximately
HKD69.15 million) in aggregate to Tianjin Rituo, of which, (i)
RMB6,111,111 (equivalent to approximately HKD7,211,111) will be
used to increase the registered capital of Tianjin Rituo from RMB5.00
million (equivalent to approximately HKD5.90 million) to
RMB11,111,111 (equivalent to approximately HKD13,111,111), and (i)
RMB52,488,889 (equivalent to approximately HKD61,936,889) will be
treated as capital reserve of Tianjin Rituo. Prior to the Capital Increase,
Tianjin Rituo was owned as to 70% and 30% by Wang Xiang and Wang
Weiguo respectively, and upon completion of the Capital Increase,
Tianjin Rituo will be held as to 31.5% by Wang Xiang, 13.5% by Wang
Weiguo and 55.0% by Weihai Electronic.

Tianjin Rituo is principally engaged in the design, research and

development, manufacture and sale of automotive wiring harness
products catering to automobile industry in PRC.
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Management Discussion & Analysis
BEEENWE DM

ACQUISITION OF HUIZHOU DAYA BAY AND
CAPITAL INJECTION

On 4 May 2011, Weihai Electronic, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as Purchaser) entered into the Acquisition and Capital
Injection Agreement with Tian Hong Zhen, Zhou Shao Hua, Yuan Huo
You, Wang Jia Zhan and Wu Yue Long (as Vendors), pursuant to which
the Vendors agreed to sell and the Purchaser agreed to acquire an
aggregate total of 87% equity interest in Huizhou Daya Bay for a total
consideration of RMB13.3 million (equivalent to approximately HKD15.8
million) which will be settled entirely by cash funded by internal
resources of the Group. Upon the completion of the Acquisition, Yuan
Huo You, Zhou Shao Hua and Weihai Electronic also agreed to make
capital injection of RMB63.2 million (equivalent to approximately
HKD75.2 million) in aggregate to Huizhou Daya Bay in proportion to
their respective shareholding in Huizhou Daya Bay immediately after the
completion of the Acquisition. Upon the completion of the capital
injection, Huizhou Daya Bay would continue to be held as to 87% by
Weihai Electronic and 13% in aggregate by Yuan Huo You and Zhou
Shao Hua.

In August and December 2011, Weihai Electronic as part of capital
injection, further injected RMB20,000,000 and RMB43,200,000 into
Huizhou Daya, and the percentage of equity interest of Huizhou Daya
hold by the Group increased to 97.27% at the end of 31 December
2011. In March 2012, Weihai Electronic acquired the remaining 2.73%
non-control interest with the consideration amount of approximately
RMBT1,992,000.

Huizhou Daya Bay is principally engaged in the design, research and
development, manufacture and sale of communication wire & cable and
related products catering to the telecommunication industry in the PRC.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNSHREEEBRE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin GB2#) (“Mr. Chi”), aged 40, is the Chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer of the Company, and is in charge of
overall strategic planning, business planning and responsible for decision
making in all material matters of the Group. Mr. Chi was appointed as
Director on 16 November 2007.

Mr. Chi joined the Group in November 1997 and is a founder of the
Group. Mr. Chi is also a director of all the subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Chi has over 16 years of experience in the electronics industry
gained in the Group and in his previous employment. He is a Chinese
national and has not been a full time government official nor a full time
employee of a state-owned/operated entity. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chi worked as the production manager of Shengshan Electronics
(Weihai) Company Limited (¥ F(88) AR AR]) from March 1995
to October 1997.

Mr. Chi is a representative to the 11th Session of Weihai Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference Committee and
has been awarded many awards or recognizations by the government of
Weihai City, Shandong Province, China Commerce Association (' EIrg
1) and certain other organizations, including “Outstanding Young
Entrepreneur of Weihai City” (B8 EFFFRER), “Self-innovation
Award for the Most Influential Person of Weihai City for the Economic
Year” (BUBTHEAXENKEFEAYE XAIFE), “Award for
Entrepreneur Operating a Key Enterprise in the Weihai Economic and
Technology Development Area” (B84SR 175 3 (& & H L L& Al
%4#%), “Model for the Labor of Weihai Economic and Technology
Development Zone” (/A4 7 51 7 3% [ 85 812 80) during the period of
April 2008 to May 2010. In 2010, Mr. Chi was also awarded the
“Outstanding Entrepreneurs of Shandong Province (the 18th Series)” (%
TNELREEELER).

Mr. Chi is the son-in-law of Ms. Xu Yiming, a non-executive Director and
adviser of the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Taike (A B) (“Mr. Jiang”), aged 37, is an executive Director
and vice chief executive officer of the Company and the general manager
of the wire & cable department of the Group. Mr. Jiang is in charge of
implementation of strategy, operational planning and overall
management of the wire & cable department of the Group and has been
involved in decision making for material matters of the Group. Mr. Jiang
joined the Group in July 2003 as the general manager of Weihai Honglin
Wire & Cable Co., Ltd. (“Weihai Cable”) and was appointed as a
Director on 16 March 2010. Mr. Jiang is also a director of the subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. Jiang has over 15 years of experience in the wire and cable industry
gained in the Group and in his previous employment. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Jiang worked for many companies in the electronics and
technology industries, including as an engineer of Wantai Group (#Z= 5%
®) from August 1996 to March 1999 in charge of the product design,
research and development, a deputy manager of Dongguan Licheng
Wires Factory (523K ELRMR) from March 1999 to August 1999
responsible for the production and technology, a deputy manager of
Fengyuan Wires and Cables Co., Ltd. (2/REREEFR A F]) from
August 1999 to June 2001 responsible for overall management and
operations, and the general manager of Shenzhen Pengding Holdings
Co., Ltd. CRYIFASEZEBBRAF) from July 2001 to May 2003. Mr. Jiang
graduated from Shenzhen University with a college diploma in
management in 1996.

Mr. Jiang is a brother-in-law of Mr. Mao Wanjun, an executive Director.

Mr. Li Jianming (ZZZ B) (“Mr. Li”), aged 39, is an executive Director
and vice chief executive officer of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Group
in May 2005 as chief financial officer of the Company and was appointed
as a Director on 16 March 2010 and vice chief executive officer on 1
July 2011. Besides leading the financial management, capital investment
and financing functions of the Group, Mr. Li has also regularly
participated in key business and strategic decision matters of the Group.
Mr. Li is involved in assisting the chief executive officer of the Company
on corporate planning, internal management and control, as well as
developing business strategies and overall direction of the Company. Mr.
Li is also involved in overseeing the Group’s investment and finance
related functions. Mr. Li is also a director of the subsidiaries of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

ESNSHREEEBRE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cContinued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Li has over 17 years of experience in financial management gained
in the Group and in his previous employment. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Li was the chief accountant of the PRC office of The Timken
Company, one of the Fortune 500 Companies, for financial management
matters from July 1994 to June 2001. Mr. Li was the chief financial officer
of Qingdao Jinling Electrical Appliances Co., Ltd. (E& & & EEZHBRA
A]), a sino-foreign joint venture enterprise, from June 2001 to May 2004,
responsible for its financial management, financial process optimization,
internal supervision and control and other related matters, and was the
head of Technology of Qingdao Branch of Zhuhai Master Service
Software Technology Co., Ltd. (SR8 RBEMEMBER A TS DA F])
from May 2004 to May 2005 in charge of promoting and implementing
the development of information system.

Mr. Li graduated from Shandong Economic University with a bachelor’s
degree in accounting in 1994. He is a senior accountant (/= 4% & 51 A)
and obtained the ICPA certificate in April 2009 and the SIFM certificate
in June 2010. Senior accountant qualification (= A% & 5T Bl & %) is the
highest accounting qualification awarded by such PRC government
bodies, namely, the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security (A
NERMEEREE) and the Ministry of Finance (87 EEB), based on
the academic level, practical capability and working experience of the
relevant accounting professionals. He has extensive experience in
enterprise finance, financial management, enterprise taxation planning
and Enterprise Resource Planning information management and
published various articles in journals from 2007 to 2009 in respect of
financial management.

Mr. Mao Wanjun (EE ) (“Mr. Mao”), aged 44, is an executive Director.
He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company and the vice general
manager of Weihai Electronic, mainly responsible for the overall
operation and management of wire & cable business.

Mr. Mao joined the Group in April 2004 as a manager of Weihai Cable.
He was promoted as the vice general manager of Weihai Cable in
January 2007 and has been an executive director of the Group since 16
March 2010. Since joining the Group, Mr. Mao has played a leading role
in establishing the human resources management system and
management information system of Weihai Cable, improving its target
management system and other related areas, and enhancing its overall
management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Manage@g

ESNSHREEEBRE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (cContinued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Mao has over 19 years of experience in the electronic cable industry
gained in the Group and in his previous employment. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Mao was a department head of Dongguan Wantai Wire
Factory (BR5=EZRELRM) from 1992 to 2004, mainly responsible for the
production, quality control, environmental protection and, professional
health and safety systems. He has extensive experience in enterprise
management and in the implementation of various systems including

1ISO9001, TS16949 and 1SO14001.
Mr. Mao is a brother-in-law of Mr. Jiang Taike, an executive Director.

Mr. Kang Jin Won (Z#RE) (“Mr. Kang”), aged 49, is an executive
Director and the general manager of the FFC business department of
Changshu Honglin Connecting-Technology Co., Ltd. (“Changshu
Connecting-Technology”).

He joined the Group in August 2009 as the general manager of the FFC
business department of Changshu Connecting-Technology and was
appointed as an executive Director on 16 March 2010.

Mr. Kang has over 19 years of experience in the electronic and
technology industry gained in the Group and in his previous
employment. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kang worked in LG Co.,
Ltd. in Gunpo, Korea from 1990 to 1994, Seoul Wires Co., Ltd. in Korea
from 1994 to 1997, New Korean S&T Daewoo Co., Ltd. from 1997 to
1999 and in KFC Electronics of Korea from 1999 to 2001 responsible for
FFC conductor research and development Mr. Kang worked in
ERPIRBTERA

in September 2001 and was responsible for its overaII management and
development. He is one of the first professional technicians in the Korean
FFC industry, and has more than 19 years’ experience in such area.

Lianyungang Zhongzhen Precision Co., Ltd. (

Mr. Kang has been involved in the development of the Chinese FFC
industry for over 11 years and provided technology advice and services
to P-TWO Industries Inc., one of the largest FFC factories in China, and
introduced into China the Korean FFC related processing technology,
raw material technology, and equipment and machinery technology.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Non-executive Director

Ms. Xu Yiming ($RE$8) (“Ms. Xu”), aged 60, is a non-executive Director
and adviser of the Company. Ms. Xu joined the Company in November
1997 as one of the senior management officers. Ms. Xu was the vice
general manager of Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd. and the vice
general manager of Dezhou Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd., responsible for
the daily administration in such companies from November 1997 to
March 2006 and from March 2006 to March 2009, respectively. Ms. Xu
has been an adviser of the Group since 2009 and the non-executive
Director since 16 March 2010.

Since becoming the adviser of the Company in 2009, Ms. Xu has,
utilizing her past experience in the Group and in the industry, provided
on-going general advice on quality control management systems and
processes.

Ms. Xu has over 25 years of experience in the electronics industry gained
in the Group and in her previous employment. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Xu was the head of the production division of Weihai City
Beiyang Optical Instrument Factory (B8 10F H 24EESHR) from 1986
to 1993, and the vice general manager of Xingdi Electronic Company
Limited (28 FHFR 2 A]), a subsidiary of Weihai City Beiyang Electric
Appliances Group (BB E/F B 255 E), from May 1994 to April 1997.

Ms. Xu is the mother-in-law of Mr. Chi Shaolin, an executive Director.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence (8 Z®) (“Mr. Shu”), aged 39, is an
independent non-executive Director.

Mr. Shu was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 25
October 2010. He is currently an independent non-executive director of
Perception Digital Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange Stock
Code: 1822) and Greater China Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 431).
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ESNSHREEEBRE

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Shu has over 16 years of experience in audit, corporate finance and
corporate financial management. Mr. Shu started to work with Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu since March 1994, and was a Manager of the
Reorganization Services Group when he left Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
in October 2000. Mr. Shu was subsequently employed by ICEA Capital
Limited (L7 5 2§ & A BR 2 7]) as a manager in the Equity Capital
Market of the corporate finance division from November 2000 to June
2001, responsible for the daily management of listing application
projects and advising on merger and acquisition transactions. He then
worked in Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited as a manager
from July 2001 to November 2002. From November 2002 to April 2005,
Mr. Shu held the position of associate director in Goldbond Capital (Asia)
Limited (& #5 & & (2 M) B R 2 7). He served as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Texhong Textile Group Limited (X
W4 EBAR AT (Stock Code: 2678) for the period from May 2005
to July 2008 overseeing the company’s financial management function.
From July 2008 to June 2010, Mr. Shu worked as the chief financial
officer of Rongsheng Heavy Industries Holdings Limited (45 &% T 2%
BMRZAF]), and oversaw the financial management of the company and
its subsidiaries. Mr. Shu is currently the chief financial officer of Petro-
king International Company Limited (& #)BIfx AR 2 7)), overseeing the
financial strategies and daily financial management function of the
company and its subsidiaries. Mr. Shu graduated from Deakin University
in Australia with a bachelor degree in business majoring in accounting in
1994. He is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountant and a Certified Practicing Accountant of CPA
Australia.

Mr. Song Lizhong (3R X ) (“Mr. Song”), aged 36, is an independent
non-executive Director.

Mr. Song was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
25 October 2010. Mr. Song is currently an associate professor and
instructor of master degree courses in the School of Information Science
and Engineering of Harbin Institute of Technology in Weihai, focusing on
research on radar signal processing, antenna technology, electromagnetic
field and microwave technology. He has published more than 20
academic papers.
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Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Song graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology with a master’s
degree in electromagnetic field and microwave technology in July 2001
and a doctorate degree in communication and information system in July
2005. He is engaged in research at the Mobile Station of post doctoral
researches for electronic science and technology subjects (% F &} £ i
M B EHE & B ED UL of Harbin Institute of Technology.

Ms. Zheng Lin (E83#) (“Ms. Zheng”), aged 41, is an independent non-
executive Director.

Ms. Zheng was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
25 October 2010. Ms. Zheng is a practicing PRC lawyer and has been
working with Beijing Huatang Law Firm since April 2008. Prior to that,
she worked at Welfare Electronics Company located in the Economic
and Technical Development Zone of Weihai City in Shandong Province
from October 1992 to May 1995, the Weihai Airlines Services Company
Limited from June 1995 to June 2001 and Shandong Ying Liang Tai Ye
Law Firm from August 2004 to March 2008. She graduated from
Shandong University in July 2004 after completing the online program in
law and is qualified to practice law in China having passed the Chinese
national judicial examination in 2004. Ms. Zheng passed the National
Securities Qualifications Examination (Bl R & % ¥ & % & &) in 2006
and is also qualified to serve as an independent non-executive director of
companies listed in China.

Ms. Zheng is a member of China Zhi Gong Party (FEIZI/A%) and a
member of Weihai Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference Committee. She has provided legal services to
various government departments, listed companies, state-owned
enterprises and other entities, including Shandong Zhengda Medical
Equipment Shares Co., Ltd. (LR IEREE 2 A% (7 B BR A 7)), Shandong
Liangiao New Materials Shares Co., Ltd. ({LLEREBF M ERAG BRAR]),
Shandong Shuanglun Group Co., Ltd. (LR & EE 2 F)), Yantai
Wanhua Polyurethanes Co., Ltd., (ZEBEBREERMHERAF]) and
Dongfang Electronics Co., Ltd. (877 & FRRHBRAF).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Michael Y. C. Chew (“Mr. Michael Chew”), aged 54, is our general
manager and head of High Speed Interconnect cable business, in care of
overall business and product development for our range of high
frequency/speed cable products. Mr. Michael Chew joined the Group in
August 2011 and is an industry veteran in the interconnect cable
business. Prior to joining the Group, he served as Director of Global
Supply Chain and Sourcing at Volex Group Plc, a leading global provider
of electrical and optical interconnect solutions listed on the London
Stock Exchange. Mr. Michael Chew graduated from University of Detroit
with a Bachelor degree (with distinction) in Architecture in 1982.

Mr. Toney Y.T. Chew (“Mr. Toney Chew”), aged 52, is our Chief
Technology Officer and is primarily in charge of the research and
development of the Group. Mr. Toney Chew joined the Group in August
2011 and is an industry veteran in the interconnect cable business. Prior
to joining the Group, he has worked in leading global interconnect
companies including Volex Group Plc as a high-speed business
development manager from 2005 to 2011 and Amphenol Corporation as
a regional manager from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Toney Chew graduated from
University of North Texas with a Bachelor of Science degree in 1987.

Mr. Tan Zhen (FEfE), aged 34, is a director and the Vice General
Manager of Changshu Electronic responsible for the production, research
and development, sale of products of internal signal cable assembly
products. Mr. Tan Zhen joined the Group in December 2008 as the
Manager of Changshu Electronic and has acted as the director of
Changshu Electronic since July 2009. Mr. Tan Zhen was also appointed
as the vice general manager of internal signal cable department of the
Group since July 2010.

Mr. Tan Zhen has over 12 years of experience in the electronics industry
gained in our Group and in his previous employment. Before joining the
Group, Mr. Tan Zhen was the section head in the quality control
department of High Tek Harness Enterprises (Zhongshan) Co., Ltd.
responsible for the product quality control from July 1999 to February
2003; the coaxial cable project manager of Tyco Electronics (Kunshan)
Co., Ltd. responsible for the research and development and production
of coaxial cables from March 2003 to April 2004; the manager of the
engineering department of High Tek Harness Enterprises (Zhongshan)
Co., Ltd. responsible for research and development from May 2004 to
February 2008; the manager of Hesi Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. (]
BEFRHZAR QA responsible for overall operation from March 2008
to December 2008. Mr. Tan Zhen is an expert in the research and
development, design of production process and on-site management of
slim-wire harness wires and coaxial cable products, and has 12 years’
experience in internal signal cable assembly products. He graduated
from the Faculty of Electrical Engineering of Nanyang Polytechnic with a
diploma in electrical technology in July 1999.
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Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. Tan Soon Hoe (FRIEF]), aged 34, is the chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Tan Soon Hoe joined the Group on 1 July 2011 and he is
responsible for the financial management, capital investment and
financing decisions of the Group. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Tan
Soon Hoe was a vice president in the investment banking division of
Piper Jaffray Asia Limited where he handled corporate finance
transactions including new listings, mergers & acquisitions and corporate
restructurings. Mr. Tan Soon Hoe has also worked in the investment
banking division of N M Rothschild & Sons (Hong Kong) Ltd and the
financial services group of PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong.

Mr. Tan Soon Hoe holds a master degree from the London School of
Economics and Political Science where he was awarded the LSE External
Scholarship. He is also qualified as a chartered accountant in London
and currently a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales (ICAEW) and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA).

Ms. Chen Jing (FR &) (“Ms. Chen”), aged 34, is the investment director of
the Company, responsible for financial management of the Group,
including formulation of various financial management rules, financial
income and expenditure plan, cost planning and budgets, and
compilation of the financial report and analysis of the Group. Ms. Chen
has over 8 years of experience in accounts management gained in our
Group and in her previous employment. Before joining the Group in
April 2010, Ms. Chen worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA Ltd.
from August 2003 to March 2010 and was the assistant auditing manager
from July 2008 to March 2010. She has extensive experience in financial
management. She graduated from Dalian University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in Economics and a master’s degree in Accounting in
2000 and 2003, respectively.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting herewith their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is Unit 1805,
Admiralty Centre Tower Two, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
provision of one-stop signal transmission and connectivity solutions and
related products. The Group designs, develops, manufactures and sells a
comprehensive range of products including external and internal signal
cable assembly, signal transmission wire and cable, power cord
assembly, connectors, wireless antennas, automotive wiring harness and
other products.

CORPORATE REORGANIZATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16 November
2007 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to a group reorganization to rationalize the
structure of the Group in preparation for the public listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing”), the Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 30 January 2008.

Details of the corporate reorganization are set out in the section headed
“History, Reorganization and Group Structure” and in Appendix VI
“Statutory and General Information” to the Company’s Prospectus for the
Listing. The shares of the Company have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 16 November 2010.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Group are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

DIVIDEND AND APPROPRIATION

The Company was successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on 16
November 2010. The Directors considered that the declaration, payment
and amount of the dividend shall be subject to the status of the Group’s
future development. The Directors do not recommend the payment of
any dividends for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 (2010:
Nil) and will consider to formulate a dividend policy at an appropriate
time in the future.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2011 are set out in the section headed consolidated statement
of changes in equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

The Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB586.5 million as at 31 December 2011. Such amount
includes the Company’s share premium account of approximately
RMB536.3 million and retained profits approximately RMB50.2 million
in aggregate as at 31 December 2011.

CLOSURE OF TRANSFER BOOKS AND REGISTER
OF MEMBERS

The transfer books and register of members of the Company will be
closed from 22 May 2012 to 29 May 2012 (both dates inclusive) during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending and voting at the annual general meeting of the Company,
all transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year under review, the aggregate sales attributable to the
Group’s top five largest customers comprised approximately 48.2%
(2010: 43.6%) of the Group’s total sales and the sales attributable to the
Group’s largest customer were approximately 13.4% of the Group’s total
sales. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's top five largest
suppliers comprised approximately 44.7% (2010: 30.0%) of the total
purchases for the year.

So far as is known to the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates
or substantial Shareholders owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital nor had any interest in the share capital of any of the top
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the
state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs as at 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 67, 68 and
159 of this report.
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OPERATING RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 67.

The Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders for the year ended 31
December 2011 was approximately RMB116.1 million, being
approximately 24.0% lower as compared to 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
include:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. Jiang Taike (Vice CEO)

Mr. Li Jianming (Vice CEO)

Mr. Mao Wanjun

Mr. Kang Jin Won

Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (retired on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Sui Shikai (retired on 28 April 2011)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Yiming
Mr. Du Li (retired on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Wu Kezhong (retired on 28 April 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
Mr. Song Lizhong
Ms. Zheng Lin
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independent in accordance with
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are independent
in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the date of listing of the Company, i.e. 16 November
2010 (the “Listing Date”) on the Stock Exchange and each of the
independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 25
October 2010, and thereafter may be terminated by either party giving
the other not less than three months’ prior written notice.

Pursuant to article 84(1) of the articles of association of the Company, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or, if their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years. Mr. Mao Wanjun (executive
Director), Mr. Kang Jin Won (executive Director) and Ms. Xu Yiming
(non-executive Director) shall retire by rotation at the conclusion of the
AGM and be eligible for re-election at the AGM.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has an unexpired
service contract which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The compensation and benefits committee of the Company considers
and recommends to the Board the remuneration and other benefits paid
by the Company to the Directors. The remuneration of all Directors is
subject to regular monitoring by the compensation and benefits
committee of the Company to ensure that the levels of their remuneration
and compensation are appropriate. Details of Directors’ remuneration
are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.
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Report of the Directors

EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out
on pages 32 to 40 of this report.

DIRECTORS’” INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below, there was no contract of significance to which
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the
“SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provision of the SFO) or which were required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) as follows:

Name of Directors Capacity

EEgR 55

Mr. Chi Shaolin™ Beneficial owner
BAMEED EmEAA
Ms. Xu Yiming® Beneficial owner
REH LT EmEEA
Mr. Jiang Taike® Beneficial owner
BAR AL EREEA
Mr. Li Jianming® Beneficial owner
FHEBAKES EnlEEA
Mr. Mao Wanjun® Beneficial owner
EEHLEES EnEA

EENRGHNEEEBNERE

FHREERSAETEENBERFBEINARS
E32F40H

EECANER

BT XA EESN - ARE - HERARRE
AMBARRBEE_T——F+=-_A=+—H
L FEPRSFERL BT LARREAESTR
HPERAEEEFEAacEMNERS
#) e

EERFETHRAERKAD -
FERORESHNESN KR

RZB——F+-A=+—H ARREFK
TETRAEBRARAREEEEZE(EER
& R ED] (TEF BRG] % XV ER)
Bty - AR REH T TR RIEE S & B
BEEPIEXVEBE7 K87 BAME AN F) Kb
RFrmEmsOA R (BRERIEZEZ M E K
PIZMEGFXRBEENERIORE) » K
ARBNIRIERE 7 B GRPIE 352 RRERF
EZELMOERIORR - IRELETHITA
ERETEFRHNEEST R (MRETR]) A
HMERRR LB IS SORBIT

Percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
shares held the Company
ERER#E EARRRERT
FrisE &7 RAH D
294,283,839 (L) 40.9%
17,126,918 (L) 2.4%
16,248,857 (L) 2.3%
1,030,431 (L) 0.1%
1,486,471 (L) 0.2%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

(L):  Long position

Note 1: Mr. Chi Shaolin is deemed to be interested in 294,283,839 Shares held by Chenlin

International Joint Stock Company Limited by virtue of it being wholly-owned by Mr.
Chi Shaolin.

Note 2: Yongchang Joint Stock Company Limited held a total of 133,849,094 Shares in trust

for each of the 40 minority Shareholders, including Ms. Xu Yiming who is interested
in 17,126,918 Shares and Mr. Jiang Taike who is interested in 16,248,857 Shares.

Note 3: Hongxin Joint Stock Company Limited held a total of 36,791,039 Shares in trust for

each of the 136 employees, including Mr. Li Jianming who is interested in 1,030,431
Shares and Mr. Mao Wanjun who is interested in 1,486,471 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors
or chief executives of the Company had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which had been
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors and chief executives of the Company (including
their spouses and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interest or
short positions in the shares, or underlying shares, or debentures, of the
Company or its associated corporations (with the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 October 2010 (the
“Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of enabling the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Eligible participants include the Directors, any employee (whether full-
time or part-time) or shareholder of the Group, and any customer,
supplier, agent, business or joint venture business partner, consultant,
distributor, promoter, service provider, adviser or contractor to any
member of the Group.

The maximum number of Share which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in
issued as at the Listing date, i.e. 72,000,000 Shares. No option may be
granted to any participant of the Share Option Scheme such that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to
the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as determined by the Board
and not exceeding 10 years from the date of the grant. There is no
minimum period for which an option must be held before it can be
exercised. Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay
the Company HKD1.00 upon acceptance of the grant on the offer date.
The exercise price of the options is determined by the board in its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than which ever is the highest
of:

(@) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant, which must be a
Business Day;

(b) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five (5) trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

(c)  the nominal value of a Share.
The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from 15 November 2010 after which no further options will be

granted or offered.

There is no options outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the Company, as
at 31 December 2011, the persons or corporations (other than Directors
or chief executives of the Company) who had interest or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Substantial Shareholders

FTERRMES

Capacity
56

Chenlin International Joint Stock
Company Limited

BB BR AR

Yongchang Joint Stock Company

Security interest in shares of
the corporation'”
POEBRAD BV E s

Security interest in shares of

Limited the corporation?
KEBMNBRAR] AR M E S @
Hongxin Joint Stock Company Security interest in shares of

Limited the corporation®
BhERBN B IR AR POEB IR B E S Y

TERRRRAG - HEARODRE
FNEBER AR

AARBEAESRERTRARHRA R
E——F+-_A=1t—H REARAKRH KA
ARk FRERaIARMEREE S RHAE
GEPIZE XV B 2 Ko 3 D EMEX TIAWEE - =2
AEERIRIERE S B RPIE 336 RAFEZ
BRMOALIER(ARREETHEEITR
ABBRIN AT

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company

Number of
issued ordinary
shares held

HEBEREE EARDTERIT
FrisB 81T BRAEBD
294,283,839 (L) 40.9%
133,849,094 (L) 18.6%
36,791,039 (L) 5.1%

(L):  Long position
Notes:

(1) Chenlin International Joint Stock Company Limited held 40.9% interest in the
Company, which entire issue share capital is owned by Mr. Chi Shaolin.

(2) Yongchang Joint Stock Company Limited held 18.6% interest in the Company in trust
for 40 minority shareholders, including Mr. Jiang Taike, executive Director, Mr. Xu
Yiming, non-executive Director, and who are interested in 16,248,857 Shares and
17,126,918 Shares, respectively.

(3) Hongxin Joint Stock held 5.1% interest in our Company in trust for 136 employee
shareholders, including two Directors, namely Mr. Li Jianming who is interested in
1,030,431 Shares and Mr. Mao Wanjun who is interested in 1,486,471 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the Directors are not
aware of any other person or corporation (other than Directors or chief
executives of the Company) having an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company which would
require to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float required under the
Listing Rules for the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2011.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders of the Company
or any of their subsidiaries, at any time during the year. No contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of
their subsidiaries.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

Each of the controlling shareholders has confirmed to the Company of
his/her compliance with the non-compete undertakings provided to the
Company under the Deed of Non-competition (as defined in the
Prospectus). The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition have been complied
with by the controlling shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, that competes or competed or is or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to and including
the date of this annual report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, bank balances and cash of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB106.7 million (2010: approximately
RMB160.4 million). Details of such are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had bank loans and other
borrowings of approximately RMB653.5 million (2010: approximately
RMB663.1 million), among which approximately RMB317.3 million was
secured by the Group’s property, plant and equipment trade and bill
receivables, bank deposit and land use rights. Details of such are set out
in notes 15, 16, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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CHARGES AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than the secured bank borrowings mentioned above, as at 31
December 2011, the Group had no other charges on its assets nor any
material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed 3,042 employees (2010:
1,638). The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
determined on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.
The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to
its senior management and employees. Please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report for details of such scheme.

As at 31 December 2011, the total staff costs (including directors’
emoluments) amounted to approximately RMB241.2 million (2010:
approximately RMB158.1 million, including approximately RMB7.1
million related to the equity-settled share-based payments). The
Company maintains a Share Option Scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to the eligible participants for their contributions
to the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out in the financial highlight section on
pages 7 to 11 to this report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of employee retirement schemes of the Group are set out in
note 28 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

There are no continuing connected transactions between the Group and
its connected persons (as defined under the Listing Rules) which are
subject to the reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’” approval requirement under the Listing Rules as at 31
December 2011.

None of the related party transactions set out in note 33 to the financial

statements falls under the definition of “connected transaction” or
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles
of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in
which the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares to existing Shareholders on a pro-rata basis.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2011. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or repurchased any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2011.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Tuesday, 29
May 2012 and the notice of annual general meeting will be published
and despatched to shareholders of the Company in due course.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

By order of the Board
Chi Shaolin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors recognize the importance of incorporating the elements of
good corporate governance into the management structures and internal
control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective accountability
to the shareholders of the Company as a whole. The Board strived to
uphold good corporate governance and adopt sound corporate
governance practices continuously in the interest of shareholders of the
Company to enhance the overall performance of the Company. The
principles and the code provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules
have been adopted by the Group. For the purpose of complying with the
new code of corporate governance practice as set out in the Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules, which has been in effect since 1 April 2012, the
Board has adopted a revised CG Code (the “New CG Code”) on 22
March 2012. The Company has also complied with the CG Code
throughout the year except for the following deviation.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. The Group does not at present
separate the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer. For the
year ended 31 December 2011, Mr. Chi Shaolin is both the chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group. The Board
considers that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in
the same individual is beneficial to the business prospects and
management of the Group. The Board will review the need of appointing
suitable candidate to assume the role of the chief executive officer when
necessary.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the Directors. On specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Corporate Governance Report
EREBRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board of Directors

As at 31 December 2011, the Board comprises five executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board during the year ended 31
December 2011 was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chi Shaolin (Chairman and CEO)

Mr. Jiang Taike (Vice CEO)

Mr. Li Jianming (Vice CEO)

Mr. Mao Wanjun

Mr. Kang Jin Won

Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (retired on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Sui Shikai (retired on 28 April 2011)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Yiming (Adviser)
Mr. Du Li (retired on 28 April 2011)
Mr. Wu Kezhong (retired on 28 April 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence
Mr. Song Lizhong
Ms. Zheng Lin

The biographical details of all Directors are set out in pages 32 to 40 of
this report. Among members of the Board, Mr. Chi Shaolin is the son-in-
law of Ms. Xu Yiming, and Mr. Jiang Taike is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Mao Wanjun. Save as disclosed herein, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there is no other financial, business, family or other material
or relevant relationships among the members of the Board.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director having
sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and strategic planning
experience and/or expertise relevant to the business of the Group. The
Board brings a variety of experiences and expertise to the Company.

Functions of the Board

The Board takes overall responsibility to oversee all major matters of the
Group, including the formulation and approval of all policy matters,
considering and approving overall development strategies, financial
objectives, annual budget, investment proposals, monitoring and
controlling the operation and financial performance, internal control and
risk management systems of the Group and to assume the responsibilities
of corporate governance of the Group.
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TRERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Board Meetings and Board Practices

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board held 7 meetings
and 4 of the meetings were regular Board meetings. The Directors can
attend meetings in person or through other means of electronic
communication in accordance with the Company’s articles of
association. The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”) will assist the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meeting
and all Directors have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda
for Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings are
given to the Directors and Board procedures complied with the articles
of association of the Company, as well as relevant rules and regulations.
The Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to the matters
brought before the meetings. All Directors have separate and
independent access to the senior management and the Company
Secretary at all time and will be able to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense. The Company Secretary is also
responsible for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are
observed and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to
the compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings. All minutes
of Board meetings were recorded in sufficient detail the matters
considered by the Board and the decisions reached.

The number of the Board meetings held and the attendance of each
Director at the Board meetings for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been set out as follows:
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No. of Board meeting held: EEHESEERRH

Name of the Director E=ps

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Chi Shaolin BOMITE 717
Mr. Jiang Taike BRI E 6/7
Mr. Li Jianming FRAKLE 6/7
Mr. Mao Wanjun EBHELE 717
Mr. Kang Jin Won =REBERE 717
Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (retired on 28 April 2011) BHE#EEE (R ZT——FMA =+ /\BRE) 3/3
Mr. Sui Shikai (retired on 28 April 2011) Bl EE (R E——FEm A+ N\ REME) 3/3
Non-executive Directors FHUTES

Ms. Xu Yiming Bt 57
Mr. Du Li (retired on 28 April 2011) HAEE(RZZBE——FEOAZ+/\BRE) 3/3
Mr. Wu Kezhong (retired on 28 April 2011) RREXER-_TZ—FWA=-+N\REMD) 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence FERLE 6/7
Mr. Song Lizhong R RFEHE 6/7
Ms. Zheng Lin L5 S 6/7
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TEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
General Meetings

The number of general meetings held and the attendance of each
Director at the general meetings for the year ended 31 December 2011
have been set out as follows:

EEE )
BEAE
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Attendance at general meeting: SHEBRRASHIRE 1
Name of the Director Expns

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Chi Shaolin BAMSEE 171
Mr. Jiang Taike BAREE 171
Mr. Li Jianming FREAKE 171
Mr. Mao Wanjun EEHSLLE 171
Mr. Kang Jin Won ERELEE 11
Mr. Tseng Chih-ming (retired on 28 April 2011) ZESEE (R ——FWHA=+/\HRT) 1/1
Mr. Sui Shikai (retired on 28 April 2011) Bl (R_E——FWA-+N\BEMD) 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Ms. Xu Yiming t3-3 3 Gm 171
Mr. Du Li (retired on 28 April 2011) HAEE(R—T——FMA=-+/\BIEM) 11
Mr. Wu Kezhong (retired on 28 April 2011) RAEBFEERZZ——FOA-TNRARERE) 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence SFERLA 11
Mr. Song Lizhong RALRFHE 1/1
Ms. Zheng Lin 157 o 171

Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Each of the executive and non-executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, i.e. 16 November 2010, and each of
the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 25 October 2010, all are subject to termination in accordance with
the provisions of the service contract or by either party giving the other
not less than three months’ prior written notice.

By virtue of article 83(3) of the articles of association of the Company,
Directors shall have the power from time to time and at any time to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy of the
Board or as an addition to the existing Board. Any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general
meeting of Shareholders after his appointment and be subject to re-
election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be
eligible for re-election.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and Removal (Continued)

In compliance with the code provision in A.4.2 of the CG Code all
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Furthermore, pursuant to the article 84(1) of the articles of
association of the Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Independent non-executive Directors have played a crucial role in the
Board by providing their independent judgment at the Board meeting
and scrutinizing the Group’s performance. Their views carry significant
weight in the Board’s decision, in particular, they bring an impartial view
to bear on issues of the Group’s strategy, performance and control. All
independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management experience and
have provided their professional advices to the Board. The independent
non-executive Directors provide independent advice on the Group's
business strategy, results and management so that all interests of the
Shareholders will be taken into account, and the interests of the
Company and its Shareholders can be protected.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board consists
of three independent non-executive Directors with one of them, Mr. Shu
Wa Tung, Laurence, possessing appropriate professional qualification in
accounting or related financial management expertise as required by
Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received the annual written confirmations of
independence from each of its independent non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based on such
confirmation, considers that all the independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Mr. Song Lizhong and Ms. Zheng
Lin, are independent and they all meet the specific independence
guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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TRERHRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Chairman and CEO

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the CEO should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Group does not at present separate the roles
of the chairman and CEO. For the year ended 31 December 2011, Mr.
Chi Shaolin is both the chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Group.
He has extensive experience and in-depth knowledge in the electronics
industry and is responsible for the overall strategic planning, business
planning and decision making in all material matters in the Group. The
Board considers that vesting the roles of chairman and CEO in the same
individual is beneficial to the business prospects and management of the
Group. The balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation
of the Board and the senior management, which comprise experienced
and high caliber individuals. Notwithstanding the above, the Board will
review the current structure from time to time. When at the appropriate
time and if a candidate with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and
experience can be identified within or outside the Group, the Company
may make necessary arrangements.

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the Company advises that
(i) Mr. Jiang Taike (the vice CEO and an executive Director) has been
appointed as a director of Tianjin Rituo (a subsidiary of the Company) in
February 2011 and (ii) Mr. Jiang Taike and Mr. Mao Wanjun (an
executive Director) have each been appointed as a director of Huizhou
Daya Bay (a subsidiary of the Company) in May 2011.

Delegation of Powers

The Board delegates the authority and responsibility for implementing
day-to-day operations, administration and management of the Group’s
businesses to the chief executive officer, the executive Directors, the
senior management and certain specific responsibilities to the Board
committees of the Company. When the Board delegates aspects of its
management and administration functions to members of the
management team, it gives clear directions as to the powers of
management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances where the
management team needs to report back and obtain prior approval from
the Board before making decisions or entering into any commitments on
behalf of the Company. The delegated functions and work tasks are
regularly reviewed.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has subscribed appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions taken against
Directors arising out of corporate activities since 31 March 2012.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) an audit committee; (i) a compensation
and benefits committee; and (iii) a nomination committee, with defined
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees which
explain their respective role and the authority delegated to them by the
Board are available on the website of the Stock Exchange and the
Company. The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice and other assistance in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee
Composition

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
pursuant to a resolution of Directors passed on 25 October 2010 in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make recommendation to
the Board on the appointment and removal of external auditors, review
the financial statements and material advice in respect of financial
reporting, and overseeing the internal control procedures of the
Company. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely, Mr.
Shu Wa Tung, Laurence, Mr. Song Lizhong and Ms. Zheng Lin, all of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Shu Wa Tung,
Laurence currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee has adopted the terms of reference which are in line
with the CG Code. For the purpose of complying with the New CG Code
adopted by the Company on 22 March 2012, the Board has adopted
revised terms of reference for the Audit Committee on 22 March 2012.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.
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EREBRE

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Audit Committee held 2
meetings to make recommendation on the re-appointment of external
auditor, review financial statements, financial reporting system and

internal control procedures of the Company. And the attendance of each
Audit Committee member at the meetings for the year have been set out
as follows:
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No. of Audit Committee meetings held: EEHEREESES
Name of the Audit Committee members EREESRERA
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence EFER LA 2/2
Mr. Song Lizhong RILFRFTHE 2/2
Ms. Zheng Lin 57 Sogm 2/2
Compensation and Benefits Committee FHREANEES
Composition Fa)o4

The Company established a compensation and benefits committee (the
“C&B Committee”) on 25 October 2010 with written terms of reference.
For the purpose of complying with the New CG Code adopted by the
Company on 22 March 2012, the Board has adopted revised terms of
reference for the C&B Committee on 22 March 2012. The primary duties
of the C&B Committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of the Company. The compensation
and remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the
Company is subject to regular review by the C&B Committee to ensure
that the levels of their remuneration and compensation are appropriate
and none of the Directors determine their own remuneration. The C&B
Committee consists of three members, namely, Ms. Zheng Lin, Mr. Shu
Wa Tung, Laurence (both are independent non-executive Directors) and
Ms. Xu Yiming, a non-executive Director. Ms. Zheng Lin currently serves
as the chairman of the C&B Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Compensation and Benefits Committee (Continued)
Composition (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the C&B Committee held 2
meetings to review and make recommendation on the remuneration
policy and structure relating to Directors and senior management of the
Company. And the attendance of each C&B Committee member at the
meetings for the year have been set out as follows:
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No. of C&B Committee meetings held:

Name of C&B Committee members FHRENEEEHEN SR

Ms. Xu Yiming 3373 Gn 1/2
Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence HEREE 2/2
Ms. Zheng Lin A+ 2/2

Remuneration Policy for Directors and Senior Management

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is determined on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the C&B
Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance, experience, responsibility, workload and time devoted to
the Company and comparable market statistics. Each of the executive
Directors is entitled to a basic salary which is reviewed annually. In
addition, each of the executive Directors may receive a discretionary
bonus as the Board may recommend. Such amount has to be approved
by the C&B Committee.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme on 25 October 2010.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to selected eligible participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high caliber employees and attract human resources that are
valuable to the Group and any invested entity.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Nomination Committee
Composition

The Company established a nominating and corporate governance
committee on 25 October 2010 (which was renamed as Nomination
Committee on 22 March 2012, the “Nomination Committee”) with
written terms of reference. For the purpose of complying with the New
CG Code adopted by the Company on 22 March 2012, the Board has
adopted revised terms of reference for the Nomination Committee on 22
March 2012. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and to recommend to the Board the suitable candidates for
Directors after consideration of the nominees’ independence and quality
in order to ensure fairness and transparency of all nominations. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Chi
Shaolin, an executive Director Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence and Mr. Song
Lizhong (both an independent non-executive Director). Mr. Chi Shaolin
currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Nomination Committee
held 2 meetings to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board. And the attendance of each Nomination Committee member at
the meetings for the year have been set out as follows:
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No. of Nomination Committee meeting held: CEEFREZERS

Name of the Nomination Committee members REZEGNERE

Mr. Chi Shaolin EOMTE 2/2

Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence SFIERR S 2/2

Mr. Song Lizhong RIUIBIEHE 2/2
Corporate Governance Function EERBAE

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board in compliance with Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, which
include (a) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the board; (b)
to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management of the Group; (c)
to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to
review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the corporate governance report. Details of the work of the Board in
relation to the corporate governance function for the year ending 31
December 2012 will be disclosed in the corporate governance report in
the Company’s 2012 annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERHRE

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the chief financial officer and the finance
department, is responsible for the preparation of the Group’s financial
statements for each financial year which shall give a true and fair view of
the financial position, performance and cash flow of the Group for that
period. In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011, the Board has selected suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgments and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and
to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities. The Board is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the Company’s
external auditors, on the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “independent Auditors’ Report” in this report.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the fees paid or payable to
the Company’s external auditor, in respect of their audit and non-audit
services were as follows:
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RMB’000
Type of Services RS E R ARMEF T
Non-audit services FEZBRTES 190
Statutory audit services ETE B ARTS 2,532
Total 1Bzt 2,722

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for ensuring the reliabilities
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems on, among
other things, financial, operational and compliance controls. The
Company has prepared an internal control report, covering all material
controls, including financial and operation for the year ended 31
December 2011. The said internal control report compiled by the
Company has to be brought to the attention of the Board and the Audit
Committee and concluded that the Group operate satisfactorily and has
fully complied with provisions of the CG Code regarding internal control
systems in general for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Continuous Professional Development

The Directors have been informed of the requirement under Code
Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code regarding continuous professional
development. Details of how each Director complies with such
requirement for the year ending 31 December 2012 will be set out in the
corporate governance report in the Company’s 2012 annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERHRE

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely and
effective communication with Shareholders and investors. The Board
also recognizes that effective communication with investors is the key to
establish investor confidence and to attract new investors. Therefore, the
Group is committed to maintaining a high degree of transparency to
ensure that the investors and the Shareholders receiving accurate, clear,
comprehensive and timely information of the Group by the publication
of annual reports, interim reports, announcements and circulars. The
Company also publishes all corporate correspondence on the Company’s
website at http://www.hong-lin.com.cn. The Board continues to maintain
regular dialogues with institutional investors and analysts from time to
time to keep them informed of the Group’s strategy, operations,
management and plans. The Directors and the members of the Board
committees would attend and are available to answer questions at annual
general meetings of the Company. Separate resolutions would be
proposed at general meetings of the Company on each substantially
separate issue.

Shareholders’ Right

In accordance with the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a
general meeting must be taken by poll except where the chairman, in
good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to a
procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands.
Therefore, all votes of the Shareholders at general meetings shall be
taken by poll. The results of voting by poll will be declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

How Shareholders can convene an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposals at Shareholders” meetings

Pursuant to the Articles, any one or more Shareholder holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the secretary of the Company by mail at Unit 1805, Admiralty
Centre Tower Two, 18 Harcourt Road, Admiralty, Hong Kong, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition and such
meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, there has been no significant
change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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TRERHRE

INVESTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS RELATIONS

(Continued)
Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining a clear, timely and
effective communication with the Shareholders and investors of the
Company. The Board also recognizes that effective communication with
its investors is critical in establishing investor confidence and to attract
new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to maintaining a high
degree of transparency to ensure the investors of the Company and the
Shareholders will receive accurate, clear, comprehensive and timely
information of the Group through the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, announcements and circulars. The Company also
publishes all corporate communications on the Company’s website at
http://www.hong-lin.com.cn. The Board maintains regular dialogues with
institutional investors and analysts from time to time to keep them
informed of the Group’s strategy, operations, management and plans.
The Directors and members of various board committees will attend the
annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions raised by
the Shareholders. The resolution of every important proposal will be
proposed at general meetings separately.

Voting at general meetings of the Company are conducted by way of poll
in accordance with the Listing Rules. The poll results will be announced
at general meetings and published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, respectively. In addition, the Company regularly
meets with institutional investors, financial analysts and financial media,
and promptly releases information related to any significant progress of
the Company, so as to promote the development of the Company
through mutual and efficient communications.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to the Board
by sending their written request to the Company’s correspondence
address in Hong Kong.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RBERE

TO THE MEMBERS OF HL TECHNOLOGY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HL Technology
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 67 to 164, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2011, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on
Auditing issued by the International Federation of Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B RBERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2012
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income i“il}

SeZHEBRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

2011 2010
—2——f —EFF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k3 ARBT T AREFT
Revenue Wz 7 1,865,376 1,413,960
Cost of sales SHE P AN (1,486,971) (1,088,346)
Gross profit EH 378,405 325,614
Other income, other gains and losses H A - H s & EsiE 8 22,080 (2,579)
Distribution and selling expenses DI REERY (49,056) (27,233)
Administrative and general expenses TR —MREX (116,714) (72,525)
Research and development expenses EEF = (62,179) (30,932)
Finance costs ELEZ99N 9 (37,536) (19,090)
Profit before taxation R B B e A 10 135,000 173,255
Income tax expenses Frig®if 12 (15,640) (18,234)
Profit for the year F ) A 119,360 155,021
Other comprehensive income Hofth 2
Exchange difference on translating BMEINEREZ
foreign operations PE X =58 (733) 742
Total comprehensive income for the year F& 2 HE UK E%E 118,627 155,763
Profit attributable to: IATE A RERT
— Owners of the Company et WNGIE ZS DN 116,071 152,670
— Non-controlling interests — JEPE RS 3,289 2,351
119,360 155,021
Total comprehensive income A TETEEZHKGERE
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RREHEEAN 115,338 153,412
— Non-controlling interests — RS R 3,289 2,351
118,627 155,763
Earnings per share — Basic (RMB cents) WWEF — EAR(ARESD) 14 16.1 27.5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e PRI R

As at 31 December 2011
R-F——#+-A=+—A

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

FRBEE

2011
—E——F

RMB’000

ARBTR

2010
—E-FF

RMB’000
ARET T

Property, plant and equipment VI - BB Nk A 15 655,398 448,875
Prepaid lease payments FEREE 16 47,539 30,108
Intangible assets BIVEE 17 35,431 9,672
Goodwill [EES 18 7,746 —
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE B 19 4,773 2,716
750,887 491,371
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 319,518 178,541
Trade and other receivables 2 5 A EWGRIE 21 1,061,267 725,544
Prepaid lease payments TENHEE 16 1,014 642
Other financial assets Hih ot EE 25 5,229 —
Pledged bank deposits BRI T X 22 49,574 424,714
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIR e 23 106,650 160,408
1,543,252 1,489,849
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and other payables B 5N E M FRIE 24 524,347 384,569
Other financial liabilities HEEmaE 25 6,311 1,879
Income tax liabilities Frigtiata 7,765 8,195
Bank borrowings WITEE 26 653,471 663,106
1,191,894 1,057,749
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFR 351,358 432,100
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRDARE
LIABILITIES 1,102,245 923,471
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERK #E
Share capital & A 27 97,401 97,401
Share premium and reserves RSB REE 934,293 812,487
Equity attributable to owners RREEB AEILEER
of the Company 1,031,694 909,888
Non-controlling interests FEVEHIESS 60,833 13,583
TOTAL EQUITY R 1,092,527 923,471
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBAE 19 9,718 —
1,102,245 923,471

The consolidated financial statements on page 67 to 164 were approved

F7THEFIMABENGEUBRRNKEES

and authorized for issue by the board of directors on 22 March 2012 and &R _-ZT—_F =+ HH#t & RE#ER

are signed on its behalf by:

Chi Shaolin Li Jianming
BAR ESEL
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
5= '

68  HLTechnology Group Limited o i EEBR A

T WHATATRERRE



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
E T —F A=+ —HILFE

Share
capital

Share
premium

RHEE
RMB'000

T AR¥

Special
reserve

BhIRE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RATREAERS

Share
awards
reserve

byiEd

e AR
RMB'000

RMB'000

Foreign
Statutory  currency
Other translation

reserve

surplus
reserve
EEBER
ke
RMB'000
BT )
(note (c)

reserve

Bt
RMB'000
T ARE

below)

Retained
profits

REEF
RMB'000

Non-
controlling
Total interests
a5 FEHEs
RMB’000  RMB’000

=

Total

it
RMB'000

T AREFL

Asat 1 January 2010 WZZ-FE-F-H 60,943 33,236 74,394 (16,186) 4,466 33,045 — 126,660 316,558 10,392 326,950
Profit for the year EREMN - - - - - - — 152,670 152,670 2351 155,021
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 £ H {12 E M2 - - - - - - 742 - 742 — 742
Total comprehensive income FERANREE

for the year — — — — — — 742 152,670 153,412 2,351 155,763
Capital contribution from owners RAFERAMLTE

of the Company 1,951 32,189 - - - - - - 34,140 — 34,140
Capital contribution from non-controlling it B2 FI3EHE 25T 4

interests of subsidiaries — — - — — — — — — 840 840
Recognition of equity-settled RAEREENRD

share-based payments XATEFE (R 28)

(see note 28) — — — 7,147 — — — — 7,147 — 7,147
Capitalization Issue (as defined in ERET(EER

note 27(ii) FE 27 i) 10,588 (10,589) — — — — — _ - - -
Issue of new shares upon the listing ARARD L

of the Company’s shares BITHR 23,919 405,505 — — — — — — 429,424 — 429424
Transaction costs attributable to issue B {THTREMH R SHA

of new shares —  (30,793) — — — — — —  (30,793) —  (30,793)
Transfer b — — — — — 11,179 — (11,179 — — —
As at 31 December 2010 and

1 January 2011 97,401 429,549 74,394 (9,039) 4,466 44,224 742 268,151 909,888 13,583 923471
Profit for the year EREM - — - - - - — 116071 116,071 3,289 119,360
Other comprehensive income FREEMZERE

for the year — — — - - - (733) - (733) — (733)
Total comprehensive income FE2ENELE

for the year — — - - - - (733) 116,071 115,538 3,289 118,627
Non-controlling interests from business %7 (4 #4545 (R M3 32)

combinations (see note 32) — — — — — — — — — 43,282 43,282
Recognition of equity-settled RAEREENRD

share-based payments (see note 28) SNHFE (R 28) - - — 7,147 - - - - 7,147 - 7,147
Transfer b — — — — — 11,282 — (11,282 — — —
Acquisition of non-controlling interest Y& 32 iER — — - — (679) — — — (679) 679 —
As at 31 December 2011 RZF—F+ZA=1+-H 97,401 429,549 74,394 (1,892) 3,787 55,506 9 372,940 1,031,694 60,633 1,092,527
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—FT——F+_A=+—HIUFE

Notes: Bt

(@)  Special reserve (@ RIS
Special reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal amount of AEERNFRIREEBIERNRABMETRGNEESRR
the shares issued by the Company and the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the BARRAR-EZENFHETEBEAMBBHER
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the group reorganization of the Company in 2008. AEHERBEENETE -

(b)  Other reserve b)  HttfEE
Other reserve arose from acquisition of non-controlling interests in subsidiaries. H iR B BN B A B A0 FE I R s o

(©) Statutory surplus reserve (©) EERBEE
As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the People's REARLFMBI([HE]) CENOBEREERERE
Republic of China (the "PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to E - ARAFREMBARBRTFIAIDIRAEER
maintain a statutory surplus reserve fund which is non-distributable. The HRFEFEED ZEHENBICRETEEANE R
appropriations to such reserve are made out of net profit after taxation of the statutory ATV BHREROBRBELT - ZERBRFBEES
financial statements of the relevant PRC subsidiaries. The statutory surplus reserve fund FIARMEBTFEBE(NE)  WAIRER(LE
can be used to make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion TR REBBRAER -

into capital by means of capitalization issue.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

REKELIDRERE

2011
—_E——5F

RMB’000
ARBT R

2010
—T-TF

RMB’000
AREF 7T

Profit before taxation BRAE B A 135,000 173,255
Adjustments for: BNHIEIR 2 A
Finance costs recognized in profit or loss RN BB RLE R 37,536 19,090
Interest income recognized in profit or loss ERNEE AR B YA (10,149) (436)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BRERBEITE
equipment 36,812 35,748
Amortization of intangible assets | A E R 4,051 1,563
Release of prepaid lease payments TR & E 815 537
Gains on disposals of property, HEWE - BFE k&R E S
plant and equipment (1,688) (355)
Gains on disposals of land use rights HE b A (175) —
Changes in fair value of derivative TESRMITARTES
financial instruments (3,594) 5,805
Allowances recognized (reversed) B Z W IEER (BE)
in respect of trade receivables — net B — 58 16 (193)
Reversal of write-down of inventories B EFE MR — (3,893)
Exchange gains relating to bank borrowings B RJR1TE R AVE 7 Uz (24,709) (7,119)
Recognition of share-based payments RUBROZHNER 7,147 7,147
Operating cash flows before movements EEESEHAINLE
in working capital Bang 181,062 231,149
Increase in trade and other receivables E 5 N H U R IE S N (199,545) (312,230)
Increase in inventories FEIEM (91,641) (59,054)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other H 5 RAMERFIE
payables ZnORA) (2,210) 65,588
Settlement of derivative financial TEeRIAESEE
instruments 8,026 (3,926)
Cash used in operations REFAR S (104,308) (78,473)
Interest paid EHE (44,152) (20,076)
Income taxes paid B PSR (19,086) (15,990)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES R& EB AR S FE (167,546) (114,539)
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HE-—F——F+=A=+—AUFE

AN 2010
—g-—-F —T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBREESHHRERE

Placement of pledged bank deposits fo & B HIRRITFER (93,655) (479,195)
Release of pledged bank deposits R IR B IR ERTTF R 468,795 95,952
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BMERR (211,450) (171,432)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments BEMERAEBEMNES

for land use rights (19,342) (15,480)
Purchase of intangible assets BERTZEE (3,910) (6,735)
Proceeds on disposals of property, HEME - BFEMERE

plant and equipment FriS /I8 11,008 14,100
Proceeds on disposals of prepaid lease HETHERERNES

payments for land use rights FriS /I8 899 1,097
Proceeds from disposals of intangible assets & L& EFF 15 KA — 1,321
Proceeds on disposals of a former subsidiary & RiHE A B RIE — 10,000
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WS B R RIR R FEE 32

subsidiaries (1,283) —
Interest received B U F B 10,149 436

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING RETBME (A REeFE

ACTIVITIES 161,211 (549,936)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings EEFERIE 1,150,096 1,215,971
Repayments of borrowings EBEEE (1,197,519) (898,443)
Proceeds from issue of new shares upon R EIRRAD E TR EETRIAR

the listing of the Company’s shares FR1SE = 429,424
Capital contribution from owners RAFEBAREE

of the Company = 34,140
Capital contribution of subsidiaries B ARETEE — 840
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BITHIREE R SR

new shares — (30,793)

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING MEEE (FTA) MERSFE
ACTIVITIES (47,423) 751,139

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASHAND B4 RBESZEY (RL)

CASH EQUIVALENTS SR E (53,758) 86,664
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FONRERELSEEY

AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 160,408 73,744
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRES

AT END OF YEAR, ZE|Y

representing by bank balances and cash BSRITAEER MR ® 106,650 160,408
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1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

HL Technology Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 16 November 2007 as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its parent and ultimate holding
company is Chenlin International Joint Stock Company Limited
(“Chenlin International”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Chi
Shaolin (“Mr. Chi”).

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate profile and
corporate information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and is also
engaged in the sales of signal cable assembly, power cord
assembly, wire and cable products, connectors, antennas,
automotive wiring harness and other products. The Group is mainly
engaged in the manufacture and sales of signal cable assembly,
power cord assembly, wire and cable products, connectors,
antennas, automotive wiring harness and other products. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 35.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and

revised IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards

Board (“IASB”):

Amendments to IFRSs Improvements to IFRSs issued in
2010

IAS 24 (as revised in 2009)  Related Party Disclosures

Amendments to IAS 32 Classifications of Rights Issues

Amendments to IFRIC Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement

IFRIC Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments
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2.

74

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

The application of the above new and revised IFRSs in the current
year has no material effect on the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements and/or disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early adopted the following new and revised

IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:
IFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial Assets'

IFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

IFRS 9 and IFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9
(Amendments) and Transition Disclosures?

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements?

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements?

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities?

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement?

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income®
IAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets*
IAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits?

IAS 1 (Amendments)

IAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements?

IAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures?
IAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase
of a Surface Mine?

IFRIC 20

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

o Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets will be effective
from 1 January 2015, with earlier application permitted. The
Standard requires all recognized financial assets that are within the
scope of 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” to be measured at either amortized cost or fair
value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows; and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding are
generally measured at amortized cost. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at fair value.

IFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities that
have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and/or
unconsolidated structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in IFRS 12 are more extensive than those in the
current standards.

IFRS 12 is effective for the Group’s financial statements for the year
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is
permitted provided that all of these five standards, including IFRS
10, IFRS 11, IAS 27 (Revised 2011) and IAS 28 (Revised 2011) are
applied early at the same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five standards will
be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013. The application of this
standard may have significant impact on amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements. However, the directors of the
Company have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of
the application of these Standards and hence have not yet quantified
the extent of the impact.

IFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The
Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements.
The scope of IFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial
instrument items and non-financial instrument items for which
other IFRSs require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except in specified
circumstances. In general, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 13
are more extensive than those in the current standards. For
example, quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for financial
instruments only under IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
will be extended by IFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within
its scope.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

IFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that IFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of
the new Standard may not affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated financial statements but may and result in more
extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The amendments to IAS 1 retain the option to present profit or loss
and other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. However, the
amendments to IAS 1 require additional disclosures to be made in
the other comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items
that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b)
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to IAS 1 are effective for Group’s annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly when
the amendments are applied in the future accounting periods.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
other new or revised standards and interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 '-.__.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHBERAE
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in SAVERRCEERKF e EBEE
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the SEMHERFBREEAMRER - 5
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures I GRAEUTBRREEBITES T
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the HEBINEBRARMEHIEERNEBEE -
Stock Exchange and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the LAV RRIZFE LK AR (ES TS
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which BITEURFEFERIN) @ sHEEHR
are measured at fair value, as explained in the accounting policies N2 TR o S AR — AR 4% BR pE IR ER
set out below. Historical cost basis is generally based on the fair BEMTHRENATFEERE -
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.
The principal accounting policies are set out below: FESHBEREIOT ¢
Basis of consolidation mAHK
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial SEMERRBIEANRN R MAR B FTIE
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company HEE(HERBAT) WS ERE -
(its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the EARNT AL LT LIS L&
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so KW MEERPERR S ABAEZ
as to obtain benefits from its activities. TSR S HE o
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year RERNKBESEENHEARESATI
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive BABHBREREEHELEMBE (R
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective BERTME)ELEA MR -
date of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements MEBARMPEHRERNVERSELR
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with BSOS S hEHEAEFEE
those used by other members of the Group. MR B ARIFTERAE B -
All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are FMEEERNARIENRS - &% A
eliminated on consolidation. KA E R E RHE -
Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately RNHEB AT I dl s E N AR EEH

from the Group's equity therein. HERDHZS -
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3.

78

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interest even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance (effective from 1 January 2010 onwards).

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognized and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date (see the accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale
in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance
with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair value or when applicable on the basis
specified in another standard.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
included as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments
that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with IAS 39 or IAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, as
appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognized
in profit or loss.

The policy described above is applied to all business combinations
that take place on or after 1 January 2010.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to

each of the cash-generating units (the “CGU”) (or groups of CGU)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXBBRBE®
(Continued)
Goodwill (Continued) BE ()
A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for BB ReELEMNREF Rk
impairment annually or more frequently whenever there is BT RAEDRBREMA LI
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on EEETRS - AR RS AEE
an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which goodwill AREEBMS TEIEREZREELS
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that B RS B A R AT TR E R -
reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than MESEEENL 2 TREEEIREE
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated HE - ASERAERE  BXAESR
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the EZENZAAEERAE  RERE
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of BNASEEZREABRLADERE
the carrying amount of the each asset in the unit. Any impairment UHMEE - FAEREBESEE
loss for goodwill is recognized directly in profit or loss in the RaftAKRKEBERZEANER - BEER
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. An impairment ZREEEBTEREZEAMED -

loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of HHEMBERSESENMMS @ BHEE
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of profit or ERBEeRETHERERZRE -

loss on disposal.

Revenue recognition W R

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received WEHIRD e ERR B A ETE -
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, WHRDHEAEFPESE BN LR EMLE
rebates and other similar allowance. LUEBLER 3R -

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are HEE MR ERK A T IRFR (B2
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following NEMRBEEER ZF) T AR

conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks o AEECDHERAMEELZERE
and rewards of ownership of goods; RN ERERTE R

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement o AEFWEIXE—REZYESH
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective WHEERE  TERREBEEMEN
control over the goods sold; BRI bIAE

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; . W &R AR et &

e itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the o  HISHEMALBEMNRRAERA
transaction will flow to the Group; and ZEB R

e the cost incurred or to be incurred in respect of the . BERGFELSE TFTELE ZKA
transaction can be measured reliably. AJLAR] SEHbET & ©
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income ban be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits
received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally
classified as finance lease. To the extent the allocation of the lease
payments can be made reliably, leasehold land is classified as
finance leases if substantially all the risk and rewards incidental to
ownership of the land element is transferred to the Group. In other
cases, leasehold land is classified as operating leases.

HL Technology Group Limited ¢ JHEHTEE AR A A
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognized in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. RMB) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the foreign currency translation reserve).

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognized to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all
or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of each reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EAETBRME @
(Continued)
Borrowing costs (ER= 2%
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, WHE - iR AEERTKEE (BIFZ
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets REAAEERTERGEHEENEE)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for BEREENEERAE  BINARETEE
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until RRA  EEHBEEERNBAARER
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use TERESAHIEE -
or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific AEKREERHFXHNFEEEERIR
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is BERBAIRERA - BFAERLK
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. VB SR AR -
All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the PrEREMEERAGNEESHRNE
period in which they are incurred. AR o
Government grants B
Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable BR#EREEAEEEARE/EN
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching B BT 8 B BT IS B0 {5 £ 2 S & M B Al B
to them and that the grants will be received. FrIn & HER
Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic B DR AEBER MM RMEEN
basis over the periods in which the Group recognizes as expenses L PN R S )iss Sk
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate. R ARME RTHEMOEERN
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the B AEBERE  ERFUAEMTR
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current BRFRBEE  AEHKEPBRIEK
assets are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated NERBETRARRBREENER
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss over FHIERERS -
the useful lives of the related assets.
Government grants that are receivable as compensation for B ER BB EERXHEX
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving VA R 1) 75 52 B4R £ 3 S R 2R AR B A AR Y
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related BNRS B 75 R B - MUERER AN 1B 25 HERR
costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
Retirement benefit costs R R A
Payments to state-managed retirement benefits schemes are ) B 2% P B 2R ) AR AR AR 5T 81 S AN B 3R
charged as expenses when employees have rendered service ERNE B IRE R T Al 28 % S HRA
entitling them to the contributions. 1E R R RS -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their
estimated residual value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognized impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for its intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognized.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent payments for leasehold land and
are released over the lease terms on a straight-line basis. Prepaid
lease payments which are to be released in the next twelve months
or less are classified as current assets.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXEHBERBEw
(Continued)
Intangible assets BEE
Intangible assets acquired separately BUWENEREEE
Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are BUKBAEAFHERNERLEE
carried at costs less accumulated amortization and any YRk AR R ETEE 8E M AT A R EHRVE E 1B
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization for intangible assets FIBR o ] A HA A BR BT B B 1 5
with finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their RE(EETAT B F B LA B 55T IR B
estimated useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with B AR BREEAFEHATHNERLE
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent EIRAHIBRE H12 2R EEIEY
accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting policy in R(R TXEBIRDEERERENZ
respect of impairment losses on non-current assets below). TR ©
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are BIrEREREEMEENERIEES
measured at the difference between the net disposed proceeds and SR EFEREERMENE=8T
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss 2 WRKRIEEREERENERER

in the period when the asset is derecognized.

Research and development expenditure g

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in MEFHOEINEEL SRR AR

the period in which it is incurred. X e

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development EETIAESFEDEREE  HEER

(or from the development phase of an internal project) shall be B (NS B MR FTEALER

recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been NEELEBEEEE -

demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so . R E AT SERK B B EE A HE A
that it will be available for use or sale; HHE

e its intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell . EXKEFNEERFEAKTEESR
it; B

e its ability to use or sell the intangible asset; e  BRAMAHLEERTEE:

e how the intangible asset will generate probable future o B EERREE L KRR EFZM
economic benefits; R

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other o BRMBEMM - M LEMEIRTNK
resources to complete the development and to use or sell the FENERSTEEELEE &

intangible asset; and

e its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to o ARHARIMASHEELEER
the intangible asset during its development. HFISXEEEN -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development expenditure (Continued)

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the
intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized,
development expenditure is recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are identified
and recognized separately from goodwill and are recognized at
their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their
cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment loss. The intangible asset will be
amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful lives.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset,
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, and are recognized in profit or
loss when the asset is derecognized.

HL Technology Group Limited ¢ JHEHTEE AR A A

3.

BEASTHERME»)

BREE#)
R % ()

MAMELENELEEM S ERANES
BENEBVEEBRTE EXFHIER
i B ERATRPTEE R RO AR © fiw I
EAELNELEEN R - RIF%
M g@nNEEHENMERER -

NF BRI NEEEO B EET
SR AR B At 8 58 B B3R SR (0
B)  REBSE N A ERR N
LR -

REBEEHITRENETLEE

EBaMRBENETEEEREDH
Bl K FER - XS RIE B A
B (R REMNA) R -

RYIFHERE - ERBERAERFHN
BB ERK AR R AT 8H R AT R
WEERIE - B EE/RZEAER
FHAFLORRHE -

RERGERABELEERMESNWRSE
BERCALEMSIRFREZEENR
EENEEFH) ST ARREREER
MR EE A ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of non-current assets other than financial
assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its non-current assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognized as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized as
income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the two
categories, including financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL,
of which interest income is included in other gains and losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset
is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminated or significant reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or
financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EXREFTHEBE®

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued) @I AE)

Financial assets (Continued) TRHEE (&)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued) EAFEGAEGHEE (&)

e itforms part of a contract containing one or more embedded . HEEKRB S —BRZERAITEL
derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition AMARN—E5  MBERest%E
and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset B399 &R T A : ERNTE
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL. AT EEAEER (BEXER)

HEE /RN HER AR

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes WMAFEFABZNSHEENAFE
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognized directly in e B EELANAFEEHEE
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss SHHEETEEER - RNIERER
recognized in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned EBFEERZEREEMRINZER
on the financial assets. MREAIE o

Loans and receivables B R IEW A

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed BExkERZEASEERBFESN BTN
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. RZHETETREE  RFEENAR
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including MG EWEBE - YIXERE  BERK
trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank EWFIA(BIEE S M HMEKRFIE - 2
balances and cash) are carried at amortized cost using the effective IR T ERARBRITEHRRIRS) JiE
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see BB F) B 8 85 A AR B 34 5
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below). BEBEYR(ETXEESMEERE

BRI o

Impairment of financial assets TR EERE

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for SREE(GRATEAFABENSMEE

indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Bon) 2R & mE R E RS AR A

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence RoERERBEBREREMEE TR

that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial ARREREANV T HERZEREE

recognition of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows BEBE T BN EEHEmMYIEE

of the financial assets have been impacted. - Ze®MEERRBDHIE -

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could FESREENREREZIE A -

include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or o BEIT NS E O IR & AR BN E

5

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in . E R A KN E B A A sk HE R ) B sk

interest or principal payments; or PN =17
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

J default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organization.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit terms of the customers, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit
or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized, the previously recognized
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognized.

HL Technology Group Limited ¢ JHEHTEE AR A A
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. EREHBEME®
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) eWITHEE)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments THEERKRETA
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity EEEERTZERAENRKRETATY
are classified according to the substance of the contractual REMFIY ALz EEHEHEE
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability FERETAZEEDE -

and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual BRETADNERTEERTBREMES
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its BRZ2EEFHEFSESR2ETME
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified Ko AEENEREBE RO AELTF
into financial liabilities at FVTPL and other financial liabilities. Bt ABmeRaEREmemasE -
Effective interest method BT E0%

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the ERFBEEATECHABEN A B M
amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest ZHENAUARSBEN BT HZFE -
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the ERMEESEREBERBEAIERSE
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through sk (A0 A ) B A AR E R 2RER
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a SNHRERITENFER -

shorter period.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis other FERTIZERNEEERER  mMolE

than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the BIRNEE qﬁ-)\?aﬁﬁﬂ’]ipﬂg\fiﬂ’]iﬁlj

interest expense is included in net gains or losses. AT ABZFEE -

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss B FEFFA BN E/HEE

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial B REEERNVIAERRE ABEESEI

liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL on BTEARAFYEFAEBRZCHEE

initial recognition. AlgnsBARATEFABRZE®E

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading WmETMEHNEREE(BIEEENS

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if: R BAERIN AT EVIIAERS R IEE AR

ATEEAMR

e such designation eliminated or significant reduces a o ZIETEHKRIARED T AJRELE

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would B R ESER T EO 2 ¢ &

otherwise arise; or
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising on remeasurement recognized directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or
loss recognized in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including bank borrowings and trade and
other payables) are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. BEASHERGR@®
(Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued) SWMIAE)
Derecognition ARIETESR
The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the REZEERESRNENERNE MR -
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when it S ECHEENZSEEENBR B
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and REB A N e HRERE T 2 — F R
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group AEBFETHERECMEE - WAL
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards B REBINKRIRE FTAHE 2 BRI H
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the R K ER o WEEEREEREE
Group continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its AIFEEeRREANEECREBERR
continuing involvement and recognizes an associated liability. If AR EX N ABEAERE - MAE
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of BRABCEZCHEEMEREZEBRI
ownership of a transferred financial asset the Group continues to mEBREER  AEEEEERSHE
recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized ENERRGDWER Z A8 RIEHER
borrowing for the proceeds received. BREE -
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference R TBL2HEREREER  BEEFE®R
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the EEEREERREREREM2EK
consideration received and receivable and receivable and the RERRNER R Z R RE ZEMN
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other ZER  BRERERPER -
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in
profit or loss.
The Group derecognizes financial liability when, and only when, REBRRENBBE TR E TR
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The B BUESEmRRIEEREmEE -
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability HIEEZRNeHaEREESRE N LE
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized NREzEZBRIERER -
in profit or loss.
Share based payment transactions ROZXNFZRS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions UESEERGZNZXE
The fair value of services received determined by reference to the EWBERBE 2 A TFEDELERELR
fair value of equity instruments granted at the grant date is HERNRETAZRAFEREE 1
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a WMEZSENGEBEIRXE e ERE
corresponding increase in equity (share awards reserve). (R 1n 82 B &) R E L AR FERE A -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates RMEHR - AEBETEYBERER
of the number of equity instruments that are expected to ultimately BREBZIRANTARE LET - BRI 5RB
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting Atz 28 (ma) hRianER -
period, if any, is recognized in profit or loss, with at corresponding e R D SR EN P {E L AR R o

adjustment to share awards reserve.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. fEEFZEERR

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are RAREEFREAMEIM s NEH

described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to SRR EARELIEEBRBEMEKR

make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying BEvEERBEREDEEDHE - &

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from s NERER - HET RIEE R “%%EAWEE

other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based EHERAEEZEMEE - BEE

on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be RS FEEE -

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an AEBFERF G REBRRE - g

ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in FHbEr 2 ERTEEH ST EEATE -

the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects BIHEZEAEETHEER West

only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods T EEHEBMRARRBAEAOELEY

if the revision affects both current and future periods. 2 RERE s 2 EE T HARE A AR R Ef

EHEITHER -

The following are the key sources of estimation uncertainty at the R|mERR - At AT 2 E 2R

end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a (EEHERREYRTHARFEEC EE

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities FEEEEELRERAZ)MT -

within the next financial year.

(@) Estimated impairment of inventories (@ TFEWMGFRE
The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have been AEBSTRRENRIIMENS
suffered from any impairment in accordance with the SR EFEEL DA EIRAM
accounting policy stated in note 3. The amount of the BE - BEEEN S BREFERAR
impairment loss is measured as the difference between B BB E 2 MR EEH -
inventories’ cost and net realizable values.
The identification of impairment of inventories requires the PR EREAE AR A Z 30 5E
use of judgment and estimates of expected net realizable BRI R b5 o MERR A B3R F
value. Where the actual net realizable value is different from EERRREMGET  AlRJgeELEE
the original estimate, a material impairment loss may arise. KBEEE R-_ZTE—F+_H
As at 31 December 2011, the directors of the Company are =+—H ARAESEMNZER
satisfied that this risk is minimal and no allowance for B BN ARBEREBRE XK
obsolete and slow moving inventories was recognized (2010: BMNTEREBE(ZZE 24 &
reversal of allowance of RMB3,893,000). As at 31 December Bl A KRB 3,893,0007T) « 1Y
2011, the carrying amount of the inventories is T——F+_A=+—HB FEX
RMB319,518,000 (2010: RMB178,541,000). REERARR319,518,0007T(=

T -5 AR %178,541,000
JT) °
96  HLTechnology Group Limited * 53 jiEH%EEGR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements NN

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of trade and other
receivables

As explained in note 3, trade and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less impairment. Appropriate allowances for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognized in profit or
loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The Group does not require collateral or other security
against its trade and other receivables. The Group performs
ongoing evaluation of the financial conditions of the Group's
trade and other receivables and when the balances would
not be settled as expected; the Group would impair the
balances and make necessary provision for such trade and
other receivables.

The identification of bad and doubtful debts on trade and other
receivables requires the use of judgment and estimates of
expected future cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows
are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The directors of the Company are satisfied that this risk is
minimal and adequate allowance for doubtful debts was
provided during the year ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010. As at 31 December 2011, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables are approximately
RMB1,061,267,000 net of allowances for doubtful debts of
approximately RMB1,239,000 (2010: RMB725,544,000, net of
allowances for doubtful debts of approximately
RMB1,308,000).

4., HEFZ2EERRE)

(b)
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Continued)

98

4. EETZ2EERR#)

(c) Useful life and residual value of property, plant and 0 W% BERIXENAERF
equipment R FREE
The management determines the residual value, useful lives EREETEME  BERZRED
and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and FIREE AT EBATE
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical BR - BRMGFIREBBEH LS
experience of the actual residual value and useful lives of RIeRERNME - HE REER
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and functions BERFIAEE KA A F R
and may vary significantly as a result of technical innovation KERMAETT - Al e A BT AT &
and keen competition from competitors, resulting in higher BEHFREZIEEFMEREAE
depreciation charge and/or write-off or write-down of B - WFIsREE S A A FHER
technically obsolete assets when residual value or useful lives TEEMGE - SEEUTER LM
are less than previously estimated. As at 31 December 2011, X/ o7 HUSH SkMUR BT PR & &
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment of the E-R_ZE——F+-_A=+—
Group is approximately RMB655,398,000 (2010: B AEEWE  BE&RERR
RMB448,875,000). E{EA R AR 655,398,000 7C(=
T T 5 AR 448,875,000
JT) °
(d) Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets arising d EBSHELENEBERERE
from business combination ERE
Determining whether goodwill and intangible assets arising ETEBAHEEANHERELE
from business combination, such as customers relationship, E(NMEFBE - SERREAM
technology knowhow and other intangible assets, are BmILEHE) RBREEEHED KR
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of BNEEEENSHESELESEMN
respective CGU to which goodwill and intangible assets have FREEBEERGHST - stEEHREE
been allocated. The value in use calculation requires - EEEAGIESHRESAERS
management to estimate the future cash flows expected to EEBMRRKRRESRE  H R
arise from the CGU involving various assumptions as detailed FISFENZIARE - WERK
in note 18. Where the actual future cash flows are less than KIBEREDNIEH  AIRJREESE
expected, impair loss may arise. BRI °
As at 31 December 2011, the carrying amount of goodwill RZE—F+_A=+—H &
was RMB7,746,000 (2010: nil), and the carrying amount of EMEEEASARE7,746,000 7T
the intangible assets arising from combination was —E-ZF T MaHELED
RMB23,179,000 (2010: nil). BREAENEREERARE
23,179,000 L(ZF—FF : T) o
(e) Valuation of financial instruments e EMIENMHKE

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments as detailed in
note 25 and 32.
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4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION (Continued)
(e) Valuation of financial instruments (Continued)

Where the actual inputs underlying the valuation are less
favourable to the expectation, further fair value loss may
arise.

(f) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in relation to the impairment loss of
assets, tax losses and other temporary differences have been
recognized in the consolidated statements of financial
position. The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly
depends on whether sufficient profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognized in profit or loss for the period in which
such a reversal takes place. As at 31 December 2011, the
carrying amount of deferred tax assets of the Group is
approximately RMB4,773,000 (2010: RMB2,716,000).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the group entities will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the
return to shareholders through the optimization of the debt and
equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
included borrowings and net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure regularly.
The Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, and will balance its overall capital
structure through new share issues as well as raising of new
borrowings or the repayment of existing borrowings.

4., HEFZ2EERRE)
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. TETH
(@) Categories of financial instruments @ <RI EEH

2011 2010
—g—-% —2-%%

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P5E AR¥ T ARETIT

Financial assets SREE
— Loan and receivables (including cash ~ — B EWGIE (B1E
and cash equivalents) HeMELEED) (i) 1,114,815 1,257,392
— Financial assets at FVTPL (note 25) — BN ERTABZER
B E (FIEE25) 5,229 —
1,120,044 1,257,392

Financial liabilities cEas

— Liabilities measured at amortized cost — HEHEKATENERE (i) 1,159,453 1,034,514

— Other financial liabilities (note 25) — B 2R B & (H5E25) 6,311 1,879

1,165,764 1,036,393

Notes: Bisr

i. Includes trade receivables, bill receivable, advance to third parties, i. BEESEBGIAE - EIEE - B3
advance to staff, advance to non-control interest shareholder, other FE=ZH BATFET B TIEE
receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash. Fil M AR R - Hof EUGRIE - B KIR

RITFERRRITEB RIS -

i. Includes trade payables, bill payable, payable for acquisition of i. BIEEHRNTIE - BARE - WE
property, plant and equipment, payrolls and staff cost payables, ME - - BERZEEMAZE  TER
advance from non-control interest shareholder, other payables and B TRANFER FRIE « 2R A JEIE fil iR
bank borrowings. PREREVBIR - B e FRIR RRTTAE

o
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) SEREKREEEERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and REENETZSMIABREEI R

other receivables, trade and other payables, bank borrowings, Hip e siiE - B 5 REMER

derivative financial instruments, bank balances and cash. 5 RITEE - TEEmIA B

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in THHEES - Z5e T AEFE

respective notes. BRI TR EE -

The risks associated with these financial instruments and the HZESm T EEENERR LER

policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. ARl R B 22 S B B ) R BN T

\Xo
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(o)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

The directors of the Company manage and monitor these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the market risks
including interest rate risk (see note 6 (c) (i) below), foreign
currency risk (see note 6 (c) (ii) below) and commodity price
risk (see note 6 (c) (iii) below).

There has been no change to the Group’s exposures to these
market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures
the risks from prior year.

(i)  Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to its fixed rates bank borrowings and pledged bank
deposits.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk
through the impact of rate changes on variable interest
bearing financial assets and liabilities, mainly bank
balances and variable rate bank borrowings which
carried at prevailing market interest rates. The Group
currently does not use any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. However, the directors
of the Company will consider hedging significant
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable
interest bearing bank balances and variable rates bank
borrowings at the end of each reporting period and
assumed that the amount of assets and liabilities
outstanding at the end of each reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

6. TEITH®
b) SREREEEERBEE)

ARREFEEMERZFRR
EREEBEBRIVEE R E °
AEENRBEREE F—FRRFRR

T o

(c) TGRS

AREFEEKTEEMBNTHRERE
FERERER (R TXHRE6(EI)
SNEE [ELB (5T SCHT aF 6(c) (i) M 7
mERRER (BT 6)ii)

A E RS TS AR R
ERRIBARN AR F—FE
LI 4 (T (2 o

() FERBEEE

AEENATENERRE
SYRELBITEEREE
TR -

AEETAZHHETRE
ERBBE(EERRITEHK
FERNERNIRITER) F K&
PRFEMEYRSREN
LR o NEE B AL EE
FRAEMOTES L AS I EF
TR A NRRFRES
MR H R EEHMEAN
KRR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMIE®
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c0 MEZEE)

(i) Interest rate risk management (Continued)

If interest rates on bank balances had been 5 basis
points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the potential effect on post-tax profit is as
follows:

0]

FIRE R EE (1)

fie SR 17 45 &3 8 A RO B R F
Tt TRE S EER - mRTAH
BB N A IR
HFIREEZENT

2011 2010
g% —2-%%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT

Increase/decrease in post-tax profit FRB &AL,
for the year

69 262

If interest rates on variable rate bank borrowings had
been 50 basis points higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the potential effect on
post-tax profit is as follows:

i BRITEENF X £
F+/ T B& 50 I%% meETA
Hfth & %@ﬁT """"" N UEE
BRANBEZENT :

2011 2010
—_E——F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Decrease/increase in post-tax profit ERBEEANRLD LN
for the year

1,984 186

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk as the year end exposures do not
reflect the exposure during the year.

(i)  Foreign currency risk management

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the holding of
monetary assets and liabilities and entering into
transactions denominated in foreign currencies which
will affect the Group’s financial position and
performance as a result of a change in foreign currency
exchanges rates. At the end of the financial period,
certain trade and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, bank borrowings, exchange contracts and
cancellable foreign currency forward swaps contract of
the Group are denominated in or linked to foreign
currencies, details of which are set out in respective
notes, expose the Group to foreign currency risk.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

6.
(9]
(ii)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk management (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

6. TEITH®

hiEE b (&)

(0

Assets
BE
2011

—E——F
RMB’000
ARET R

(ii)

—T-TF
RMB'000
ARETT

I mEEE (F)

REBMPRE BIRAINE T
BENEBEEREEAEN
SREEWNT :

Liabilities

=
2011
—E——F
RMB’000
ARETT

2010 2010
—T-%F
RMB'000

ARETTE

United States Dollars (“USD”) ESMUE Vi) 265,785 279,967 258,298 575,747
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") BB 115 8 — —
265,900 279,975 258,298 575,747

The Group had entered into certain foreign exchange
forward contracts and cancellable foreign currency
forward swaps contract to mitigate its foreign currency
exposure. However they do not qualify for hedge
accounting, therefore, they are deemed as financial
assets or financial liabilities held for trading and
measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
particulars of the outstanding foreign exchange forward
contracts and cancellable foreign currency forward
swaps contract as at the end of the reporting period are
disclosed in note 25.

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of the
USD and HKD.

AREB DRI A THMNEERR
B #9 K A J83H S I i il e B
BHARBEEINE @R - R
- ZEA KL E HH
BAMER AR RRE
EENEaREELESRA
B YRRAFELEBR
E-RBSHRHARETH
SN SR A 49 B m] B SN EE
EHR A OFBRITE25
WE -

AEEETEEmHRTMET
Bk E R -
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. €RITHE @

(c) Market risk (Continued) (c0 MHZE &)
(i)  Foreign currency risk management (Continued) (i) MR EE(4Z)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to
one percent (2010: ten percent) increase in RMB
against USD which represents the management’s
assessment of the reasonable possible change in foreign
exchange rates. As the Group’s sensitivity to HKD is
insignificant and thus, no sensitivity analysis was
presented. The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s
includes:

(i)  outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation for
one percent (2010: ten percent) change in foreign
currency rates at the end of the reporting period;
and

(i)  outstanding foreign currency forward contracts
and adjusts for one percent (2010: ten percent)
change in foreign currency rates at the end of the
reporting period; and

(iii) outstanding cancellable foreign currency forward
swaps contract and adjusts for one percent
change for forward foreign currency rates at the
end of the reporting period.

A negative number below indicates a decrease in post-
tax profit where RMB strengthen one percent (2010: ten
percent) against USD.

Post-tax profit would increase
(decrease) by

T 185 A58 o0 ORi )

TRAJAEERARE L
%ﬁ&l&gﬂ@‘lo/o ::%;:7
TF 1 10%) WERRE - KK
EREHIINERN SR ERE
BEHIELTE - ARASE
EUBTHNHRELTE
R HWEZIN DM - A&
EBREITBIE

() PASNEESTHER MR 2
BEIEE - WHARSH
RIAINEFER 2 1% (=
T —FF:10%) & EF
FEHEBE K

iy KXETHIINERBA
4y W RS BRLASN
MIER 1% (ZFE—F
F10%) @ EFAEE
BnE &

(i) ARETTHO A BEHINE R
R BHAA  WNERE
HIR AR HIOMNE [ER 7
1%( = & — T F:
10%) BB ERE -

NTEHERRMAREHE
THEI% (T —ZFF:
10%) Fi 1% F sk > & 58 -

2011 2010
—=E——4F

—ET-TF
RMB’000
ARMEF 5T

RMB’000
ARBTR

973) (1,214)

For one percent (2010: ten percent) weakening of the
RMB against USD, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit, and the balances
above would be positive.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposures do not
reflect the exposure during the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011 I-.\
BE_F——F+A=+—AILFE A TR
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. EMI A=
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) MR E)
(iii) Commodity price risk (i) P B RS
The Group’s commodity price risk of financial AEEBMTANEmER
instruments is mainly the exposure to fluctuations in BR*EEAREEFER L
the prevailing market price of copper which are the ERITETEAOREE
major raw materials purchased by the Group through ZREAMNIFBITHEESR
the commodity derivative contracts entered and the B - BEIFH ISR EE25(b)

details of which are set out in note 25(b).

The Group considers that the commodity price risk KEBRE  FAHEREF
effect in post-tax profit for the year is insignificant and MEmERRREEYTE
no sensitivity analysis is presented. R RS GREE D o
(d) Credit risk management d EFERRER
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s maximum exposure to WZZE——F+ZA=+—H
credit risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to RBEFREBITEEMT @ BIXE
perform their obligations in relation to each class of BRSO EREREEMEE M
recognized financial assets is the carrying amounts of those SEREERR - AR E
assets as stated in the respective consolidated statement of Ao EEERRmE -

financial position.

In order to minimize the credit risk, the directors of the AEREREKEERE  KAAFES
Company have delegated a team responsible for Eé/ﬁ_zﬁj\/\wﬁfzi{ggﬁﬁ
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other B EEEANREMEIERR - B
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up actions are AR BRER PR 28 FE BB Uk (B 38 BB 75 o
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the directors of AN REBMEHK  KRATES
the Company review the recoverability of each trade debt at R ESEERNAKENE - X
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate HIRBEF T AT Uk B £ BB 2 59HY
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this WMEREE - BUtME - ARRESE
regard, the directors of the Company consider that the REASENEERRD KKE
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced. 1K -
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. TEITH®

(d) Credit risk management (Continued) d) EEEREREEZ)
As at 31 December 2011, the Group has concentration of RZZE—F+=_A=+—H" &
credit risk as the Group's trade receivables of approximately SEMNEERBRESR - HTEAAEE
RMB236,168,000 (2010: RMB163,773,000), representing 2 5 E WK EH AR
27% (2010: 31%) of total trade receivables, were derived 236,168,000 C (ZE—ZFF : AR
from five major customers. In order to minimize the credit #163,773,00070) ({5 E 5 FEU K
risk, the directors of the Company continuously monitor the HBBERN2%( ZF — T F:
level of exposure to ensure that follow up actions and/or 31%) » IRBEAREF - REE
corrective actions are taken promptly to lower exposure or RBEERR  RARAREERHER
even to recover the overdue debts. The Group has no ZE bR KE - DARE R B RS SRR R e
significant concentration of credit risk on the remaining trade RSEBIEREE - URERBER
receivables, with exposure spread over a number of W Em B ER - B RR D BR %
counterparties and customers. ERGHF RN - MAKE R
TESRKFIAT EERNEPE
SRk -
As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s concentration of credit RZE—F+=—_HA=+—H =&
risk by geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which SERMBUESENEERRE
accounted for 88% (2010: 87%) of the total trade receivable. REZEURFE - BB SRR
HEER 88% (—F—FF 1 87%) °
The Group has concentration of credit risk on liquid funds REBEEEFHNFEEEIRITH
which are deposited mainly with several banks in the PRC. RBESHEERBREFR - AME
However, the credit risk on bank balances is limited because BREDZSEF AERBEZEF
the majority of the counterparties are banks with good MARIRE T RIFEEMET - IR
reputation assigned by international credit-rating agencies. THEANEERRBER °
(e) Liquidity risk management e RBESEAMER

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk rests with the board
of directors of the Company, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and
liquidity management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms.

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk management (Continued)

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables

iy
=
xil >

6. TEITH®
) HFBELEMETE(

BEAN - TRFFIIAKEITE SR T
BERBES /T - DERAFE

have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual HEMNTETARMRANESF

net cash inflows and outflows on derivative instruments that
settle on a net basis. The liquidity analysis for the Group’s
derivative financial instruments is prepared based on the
contractual maturities as the management considers that the
contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of

the timing of the cash flows of derivatives.

BERAZRROERS - ANERE
ERR/ANFHEREITET AR
ERNKREEEE  WAKEDT
EERTENRBESHITHER
BRFIMmRR -

Weighted  On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 months to 1to undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 1 year 5 years cash flows amounts
mE REARD 38R RERRE
FHRR  SR3EA B1f 1855 hEAR REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
A2t ARMTR AR¥TR AR%Tr AR®TT ARETR
As at 31 December 2011 RZF——%
TZA=1-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FirE2HERE
Trade and other payables Z5REMENTE = 439,536 66,446 = 505,982 505,982
Variable rates borrowings BEEE 5.13 249,627 204,764 — 454,391 448,773
Fixed rates borrowings TEEE 6.46 51,767 156,892 — 208,659 204,698
740,930 428,102 — 1,169,032 1,159,453
Derivative financial instruments fT4sRTA
— net settlement —FFRE
Commodity derivative contracts ARITETRAN — 1 - - 1 1
Cancellable foreign currency forward R #$59ME iR 215 28
swaps contract & - (2,299) (1,432) 9,772 6,041 5,942
(2,298) (1,432) 9,72 6,042 5,943
Derivative financial instruments PTERBIA
— gross settlement —BEEE
Foreign currency exchange contracts ~ SMNES4)
—inflow —hAE — (15,574) — — (15,574) (15,574)
— outflow — e — 15,942 — — 15,942 15,942
368 — — 368 368
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk management (Continued)

6. TEITH®
(e)

RBESRBERE)

Weighted ~ On demand Total
average  orlessthan 3 monthsto  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year cash flows amounts
i3 3R REHZRE
A ' j REE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
As at 31 December 2010 R=B-%2F
t=A=t-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities — F/T£ ¢ BEE
Trade and other payables BHREMEMNFUA — 259,239 112,169 371,408 371,408
Variable rates borrowings FEEE 5.22 18,151 23,992 4,143 41,487
Fixed rates borrowings TREE 2.88 124,774 508,864 633,658 621,619
402,164 045,045 1,047,209 1,034,514
Derivative financial instruments ITEEBITA
— net settlement —FERE
Commodity derivative contracts AT R ) — 205 — 205 205
Derivative financial instruments fTETHIA
— gross settlement —BEEE
Foreign currency exchange contracts  JNEA 4
— inflow —mAE — (2,204) (328,556) (330,760) (330,760)
— outflow — it E — 2,269 330,165 332,434 332,434
05 1,609 1,674 1,674

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to
change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

)

(®

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
with standard terms and conditions and traded in active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices respectively;

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis;
and

e the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated
using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, use is made of discounted cash flow analysis
using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

Fair value measurements recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The Group’s financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped
into levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value
is observable:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities;

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

6. TEITH®
f SBMIENAFE

TREELRSRAGBENATFENR
THGAEE

o MR RARE W RE
BARATSEENSMERE
kemaEsATESHZ
EMBTmSEAEBRREE
E

s HtERMEERTRAMAD
RFEMNBEITETA)TS
REBECSUHRASRINEA
REBEAEE &

o METAMAFERBRE
i E e ORI AR R R
B AEREACSHRRESR
BN FFHRETAETA
R T EFHAERr RS
AR - T HIEOT A T ARIER
PR E ER

@ BEUBRARABIHAT
mit 2

REBMPMR A TEE KRR T A
AENERTARAFENERE
Ear—=2=4:

. —BRATEMBEEREA
BB HRER TS EE
(RIERE)FHE
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iE R
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(®

Fair value measurements recognized in the
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

J Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

As at 31 December 2011, the derivative financial liabilities
with carrying values of approximately RMB1,000 (2010:
RMB205,000) are Level T measurements.

As at 31 December 2011, the derivative financial liabilities
with carrying values of approximately RMB368,000 (2010:
RMBT1,674,000) are Level 2 measurements.

As at 31 December 2011, the derivative financial liabilities
with carrying values of approximately RMB5,942,000 (2010:
nil) and the financial asset with carrying values of
approximately RMB5,229,000 (2010: nil) are Level 3
measurements.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their fair
values at the end of the reporting period. During the year
ended 31 December 2011, there is no transfer between level
1 and level 2.
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BE_F——F+A=+—AILFE A TR
7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WEKRDIBER
(@ Revenue @ W=
Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable WHIEFNHEETEPLPNERZE
for sales of goods sold to customers during the year. U K2 FE Y GRIE 558 -
(b) Segment information (b) PHER
The chief executive officer of the Company has been RRARTHRBR D ERRASAEE
identified as the Group’s chief operating decision maker (the FTEEERRA(NEBEERE
“CODM”) who reviews the business based on as the A EREBETIIRERS DA
following reportable segments organized by products: ME DI EZEL
—  External signal cable assembly —  SMRESRAREN
— Internal signal cable assembly —  REEW&An
—  Power cord assembly —  BIREAEH
—  Wire and cable — &
—  Connectors —  EER
—  Antennas — K&
—  Automotive wire harness (note below) —  ABEHR(TRME)
—  Other products — HtEmR
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, a new reportable segment in Wt BE=_T——F+-A=+—HLF
respect of automotive wiring harness was identified upon the acquisition B ERERERRAIERERAF
of X:ZBRAEEEAR A A (Tianjin Rituo Automotive Electronics (K2R EHRN—EEBES
Co., Ltd., “Tianjin Rituo”) (as disclosed in note 32(a)). REVFT A R E o 26 (M sE32(a) #
B
The above segments have been identified on the basis of LD EEELERBAREE
internal management reports prepared and regularly reviewed RSB M A A E B RIRSRIEFAT
by the CODM when making decisions about allocating WA N FHE RN ASEIERE T
resources and assessing performance of the Group. LAFE R ©

Annual Report 2011 « —Z——44; 111



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WERkDEER @)
(Continued)
(b) Segment information (Continued) (b) DEBER(E)
i.  Information about reportable segment revenues, . BHEUHRESHWKZE- F

E BERRBENEHN

TRIRAEERFRRA
HEDREEI D U K A

results, assets and liabilities

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the
Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment

during the year:

R4 -

External Internal Power Automotive
signal cable signal cable cord Wire and wire Other
assembly assembly assembly cable Connectors Antennas harness products Total
IMEEHR REERR
A A BR&AH ®E B AR RERER HttEm ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARMTRT ARBTE ARMTRT ARBTRT AR%TR ARMTR ARBTZE AR%TR
(note below)
(FRHE)
Year ended BE_T——F
31 December 2011 +=ZA=+—H
HFE
Segment revenue S EpIES 337,750 339,859 329,016 488,422 49,928 28,462 156,678 135,261 1,865,376
Segment results NEPLE 67,863 92,270 42,799 101,548 13,273 5,294 35,444 19,914 378,405
Year ended BE-T-TF
31 December 2010 +ZA=+—8H
HFE
Segment revenue o EpU 353,376 307,049 246,777 348,306 46,443 11,798 — 100,211 1,413,960
Segment results DERELE 79,867 85,784 40,276 78,245 14,637 1,233 — 25,572 325,614
Note: Subsequent to 31 December 2010, an additional segment of Mt s R=F—FFT-A=+—8

% BRAEZLEREAER
FHINDRAR D EPLAEERET - 4B
FEHR S AR R E M E
mAEEHNLE - URFE 27
BE-_Z—ZTF+=-A=1+—
AIEFERABPERRSE o

antennas was reported to the CODM for review. Segment
information for the prior period has been reclassified from
segment of other products to conform to the presentation of the
internal management report for the year ended 31 December
2010.

Ak 2 e Uk 15 SR B SN R
EPMKE BE-F——
FTZA=+t—BR=F—
TETZA=+-HLEFE
BT BRI SH S

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment
sales during the year ended 31 December 2011 and 31
December 2010.
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.

(Continued)

(b) Segment information (Continued)

i. Information about reportable segment revenues, i.
results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The segment results represent segment revenue less
segment cost of sales determined on a standard cost
basis, which represents the internally generated
financial information regularly reviewed by the CODM.
However, the other income and other gains and losses,
distribution and selling expenses, administrative and
general expenses, research and development expenses
and finance costs are not allocated to each reportable

segment.

The reportable segment results are reconciled to profit
after taxation of the Group as follows:

(b) ZEWER )
BEH A

e

WKk oEBER (&)

Foaka - ¥

A BERBENEHN(E)

B

ERH -

DEEEEDH
BRAEEBEN D HIHE
AR BEBRKERENTE
HIEM AR B ER - A
i B A A R Bl s B
DHEHERX 17
Bk —fRFAX - EFA R
BB KA D B E K AR

B U 8 R 1R AR

AR E D BEAEAEER

s MR

2011 2010
—_E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTR ARBTR
Reportable segment results AIERE D RPRAR 378,405 325,614
Unallocated income and expenses: RAORWARRAE :
— Other income, other gains and losses ~ — E g A~ E Atz
KE1E 22,080 (2,579)
— Distribution and selling expenses — DHRIHERX (49,056) (27,233)
— Administrative and general expenses ~ — {7 & — &R (116,714) (72,525)
— Research and development expenses ~ — W3 F (62,179) (30,932)
— Finance costs — BEKR (37,536) (19,090)
Profit before taxation 5 B 135,000 173,255
Income tax expenses PTIS 15 S (15,640) (18,234)
Profit for the year F ) A 119,360 155,021

As no discrete information in respect of segment assets
and liabilities and other information is for the
assessment of performance and allocation of resources
for different reportable segments and thus, other than
reportable segment revenue and results as disclosed
above, no analysis of segment assets and liabilities is

presented.

HRITEBBOFEERA
B fE R & #t R EL A B #4 Al
FRAFHER R A wE D&
MERBRERDE  FHIE
EXFri R E) R RS 0 B
m R EEI WEEDNDE
BERREDN
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE—F——

Fr—A=1—HILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(b)

Segment information (Continued)

ii.

iii.

Geographical information

The Group’s products are produced from the
production facilities located in the PRC. All of the
Group’s non-current assets are located in the PRC and
thus, no geographical information has been presented.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s
revenue by geographical location of customers,
irrespective of the origin of the goods:

7.

WKk oEBER (&)

(b)

DEER (#)

ii.

HhEEH

AEBEEREMRPENE
EREEE - AEE A
RBEEAURTE - Fit
I % 2 51 [ AR o

TERBAKEREFPMEN
EEomE T (ERE M
REMBME) -

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Analyzed by: AT RS

China, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan /B (‘M BEFEHEEREE 1,265,881 929,603
Taiwan =y 211,970 178,883
Korea X 163,506 210,913
Hong Kong aE 40,318 25,664
Other countries and areas HiBER kit & 183,701 68,897
1,865,376 1,413,960

Information about major customers iii. FEEFEH

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the
Group’s major customers individually accounted for
over 10% of the Group’s total revenue from the
external signal cable assembly, internal signal cable
assembly, power cord assembly, connectors and other
products segments during the year ended 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2010:

TRINTAEBREZ-Z
——%®+=-A=Z+—H8Kk=
T-ZF+-A=+—HL
F A BIG E 42U s (R E sk
BEREAENT  REERR
M BERGHEN - EES
R EMERDE) 10% A £/
FEEFEHIT:

2011 2010

—g——% -—T-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ET T AREETIT

— Customer A = 250,774 164,266

— Customer B —EPB/ © 170,698

— Customer C —%FR 211,527 *
* The revenue from these customers is not over 10% of the * REWER PRz BB

Group's total revenue.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hihg A - HitEZ R EE

2011 2010
—_E——F —E—FF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE

Interest income FE YA 10,149 436
Government grants (note below) BUFAE) (s ) 7,987 5,267
Gains (losses) on disposals of property, HEWE - MELEEHINZ (BE)
plant and equipment 1,688 355
Net foreign exchange losses ER R FRE (1,513) (2,832)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HE T AR S MR
payments for land use rights 175 —
Changes in fair value of other Huepm T AEANFES
financial instruments 3,594 (5,805)
22,080 (2,579)
Note: The amounts mainly represent government subsidies received from the finance Hiet - ZEoREZEERMBEE L BERIFHER
bureau of Weihai Economic Technological Development Zone, finance bureau BBE - REFBURRILRER S & BRI
of Tianjin and committee of Shandong Linyi Economic and Technological HEEZESERAEEEL KRR EZH
Development Zone as incentives for business and technological development BB HBE ©
of the Group.
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RERA

2011 2010
—_E——F —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable  ZBR AFRNBE(EENEEF S

within five years 44,152 20,076
Less: Amount capitalized in respect of B BEEREERAINERN R

cost of qualifying assets (6,616) (986)

37,536 19,090

During the year ended 31 December 2011, interest has been REBE-Z——F+-_A=+—HIF
capitalized at the rate of interest applicable to general borrowings B NEERERNR—REENTEF
ranging from 4.20% to 7.57% (2010: 5.10% to 6.84%) per annum. 420%E7.57% (ZF—ZFF : 5.10% %

6.84%) I FI|ERE R -

Annual Report 2011 « —Z——44 115



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Staff cost (including directors’
emoluments)

10. BRBLATE R

BIARA(BRESHH)

BRBADE AN 2R (FTA) A T &IA

2011 2010
—E——F

—=-%
RMB’000
AREF 7T

RMB’000
ARBT T

— Salaries and other benefits — ¥Hra LEAMEN 226,719 148,040
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRIEFIET &I R
contributions 7,309 2,944
— Share-based payments (see note 28) — ARt ST EY 08 (R 5L 28) 7,147 7,147
241,175 158,131
Depreciation and amortization: PrENHEH
— Property, plant and equipment — % BEKEE 36,812 35,748
— Intangible assets (included in —\EAE GIATTHRE
administrative and general expenses) —RFIZ) 4,051 1,563
40,863 37,311
Release of prepaid lease payments FRBIENES 815 537
Cost of inventories recognized as an RERTNFER
expense (note below) (FTHsE) 1,517,099 1,102,887
Auditors’ remuneration ZEET I & 2,532 2,409
Allowances recognized (reversed) HE P EWFIRHER (M) B
in respect of trade receivables 16 (193)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2011, the cost of inventories recognized

as an expenses included inventories for research and development with the
amount of RMB30,128,000 (2010: RMB14,541,000) and inventories written-
down with the amount of nil (2010: RMB3,893,000).
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e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

(@

Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the directors of

the Company are as follows:

11. EEREEMHNS

@ EEMHE

ot
s
xij}-

ENKENARREEZMEFE

W -

Year ended 31 December 2011
BZ-E2——F+-A=t+-HLEE

Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and scheme Discretionary Share-based
Director fees allowances contributions bonus  payments Total
Ex%e  RAEN ARG
ESHE  RREN  HEGR  BERL oRE e
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRL ARBTL ARETR ARMTR ARBTL ARETR
Executive directors: WOES:
— Mr. Chi — B4 60 279 8 — — 347
— Mr. Jiang Taike —BAREE 60 296 8 — — 364
— Mr. Li Jianming — TEALYE 60 242 8 — 203 513
— Mr. Mao Wanjun —EE8HE 36 195 8 - 293 532
— Mr. Kang Jin Won —=REksE 36 583 — — — 619
— Mr. Sui Shikai* —fetrEle s 12 34 3 — 67 116
— Mr. Tseng Chih-ming* — BERALE 12 146 6 — — 164
Non-executive directors: FHUTES:
— Ms. Xu Yiming —BRE#LL 36 202 — — — 238
— Mr. Du Li* —HhkhE - - — — — —
— Mr. Wu Kezhong* — R B — — — — — —
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES:
directors:
— Mr. ShuWa Tung, Laurence — &FEREE 163 - — — — 163
— Mr. Song Lizhong — RURKE 41 - — — — 41
— Ms. Zheng Lin — Euit 41 — — — — 41
557 1,977 41 — 563 3,138
* These directors have resigned as directors of the Company since 28 * hEEEE-T-—FHA=FTNH
April 2011. AREHEAARZEERY -
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 11. EEREEMNE 2
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEMeE)

Year ended 31 December 2010
TZA=t—-RIEEFE
Retirement
Basic benefit
salaries and scheme Discretionary Share-based

Director fees  allowances  contributions bonus  payments

EX%Fe BRINGER PARRAR

ESHE RAER AR BERA IR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR®TR ARETT ARETR

Executive directors: HITEE:
— Mr. Chi —EBRE — 199 4 — — 203
— Mr. Jiang Taike —BAREAE — 144 4 — — 148
— Mr. Li Jianming — FRAEE — 165 4 — 197 366
— Mr. Tseng Chih-ming — BEH#EE — 237 8 — — 245
— Mr. Sui Shikai — Bl — 164 4 — 202 370
— Mr. Mao Wanjun —EEHE - 192 4 — 293 489
— Mr. Kang Jin Won —ZRERE - 380 — — — 380
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
— Ms. Xu Yiming —REHgRt — 147 — — — 147
— Mr. Du Li — Mk — _ _ _ _ _
— Mr. Wu Kezhong — Ruhks — _ _ _ _ _
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES :
directors:
— Mr. Shu Wa Tung, Laurence — &7 R4 — 28 — — — 28
— Mr. Song Lizhong — RUBREE — 7 — — — 7
— Ms. Zheng Lin — Bt — 7 — — — 7
— 1,670 28 — 092 2,390
During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 REBEZE_Z——F+-_A=+—H
December 2010, no remuneration was paid by the Group to RZZ2-—ZF+_A=+—HILF
the directors of the Company as an inducement to join or B AEEVEAANREFNES
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. NS ERBEIRFMAREE
None of the directors of the Company has waived any SR DA 5 BB 1) 2B SR B A

cREE-_ZTE——HF+=A8
+—BAERZZE-—ZF+A4
=+—HIEFE  BELARAES
MEEMAF -

remuneration during the years ended 31 December 2011 and
31 December 2010.

[l o}

118 HLTechnology Group Limited ¢ iR EEBR A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements =

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2010: four) were directors of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2011,
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11 (a)

details of whose
above.
The emoluments of the remaining two (2010: one)

individual(s) during the years ended 31 December 2011 were
as follows:

11. EEREEME »)

(b) 1EE %M

Hz-ZFT——F+=-_A=+—A1t
FE - AEBRAUGSHALF
BZZ(ZE—ZF WA BAA
AEE  RFATHFHFEHR L
XHIEE11(a) PEVIHEE -

HE_F——FT-A=t—AL
FEESMA(ZF—
fERALH BT

T —%)

2011 2010
—2——fF —=FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREFTT
Salaries and allowances e KER 934 112
Discretionary bonus BYIETEAL — —
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R /A48 F 5+ 21 it /TA 26 4
Share-based payments PARRAD XS 3R — 246
960 362
During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December REBEE-Z—F+=-A=+—H
2010, the emoluments of the five highest paid individuals —Z-ZFF+_RA=+—HIHF
were within HKD1,000,000. B AfuskaH ALHFH BB
1,000,000 87T °
During the year ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December RBZE-_Z——F+-A=+—H
2010, no remuneration was paid by the Group to the five NZZE—TF+_A=+—HIF

individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

B AEEYERAUSREHAL
SHEMBE - (ERBRIIBFMA
REBE RN IAAE B 8)5EE) 3
RERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

12. FIEHEAX

2011 2010
—F—-F —ZT-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT ARBTE
Current tax BNEARS IR
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) — REPEMEHR
([ ZPEHI) 18,724 19,268
— Overprovision of EIT in prior years — BEFEREMEN
R (68) (2,222)
18,656 17,046
Deferred tax (note 19) RIERIA (FEE19)
— Current year — RFE (3,016) 1,014
— Attributable to a change in tax rate — AR EEFimEL — 174
(3,016) 1,188
15,640 18,234

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong
during the year.

The statutory tax rate of 3 FH AR 2 & (Honglin Technology
Co., Ltd.*, “Honglin Technology”), a company established in
Taiwan on 21 July 2010 is subject to 17% for both years. No
provision for Taiwan income tax has been made as the company
did not have any taxable income for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
BE—FT——F+_A=+—HIUFE
12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued) 12. iS4
The applicable tax rates of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries for the REE-_ZT—F+A=+—HEZ=
years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 are as E—EF+A=+—HLEFELARF
follows: HEMEARNERTEAT

Name of the subsidiary

MELE AR

BAETAHEFBERAR ([EEET])

(Weihai Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.?, “Weihai Electronic”) 15.0 15.0

BT MWK EREEARLA ((EUEEE])

(Weihai Honglin Wire & Cable Co., Ltd.#, “Weihai Cable”) 15.0 15.0

BROMEFHRAR]

(Changshu Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.?) 12.5 12.5

BEAUMEREEARAR]

(Changshu Honglin Wire & Cable Co. Ltd.?) 12.5 12.5

BAMER M AR QA

(Changshu Honglin Connecting-Technology Co., Ltd.?) 12.5 12.5

EIMNAHREFFR LA

(Dezhou Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.?) 12.5 12.5

BOEM M EFBRAT

(Wuhan Honglin Electronic Co., Ltd.?) 12.0 11.0

BINEZETEFARAR

(Suzhou Huachun Precision Electronics Co., Ltd.?) 25.0 25.0

RIIT BB AR AR

(Shenzhen Honglin Communication Technology Co., Ltd.?) 25.0 25.0

BRTMMEHRER QA

(Chongging Honglin Technology Co., Ltd.?) 25.0 N/A AN A

BINTEE AR AR AR

(Huizhou Honglin Communication Technology Co., Ltd.?) 25.0 N/A N3

REBBAREERARQA(RERA]D

(Tianjin Rituo Automotive Electronics Co., Ltd.?, “Tianjin Rituo”) 25.0 N/A N3 A

BMREEMPRBEEEARAR ([EMAE])

(Huizhou Daya Bay Heping Telecommunication Co. Ltd., “Huizhou Daya Bay”) 25.0 N/A i A

EUEM AR AR A A

(Wuhan Honglin Technology Co., Ltd.?) 25.0 N/A 38 A
#  The English names are for identification purpose only. ¢ ESCt:l1 - ik
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE-F——#1+-A=+—AIEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continued)

The tax charge can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as follows:

12. i8I @

MIAR X BiR S 2 H KR A ROBH DG
FEERIT

2011 2010
—B——F —ZT-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Profit before taxation B 75 A S ) 135,000 173,255

Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% (see note (a) below) 1225% 2 Ff Bl (> 288 Hi &

SHEABE (R TXME @) 33,750 43,314

Overprovision for EIT in respect of prior years @{E F[E {5 TS B RE R (68) (2,222)

Attributable to a change in tax rate in respect [ 4 AR FE R T8 5 ST AR R H9

of deferred tax charge for the year MR MES — 174

Tax effect of expenses that are not AR IR F AR S A

deductible for tax purpose D2 24 133
Effect of tax exemption and REBEBIAR R REBEH XN
concessionary rates for the Group 2 (16,794) (20,861)
Tax effect of concession deductions relating B ZFAS BEMNEEREN
to research and development expenses Hsse (1,272) (1,844)
Effect of different tax rates for calculating AR et B IR IER 18 N BN EA R IE B
deferred tax and current tax TRBENTE — (460)
15,640 18,234

Notes: ftit -

(a) The PRC EIT rate of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2010 and 31 (@) BE-ZT——F+-_A=t—AR=-Z—-%
December 2011 represent the statutory tax rate of which the Group’s FHZA=+ - ALEFEROREREMER
operations conducted substantially in the PRC throughout the years. BE25% @ RAEERZREFETEKR

B HEBHEERE -
(b) In accordance with the PRC tax circular (Guoshuihan [2008] 112) effective (b) AR 4 PR B A A% 38 A0 (BB Bk [2008] 11258 ) »

from 1 January 2008, PRC withholding income tax at the rate of 10% is
applicable to dividends payable by the Company’s PRC operating subsidiaries
based on their profits generated from 1 January 2008 onwards to their “non-
resident” investors who do not have an establishment or place of business in
the PRC.

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of temporary differences
associated with the undistributed earnings of the PRC subsidiaries of
approximately RMB287 million (2010: RMB194 million) for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognized. No liability has been recognized in
respect of these temporary differences because the Group is in a position to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and the
Company, the shareholder of these PRC subsidiaries, has resolved that, other
than those retained profits which were distributed for the year ended 31
December 2009, the remaining profits from their operations for the period
from 1 January 2008 to 31 December 2011 will be retained and not be
distributed in foreseeable future. Therefore, it is probable that such differences
will not reverse or subject to withholding income tax in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2011 nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2010: nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2011 is based on the profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 and on the
weighted average of 720,000,000 shares (2010: 555,438,576
shares) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
calculating the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2010 has been determined as if the effect of the five-for-
one Share Subdivision (as defined in note 27(ii)) and the
Capitalization Issue (as defined in note 27(iii)) have been adjusted
retrospectively.

There were no potential dilutive shares in existence during the year
ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 and therefore,
no diluted earnings per share amounts have been presented.

13.

14.

==
al -. I_ — __.-'-
\
N e
8=

REE-F——FT-A=+—ALLF
S A2 AR AR A SR 3R AR
8 BHE MR EREN EARE
(2% @)

BREF

HE-_T——F+_A=t+—HILFE
NERERBIDIBREHZ —T——F
+ZA=Z+—HUIEFEAR 1mﬁA$
5% F X 4 7 720,000,000 f% ( —ZF —

4 1 555,438,576 %) B ETRMHH jJMZ:E
FHHEE -

BEETREFEBE_Z-ZF+-A
=t— Etﬁf‘tﬁx%$7§ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂx1ﬁbn
BEHHE - DREE-REROFARS
PR B RS 7 #F AR (IR P = 27 i) ﬁm)&ézﬁ
BT (R 227G RE) T ER
AR o

RBE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—BKZ
E-EF T _A=T—HLEFEILEE
FEERD T EZ|SREER
MEEEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BERRE

Equipment
Plant and Motor and other  Construction
Buildings  equipment vehicles facilities in process Total

RER

B HERRH RE Rt ERIR At
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000
AREBTL  ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR

The Group KEE
COsT B
As at 1 January 2010 W-Z2-F£—F—H 159,026 186,464 6,883 27,597 799 380,769
Additions RE 266 17,284 2,580 25,624 143,638 189,392
Transfer FER 902 16,713 — 1,610 (19,225) —
Disposals e (11,731) (4,525) (738) (6,486) — (23,480)
Asat31 December 2010  H-F—-FT&+-A=+-H 148,463 215,936 8,725 48,345 125,212 546,681
Acquired on acquisition WM BRI FE

of subsidiaries 20,759 20,041 1,158 3,218 12 45,188
Additions BE 1,423 25,715 3,954 6,026 170,349 207,467
Transfer Fob 77,832 20,198 — 5,541 (103,571) —
Disposals He (9,863) (12,550) (3,480) (1,739) — (27,632)
Asat31 December 2011 W=E——&+-A=+—H 238,614 269,340 10,357 61,391 192,002 771,704
DEPRECIATION g
As at 1 January 2010 R-Z-ZF-F-H 16,621 43,129 2,838 9,605 — 72,193
Provided for the year FREE 7,624 19,203 1,336 7,585 — 35,748
Eliminated on disposals HERE S (5,298) 418) (693) (3,726) — (10,135)
Asat31 December 2010  R=-ZE-ZE+-A=1—A 18,947 61,914 3,481 13,464 — 97,806
Provided for the year FREE 7,363 17,761 1,883 9,805 — 36,812
Eliminated on disposals HERKH (4,865) (9,226) (3,093) (1,128) — (18,312)
Asat31 December 2011 R=F——E+-fA=1—H 21,445 70,449 2,271 22,141 — 116,306
CARRYING VALUES REE
Asat31 December 2011 R=F——F+-A=1—H 217,169 198,891 8,086 39,250 192,002 655,398
Asat31 December2010  R-Z—-F£+-A=+-H 129,516 154,022 5,244 34,881 125,212 448,875
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the
following rate per annum:

Buildings 4.5%
Plant and equipment 9.0%
Motor vehicles 18.0%
Electronic and other facilities 18.0% to 45.0%

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has pledged its property, plant
and equipment with a carrying value of approximately
RMB157,055,000 (2010: RMB151,335,000) to secure for general
banking facilities granted to the subsidiaries of the Group.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

e

15. 1% - BERRZE @

¥ BERBEERIERRI)
T RE A F S EES - NE R
AT R HTE -

BF 4.5%
T 55 K 35 4 9.0%
B 18.0%
BFREMEE 18.0% £ 45.0%

R_TE——F+-A=Z+—H8 A&EH
EIHEREmELY AR 157,055,000 7T (=
T—TF : ARM151,335,0007T) 94
¥ WMEMEE WEAKREEMBA
RIER —MRIRTTIEEMER -

ENEE

2011 2010
—_E——F

—E-FTF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
ARBT T

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: IR

— Non-current assets —IERBEE 47,539 30,108

— Current assets — REEE 1,014 642
48,553 30,750

The amounts represent land use rights in respect of lands situated
in the PRC and held under medium-term leases. Land use rights are
released on a straight-line basis over the relevant terms of the land
use rights certificate.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group has pledged its land use rights
with a carrying value of approximately RMB8,460,000 (2010:
RMB14,868,000) to banks to secure for banking facilities granted
to the subsidiaries of the Group.

ZESBEIDUNPE L AT RBEOFE
TR L R o D E AR ER
SER L b FRERE AR B F A o

R_ZE——F+-A=+—8 KX&H
MR TIIFREE LA R 8,460,000 7T
—T—FTF: AR 14,868,0007T)HY
T FE R - LMEARSEN B A RE
FERITIEEMER -
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Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

17. BILEE

Customer Technology

Software Trademarks  Licenses relationships  knowhow Total
L0 [ FUE EFBEE SEEM @t
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETL
COST A
As at T January 2010 R-ZE-ZF—-H—H 2,399 121 4,795 — — 7,315
Additions NE 1,623 13 5,099 — — 6,735
Disposal HE (1,688) — — — — (1,688)
As at 31 December 2010 RZE-FF+-A
=t+—H 2,334 134 9,894 — — 12,362
Acquired on acquisition of WENEARME
subsidiaries (note 32) (F3E32) — — — 15,430 10,470 25,900
Additions NE 30 — 3,880 — — 3,910
As at 31 December 2011 RZE——%F
+-RA=+-H 2,364 134 13,774 15,430 10,470 42,172
AMORTISATION By
As at 1 January 2010 RZE—ZF—F—H 846 19 629 — — 1,494
Charge for the year FRBH 440 14 1,109 — — 1,563
Disposal HE (367) — — — — (367)
As at 31 December 2010 RZE-FF
+-R=+-H 919 33 1,738 — — 2,690
Charge for the year FREH 120 13 1,197 1,674 1,047 4,051
As at 31 December 2011 RNZE——F
+-A=1+—-H 1,039 46 2,935 1,674 1,047 6,741
CARRYING VALUES HREE
As at 31 December 2011 NZE——F
+-A=1+—H 1,325 88 10,839 13,756 9,423 35,431
As at 31 December 2010 R-Z—ZF
+ZA=+—H 1,415 101 8,156 — — 9,672
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Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives and are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the following estimated

18.

e

17. B EE )

tEPEENAERFHAR - LA
RAT AR AIMEBFIREARE S -

useful lives:
Software 5 to 10 years B 52104
Trademarks 5 years L 54
Licenses 5 to 10 years EiEl) 5E104F
Customer relationships 5 to 10 years 2P BER 52104
Technology knowhow 10 years E2EHFEI 104
GOODWILL 18. B8
2011
—_E——fF
RMB’000
AR%T R
COST R
Additional amounts recognized from FRNEEEBEHERNEINERE
business combinations occurring (RB7E32)
during the year (see note 32) 7,746
As at 31 December 2011 N-_E—F+=-_HA=+—H 7,746
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT LOSSES RIBEBE
Impairment losses recognized in the year F MR RIEEE —
As at 31 December 2011 R-E——F+_-_A=1+—H —
CARRYING VALUES RREE
As at 31 December 2011 R_E——F+_A=+—H 7,746
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

#

EoE——Ff - H=F—HIFFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing on goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated
to the following individual CGU.

Automotive harness REAER
Wire and cable LRI

18. BE (%)

2 AR E R

BERRME B HEEATNE
PR EL B -

2011
—E——fF

RMB’000
AR®TR

1,823
5,923

7,746

The goodwill was generated upon acquisition of Tianjin Rituo and
Huizhou Daya Bay. Details of which are set out in note 32. The
recoverable amounts of the CGU are both determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the directors of the Company
covering a five-year period.

The discount rates are 19% per annum. Other key assumptions for
the cash flow projections during the budget period include growth
rate, gross margins rate and raw materials price inflation throughout
the budget period. The directors of the Company believe that any
reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which the
recoverable amount is based would not cause the carrying amount
of the unit to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
CGuU.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations for the
CGU are as follows:
Growth rate Cash flows beyond that five-year period
have been extrapolated using a steady
3% per annum growth rate.

Expected gross margin ~ Average gross margins achieved in the
period immediately before the budget
period, adjusted for expected efficiency
improvements, increase of overhead cost

and direct labor cost.

Raw materials price
inflation

Forecast consumer price indices during
the budget period for the countries from
which raw materials are purchased.

18. BE (%)
HERERR (&)
HeELBR Y FEREESEERRY

FERZROT

#ER BBZAFHNES
METIANEF3I%Z
BriEERETH
|§ﬁ o

TBEFEF X R TEE i AT HAR P
Wz FHEFE -
REHB R ER
B BN E R A&
HEIE-
EMRERBE FEAEEERERK
BEMENERNTE
o
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19. DEFERRED TAXATION 19. IEILERHIE
The following are the Group’s major deferred tax assets (liabilities) LTNAREERFANTERLERIEES
recognized and the movements thereon, during the year. E(af)LBEEE
Deferred assets Deferred tax
BEEE liabilities —
fair value
Pre- adjustments
operating  Impairment on business
expenses loss of assets  Tax losses combinations
BEHE
8-
BB EHAsN
EEMMX WERER HEkE At #a  DYEIER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(see note
AREBTT  ARETR e BTt ARETR ARETR
As at T January 2010 RZE-2F—-f—H 242 1,188 101 2,373 3,904 -
(Charge) credit to profit or loss 7228 (15 ) 5T A (134) (816) 2,118 (2,182) (1,014) —
Attributable o a change RAxEHmEE
in tax rate — (7) — (167) (174) —
Asat3! December2010  H=F-TF+-F=t-H 108 365 2,219 2 2,716 —~

Additions relating to the BRMERZERR
acquisition of Tianjin Riwo ~~ EMAZEMRE

and Huizhou Daya Bay (IBERM32)

(disclosed in note 32) — — — — — (10,677)
(Charge) credit to profitor loss ¥z ()& A (108) 4 2,160 1 2,057 959
As at 31 December 2011 W_E——5F+-f=1t—H — 369 4,379 25 4,773 (9,718)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

L}

FoFE——F{ =+ —AUFE L
19. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 19. IEIEHIE (&)

Note: As at 31 December 2011, the Group has unused tax losses amounting to M R=ZF——F+=ZA=+—H " xEETH
RMB18,542,000 (31 December 2010: RMB12,941,000) available for offset PRSI ASARIBEEESAREK
against future profits, which will expire in the following years set below. As at 18,542,000 T ( —E—ZF+_-_A=+—H:
31 December 2011, a deferred tax asset with an amount of RMB4,379,000 (31 AER#12,941,0007C) * B TH & E
December 2010: RMB2,219,000) in respect of tax losses has been recognized. Eme-MN-_ZET——F+-_A=+—H B#

HIEEEAR®4379,000t( =T —ZF
+ZA=+—8: AR¥2,219,0007T) °

Amount

RMB’000

ARETT

Until 31 December 2014 BEE-T—MF+=A=+—H 6,242
Until 31 December 2015 EE-T—HF+=-A=+—8H 5,345
Until 31 December 2016 BHE-_ZT—XRF+=-A=+—8 6,955
18,542

20. INVENTORIES

2011 2010
—g—-% —2-%%

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Raw materials and consumables R EL BB #E 120,238 83,505
Work in progress PR T 65,049 30,786
Finished goods LURY oh 134,231 64,250

319,518 178,541
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21. EZ R EMEWRRIE

2011 2010
—E——fF — ==
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(s ARET ARET T
Trade receivables 2 5 W GIE a 888,812 534,258
Less: Allowances for doubtful debts  Jg : REEEE (1,239) (1,308)
887,573 532,950
Bills receivable eI EE 59,327 137,069
Advance to suppliers BRTHER 76,618 33,848
Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable FEUIS(E R ([$2{EF ) 8,608 7,445
Deposits and prepayments e RIaRRIE 17,450 11,981
Advances to third parties BRFE=F d 6,299 10
Advances to staff HHFET 2,812 1,271
Advances to non-control BRT IR HI S AR R
interest shareholders e 1,902 —
Other receivables H b e IR IR f 678 970
1,061,267 725,544
Notes: Ktz -
(@) Trade receivables (@ E 5 EWFE

FAEEREREPROE HRERAREH
EE M EYRIR -

The Group’s trade receivables at the end of each reporting period comprise
amounts receivable from the sales of goods.

No interest is charged on the trade receivables. B I RKMFIATE R -

EENEEAMEL A NEE[YE KRG
BLEEFOHEEEN UEEEFPNERER
ENEEZEPOEERE

Before accepting any new customer, the Group gathers and assesses the credit
information of the potential customer in considering the customer’s quality and
determining the credit limits for that customer.

REE-—RETESIEPNT60HE180H
WEEER - 1N RABRTFEENETE
ZEFPME  ROPEEHEHR - A%E
BESUHEEFLHNBITER  UNBEEE
Him 60 A#E—HERE180H -

The Group generally allows a credit period ranging from 60 days to 180 days
to its trade customers. Also, for certain major customers with good credit, upon
maturity of the initial credit period, the Group accepts bank bills arranged by
these customers which has the effect of extending the credit term further for up
from 60 days to 180 days.
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BE—FT——F+_A=+—HIUFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

@) Trade receivables (Continued)

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of allowances for
doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice date as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

L}

e

21. ES R EHMEWFIE &

it -

(@

(%)

0%

SEWRE (&)

L

RB|ERR - AEERBEZEREM2INE
ZREYCGRIE (B RRERS) (RE DTN
T

2011 2010
—E——F F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT

Within 3 months —@AR 724,709 477,577
Over 3 months but within 6 months —RBA=ENREAR 154,175 54,001
Over 6 months but within 1 year NERE—F 8,689 1,372
887,573 532,950

Aging of the Group’s trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are

as follows:

7K 55 L L R (B X 53 PR PR
o -

2011 2010

—E——F TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R ARBFT

Within 3 months =EAR 12,301 574
Over 3 months but within 6 months ZEAENEAR 39,103 3,862
Over 6 months but within 1 year NMERZE—4F 6,564 966
57,968 5,402

Movements of the Group’s allowances for doubtful debts during the two years

are as follows:

FEERZMEFEORBREZBIT

2011

—E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFT
As at 1 January n—A—8 1,308 3,124
Allowances for doubtful debts REEBE 16 625
Amount written off [=E ¢ Eer (85) (1,623)
Reversal of allowances for doubtful debts B[O RER R — 818)
As at 31 December W+—A=+—8H 1,239 1,308
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21. ES R EHMEWFIE &

Notes: (Continued) Miat - ()

(@) Trade receivables (Continued) @) B REWFIE ()
Other than the above allowances for doubtful debts, the Group did not provide & Fal RERBHEIN  AARARBEERBEE
any allowance on the remaining past due receivables as, in the opinion of the EERAEANE AERBALRZESS

(b)

(c)

directors of the Company, there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable based on the historical

experience. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Furthermore, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, there has not
been a significant change in credit quality of the Group’s trade receivables
which are neither past due nor impaired and the amounts are still considered

recoverable based on the historical experience.

The Group’s trade receivables denominated in currencies other than RMB, the

functional currency of the relevant group companies, was as follows:

RN A AT R R - B SE B0t A T e
FEW IR R A - ARETERZE
KBRS R G o

SN ARBEERA - ARETEBHIT
BERENESRERENERERTEEAN
i BRBEELREMSBNRAATK
@ o

AEBEUAREE QR LR ARE S
BEHENE SBUGIAENT

2011
—E——fF -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Currency: &

usb ESM 240,217 252,587

As at 31 December 2011, trade receivables amounting to approximately
RMB104,178,000 (2010: RMB70,850,000) have been pledged to banks as the
security in respect of the Group’s bank borrowings.

Bills receivable

The aged analysis of the Group’s bills receivable presented based on the

received date as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(b)

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H AR
104,178,000t( = & — T F: AR ¥
70,850,000 7T ) B9 & 5 FE U 7/ IE B R T 1R
TEAREEBITIEENER -

FEWRIE

R|EHR - BREBEUGRAH 2R EE &
WEBRER AT -

2011

-
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARTT
Within 3 months 27,267 48,277
Over 3 months but within 6 months 32,060 88,792
59,327 137,069

Advance to suppliers

The Group’s advance to suppliers represents deposits for purchase of raw
materials.
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HE-F——#1+-A=+—AIEE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

21. ES R EMEWFIE &)

Bret - ()

(d)  Advances to third parties d) BRFE=H
As at 31 December 2011, the amount is mainly representing advances granted RZZE——F+ZA=+—H ZRBEXE
to two third parties, which are unsecured, interest-free and repayable within BERTRMEE=ZANENR AEEHR 28
one year. RAR—FNEE -

(e) Advances to non-control interest shareholders (e) B I RS IR RIR B
The amounts were unsecured, interest free and were fully settled subsequent to ZEFEEE - B RANEEESE
the date of the financial year. ERNEHEE -

® Other receivables ) H fth FE TR IE

The Group’s other receivables have been included the following allowances

for doubtful debts during the two years:

REBNZ MBS R L REUGRIER A
DA REREA -

2011 2010

= it —F-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARBFT

As at 1 January n—A—H — 223
Amount written off B H R IE = (223)
As at 31 December W+=—A=+—8H — —
The Group did not provide any allowance on the remaining other receivables AARREEFAREELEZRBFERNE -

as, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered
recoverable based on the historical experience.

22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Pledged bank deposits

BRI T 5K

BERBELRZESBDE/ATRE - &
7N SR [0 8 A PR IR R R AE (A -

22. BEFBITER

2011 2010
—_E——F

—E-TF
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR®T R

49,574 424,714

As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s pledged bank deposits carry
fixed interest rates ranging from 1.2% to 3.5% (2010: 1.2% to
2.5%) per annum.

R-EBE—F+-_A=+—H £&£HE
BEBRTTERNETEFNNENT1.2%
E35%(ZF—ZF 1 1.2%E2.5%) °
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22.

23.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS (Continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group’s pledged bank
deposits have been pledged to secure for the Group’s short-term
bank borrowings, bills payable and letter of credit as following:

22, SEHRITER @

RBERR - SEMREARKE R RRTT
fEE ENEBEREABERNAEE
BEHEFRITERAT

2011 2010
—_E——F

—ET-TF
RMB’000
ARMEF 5T

RMB’000
ARBTR

Pledged bank deposits for AT & IEN 2 HERRITIER

— Short-term bank borrowings — RHRTTEE 25,800 386,840

— Bills payable — ERNRE 7,403 20,090

— Letter of credit — & 16,371 17,784
49,574 424,714

The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of
relevant bank borrowings, bill payable and letter of credit.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits denominated in currencies
other than functional currency RMB of the relevant group
companies was as follows:

Currency: B
— USD

EEMRTERBRENSERRTE
& ENEBRRERERER -

AEBEUHEBESEEATNNEEBEAR
¥ 2N EEGHERN B B RITERA
B

2011 2010
—EBE——F

—E-TF
RMB’000
ARBFTT

RMB’000
AR®T R

1,556 879

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term
bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

As at 31 December 2011, the bank balances carry market interest
rates ranging from 0.36 % to 0.5% (2010: from 0.15% to 0.36%)
per annum.
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23. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (continued)

The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in currencies
other than functional currency of the relevant group companies

were as follows:

e

23. SRITEBREBR® )

AEBARBAESELANGEEEARK
PASNE

FHEMRITAEBREIREMT

2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT AREBTT

Currency: B
— USD — X7t 24,012 26,501
— HKD — BT 115 8
24,127 26,509

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

24. B5 RHEMBNARE

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F R AREFTT

Trade payables B S ENFIE (@) 406,318 204,386

Bills payable JERT R (b) 55,691 119,789

Receipts in advance from customers JEW 5 71 1A () 4,781 2,299

Other tax payables H A & B K 4,457 4,075
Payables for acquisition of property, UWEEYIZE - BRE & &K

plant and equipment FE R 19,990 30,589

Payrolls and staff cost payables ERTIEREIHAR 15,909 12,054

Advances from non-control eV i e AR BB R

interests shareholders (d) 5,737 —

Accrued expenses FEFH I 9,127 6,787

Other payables Hh A 300B 2,337 4,590

524,347 384,569

Annual Report 2011 « —Z——4443 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
E T —F A=+ —HILFE

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Trade payables

The Group's trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases. Payment terms with suppliers are mainly on credit within 90 days
from the time when the goods are received from suppliers.

The aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables presented based on the
invoice date as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

24. ES R EHMENFIE &)

Bt -
@ EZEMHER

AEBNESRNKRALIRZEEE I RED
REEFIA - BREEONEAEIERE
B  EEHA B HERERENE @R
90H A °

RBERR  AREREZAHZINES
FERFRIRMERER DT AT

2011
—E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Within 3 months “@ARA 380,999 191,276

Over 3 months but within 1 year “EAE—%F 23,782 12,437

Over 1 year but within 2 years —FEMF 1,528 310

Over 2 years BB E 9 363

406,318 204,386

The Group’s trade payables denominated in currencies other than functional
currency of the relevant group companies were as follows:

AEEUAREE QR EE ARE AN
BEHENE SENRRNAT

2011 2010
—B——5F =

RMB’000

Currency: g%
— USD — X

AR% T

66,695 70,413

(b) Bills payable

The aged analysis of the Group’s bills payable presented based on the issue
date as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

b)) ENRE

R|EHR - AEEZRETHAHZIOEN
RERERRONET

2011

—E——F =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBFT
Within 3 months =EAR 15,504 57,389
Over 3 months but within 6 months Z@A=NEAR 40,187 62,400
55,691 119,789

(c) Receipts in advance from customers (c) EWEFFIE

The Group’s receipts in advance from customers represent deposits for supply
of goods to customers.

(d) Advances from non-control interest shareholders

The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and were fully settled subsequent to
the date of financial period.

138 HLTechnology Group Limited ¢ S iiHE EEAR A

AEMWTARE P FREEAE S HES R
FRUCER YIRS o

d EFERESRREHOBR

ZERBETDEE - 8 RANRER I
FEEHEE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

25. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

L}

S

25 HitteMEERAE

2011 2010
—E——F -2
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Other financial assets HEthertEE
— Contingent consideration — ARE 32(a) 5,229 —
5,229 —
Other financial liabilities HEmerpaE
— Foreign currency exchange ~ — JMESG Y
contracts (@) 368 1,674
— Commodity derivative — EmITEEH
contracts (b) 1 205
— Cancellable foreign currency  — AJEEHIMNE IR ER I8 BRI A 4)
forward swaps contract (c) 5,942 —
6,311 1,879

(@ Foreign currency exchange contracts

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following foreign
exchange forward contracts with certain commercial banks in the PRC to
mitigate its foreign currency exposure:

Notional amount

Maturity

Exchange rates

As at 31 December 2011

Sell RMB15,942,000 11 January 2012 US$1 : RMB6.473

As at 31 December 2010

Sell RMB1,215,000 7 January 2011 US$1 : RMB6.800
Sell RMB1,054,000 25 March 2011 US$1 : RMB6.805
Sell RMB6,277,000 26 October 2011 US$1 : RMB6.580

Sell RMB323,888,000 7 December 2011 US$1 : RMB6.509

@ HEEXN

RBESMR AERARERETHEBER

THEBHOATINE S LI SAUREESIMNER S :

£REH BRG] Ex

R=B--%+=A=1+-H

HEARE
15,942,000 7

“T-F 1ERHARE
—A+—-8H 6.473 70

R=F-Z2F+-A=1+-H

HEARE ZT——F 1ETHARE
1,215,000 7T —A+tA 6.8007C
HEARY —T——F 1ETHARE
1,054,000t  =A=+HA 6.8057C
HEARE Z2——F 1ETHARE
6277,0000t  TAZtXA 6.5807C
HEARYE “T—F 1 ETHEARKE
323,888,000t  T-AtH 6.509 7T
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25. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (continued)

25. HihemEEREE »

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Commodity derivative contracts

The Group uses commodity derivative contracts (standard copper forward
contracts in London Metal Exchange) to manage its exposure against copper
price fluctuations. This arrangement is designated to address significant
fluctuations in the price of copper concentrate and copper related products
which move in line with the price of copper. However, this arrangement is not
considered as an effective hedge and is not accounted for under hedge
accounting according to the Group’s accounting policies.

Details of the contract value and the related terms are summarized as follows:

Wiz - ()

b)) BERITEEN

AEBEERERITEEN(RASBERSHM
RAESE B4 40) DAE 12 (R 6 B8 B i 1
WER - LR AEEBERERDTA
BE s IR R IR E M EREARE
FERR o AT BREAEENGETBR - bt
RHTGEAERE N AT REE P&
LWN

BHEERABEFFE BTN T

Commodity derivative sale contracts: EmITEHEEH
— Volume (tons) — =2 (W) 5 50
— Executed contract value (RMB’000) — BHITHENEE(ARE T 277 2,980
— Fair value of derivative financial liabilities —TESRMAaERATFEARET T
(RMB’000) 1 205
May 2012 March 2011
Contract maturity date AHEIHA —E-—FHA —F——F=H

Cancellable foreign currency forward swaps contract

During the year, the Group entered into a cancellable foreign currency
forwards swaps contract (the “Swaps Contracts”) with a bank (the “Bank”) for a
notional amount of USD10,000,000 that the Group should pay to the Bank
forward exchange of an amount receivable from the Bank in USD equivalent
to RMB64,050,000 translated at the spot rate published by Reuters on monthly
basis throughout to October 2013. The contract will be settled in net amount.

Pursuant to the Swaps Contract, both of the Group and the Bank have the
cancellation options as following:

i The Group is eligible to terminate the Swaps Contracts at the 20th day
of January, April, July and October each year from January 2012 to
September 2013 for the total loss of the entire Swaps Contracts not
more than USD15,000,000.

ii. The Bank is eligible to terminate the Swaps Contract at the 20th day of
each month of each year commencing 20 October 2012 at discretion
at nil cost.
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(0 THBEMERHEHEN

FR AEBRE-GETTZRTD R
10,000,000 3 7T 891 B & 88 7] 32 A HUSE AN
BREEBAN(TEHEN]) Bt A%E
BE A AETAZIRITE M ZRTTRKAR &
BEHRAMNANHEZRRERARR
64,050,000 TTH)SMNEFKTE - EE T —=
TABIE - ZELBLAUFEEER -

REHRHEH  AEBRZIRITHE RIS
RN

i AEEBREAZTE——F—AE=F
—=FhAPMEFH—FA WA -
tARTAE-_TERIEEHELN -
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ii. ZRTAEREB T ——F1+A=+H
FIEEENEAE - TERNEREH
BIFISEIER) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR RRME

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

26. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings, due within one year:

RITEE (—FREH)

26. SRITER

2011
—ET——F

RMB’000
AR®TR

Car .
"
xil >

2010
—EF—F

RMB’000

ARBTT

— Secured —E#R 317,316 602,903

— Unsecured — RER 336,155 60,203
653,471 663,106

The exposure of bank borrowings: RITEERR

— Fixed rates borrowings —BEEMEEE 204,698 621,619

— Variable rates borrowings — FHFREE 448,773 41,487
653,471 663,106

The Group’s bank borrowings denominated in currencies other DIBEE A TIhie S /\E%Lxﬁl\

than RMB, the functional currency of the relevant group

companies, were as follows:

BAHENAEBRITERAT

2011 2010
—g——% —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREFTT
Currency: B
usD ETT 185,293 503,455
The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to REFFTETNEERIE (IFEREL
contracted interest rates) of the Group’s bank borrowings are as FIRVHEMT -

follows:

Effective interest rates:
Fixed rates borrowings
Variable rates borrowings

BIRAE
ElIE A REE
FERREE

2011
—E—-—-F

% per annum

FERIE %

2.50%-11.60%
2.50%-8.20%

2010
—T-TF
% per annum

I %

0.32%—-6.48%
2.82%-5.59%

Annual Report 2011 « —Z——443R 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R R M

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Br—FT——Ff-A=+—HIFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
Number of shares Share capital
B8 E ;&N
US$’000
FET
Ordinary shares Rl
Authorized EE
As at 1 January 2010 (USDO0.10 each) RAZZT—FTF—H—H
(8A0.10%7T) 500,000,000 50,000
Subdivision of shares (note ii) % 1 5 48 (B 5T i) 2,000,000,000 —

As at 31 December 2010 and 2011 NZE—TEFER_TFT——F
(USD0.02 each) +=-A=+—H
(80%0.02%7T) 2,500,000,000 50,000

Number of

shares Share capital

RGEE A&

US$'000 RMB’000
TET ARBTT

Issued and fully paid EETRHE
As at 1 January 2010 R_E—ZFF—HF—H

(USDO0.10 each) (8% 0.0237T) 89,317,490 8,931 60,943
Issue of shares (note i) BT (MI5ED) 2,857,422 286 1,951
Subdivision of shares (note ii) A& 48 (B =E i) 368,699,648 — —
Issue of shares on REA BT TR TAR D

Capitalization Issue (note iii) (P FEiii) 79,125,440 1,583 10,588
Issue of shares on Listing (note iv) R ETTEE 27 7R% 15 (FisEiv) 180,000,000 3,600 23,919
As at 31 December 2010 and N-IE—TBER_T——F

2011 (USDO0.02 each) +=-—A=+—H

(8% 0.0237T) 720,000,000 14,400 97,401
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 27. BRA ()

The movements in the Company’s authorized and issued share

capital from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2011 is as follows:

On 8 June 2010, the Company issued and allotted 2,857,422
ordinary shares of USDO0.10 each, credited as fully paid, to
Stamford Management Limited for a consideration of
USD5,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB34,140,000)
to provide for additional working capital to the Company.

Subdivision of shares (the “Share Subdivision”)

On 25 October 2010, each ordinary share of USD0.10 in the
that its resultant authorized share capital was authorized and
issued share capital of the Company was subdivided into five
ordinary shares of USD0.02 each such USD50,000,000
divided into 2,500,000,000 ordinary shares of USD0.02 each
and its resultant issued share capital was approximately
USD9,218,000 divided into 460,874,560 ordinary shares of
USDO0.02 each.

Capitalization issue (the “Capitalization Issue”)

Subsequent to the Share Subdivision, an amount of
approximately USD1,583,000 standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company was capitalized and
applied to pay up in full at par a total of 79,125,440 new
shares for allotment and issue to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appeared on the register of members
of the Company on 25 October 2010.

On 16 November 2010, the Company issued 180,000,000
new shares of USD0.02 each at issue price of HKD2.8 per
share pursuant to the listing of the Company’s shares.

All of the shares issued by the Company during the year rank pari
passu with the then existing shares in all respects.

ARAE-F-FF—A-AE-F
——Ft A=t REEETREE
TR BB -

RZE——FNANB » A2a
X {&5,000,000% (8 & R 4
A R #34,140,000 7T ) 6] Stamford
Management Limited & 17 & B¢ %
2,857,422 IR FRREE0.10E T A
Ry AHENLTBR  UAEAAR
RUBINEEES ©

R A0 47 48 ([ B A 4 4 1)

R-Z—ZTF+A-+FHB AR
AREE KB EITRAF SREE
0.10E T E MR IFMA A5 TR
A{E0.02 X T AR - Bi)EFE
A% AN % 550,000,000 7T © 9 A
2,500,000,000 fi% & % H {80.02 3
THTEER MEeBTREANA
9,218,0003EJT * %3 /460,874,560
&% &A% E 0.02 E TR EEAR -

EREEBIT(EREEIT])
R F4EE - AR EERGIRER
/) #E BR 491,583,000 JT # £ &
X AERAERRER_Z—ZF
TAZTRBRINAQFRE M
BORR BB R EFEITHAE HK
79,125,440 & #R% 15 -

RZE—ZF+—A+8 &2
AIRBE A DRI, ETIAEITE
1% 2.8 7% JT % 17 180,000,000 %
EREE0.02 ETTHFTIG ©

RRABREABITOMNA RN G EE
RERNDESTAZHERSERN -
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28. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME

On 30 September 2008, an employees’ share scheme (the
“Employee Share Scheme”) was adopted by the Company. Pursuant
to the Employee Share Scheme, on 8 October 2008, Chenlin
International Joint Stock Company Limited (a company owned by
Mr. Chi) transferred a total of 6,280,000 ordinary shares of the
Company (the “Employee Shares”) to Hongxin Joint Stock Company
Limited in respect of 137 employees of the Group, including
certain directors of the Company, namely Mr. Li Jianming, Mr. Mao
Wanjun and Mr. Sui Shikai, (the “Employee Shareholders”) in
recognition of their contributions to the growth of the Group at a
consideration of RMB6.37 each, of which RMB2.37 each was paid
for by each of the Employee Shareholders with their own funds and
RMB4.00 each was paid for by Weihai Electronic and Weihai
Cable, respectively, as bonus and subsidy to Employee
Shareholders.

Hongxin Joint Stock Company Limited holds the Employee Shares
in trust for the Employee Shareholders pursuant to a trust deed
dated 28 May 2010 (the “Trust Deed”).

The Employee Share Scheme and Trust Deed imposed certain
restrictions on the Employee Shares and the details are summarized
in the paragraphs headed “Employee Shares” under section Il
“Further Information about Directors, Management and Staff” in
Appendix VI “Statutory and General Information” to the prospectus
of the Company dated 3 November 2010.
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28. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)

Details of the movements of the Employee Shares awarded and the
outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

Number of shares
outstanding balances

REEGHORMDER

28. EERMETE(»)

RBEmF  DRERAEEESNE
BT -

Notes

B &

Numbers of outstanding
share options balances

AMEBBREEREE

Directors Employees

E= ’E
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTE  ARETR

As at 1 January 2010 RZZE—ZF—H—H 594,785 5,685,215
Granted during the year FRAFRH (@) 10,113 —
Forfeited during the year F R UL (b) — (10,113)
Shares subdivision (note 27(ii) {7 7748 (H #E 27(ii)) 2,419,592 22,700,408
Capitalization issue (note 27(iii)) & AL 37T (MiFE 27(iii)) 519,301 4,871,621
As at 31 December 2010 R-E—ZTF+_-_A=1+—H 3,543,791 33,247,131
Transfer B (1,026,889) 1,026,889
As at 31 December 2011 R-ZE——F+_A=+—H 2,516,902 34,274,020
Notes: W
(@) During the year ended 31 December 2010, an employee resigned and his () BE-_Z—F+=-A=+—RH1LFE —
Employee Shares entitlement was transferred to a director of the Company. FEEER  HESRMHEBEEZETALQA
—REF -
(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2011, a director resigned from by REE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HULEFE"

directorship remains as an employee of the Group.

—HEREEERBENESDATEEES -
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28. EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEME (Continued)

The estimated fair value of the Employee Shares at the date of grant
was approximately RMB42,187,000, or approximately RMB6.72
each. The payment of RMB4.00 each (RMB25,120,000 in total)
made by Weihai Electronic and Weihai Cable as bonus and
subsidy to Employees Shareholders has been charged to “share
awards reserve” in equity during the year ended 31 December
2008.

The difference between the fair value of RMB6.72 each and
RMB2.37 each which was paid for by each of the Employee
Shareholders, amounting to approximately RMB27,303,000, would
be charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the service periods of the service
contracts for those Employees Shareholders from October 2008 to
September 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recognized
share-based payments of approximately RMB7,147,000 (2010:
RMB7,147,000) in relation to the Employee Shares.

Up to 31 December 2011, no shares were granted to nor settled by
the directors of the Company and employees of the Group under
the Employee Share Scheme.
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28. EERMETE(»)

EERGARIZLBSENGHTAFENA
AR®42,187,0007C ' sk HFRLOAAR
Be72L - BETRESERAES
RS A EFBRARE400T(BTAR
#525,120,000 7T ) fE BIEAL R A BLE R
BE-ZZTZENF+-A=1+—HLFE
BREmA [IRM R REE] Pk -

ANFESRARK6.72 THEASEER
BTN EBRARB 237 T2 EZBNA
AR®27,303,0007C * =T N\F
+AE-E—=ZFNAEZSEERE
RGBS REHEANE R LN GE SR
AUz 2= B ©

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—8L*#F
g AEBERREREB KM HE B R
NEIHFIBEAEARE 7,147,000 (=
T—TF : AR¥7,147,00070) °
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29. OPERATING LEASES 29, REHY

2011 2010
—B-—-F —ZT-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARBTT

Minimum lease payments paid under FARBEEHENENRKERS

operating leases during the year 3,596 581
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for RIREEKR - REFEBE N THERE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating BN EERBEERS ZAE - o
leases, which fall due as follows: S MBI B ROT ¢

2011 2010
—e—-5 -T-T#

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Within one year —FR 4,197 402
Over one year but within two years, —FEMF(BEEREMF)

inclusive 5,815 136

10,012 538

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group RETAN N HIEREBENNRE - &
for the Group’s plant, warehouse and office premise. Leases are ERRAERS  c MK TEHMAEEN
negotiated for lease terms ranging from one to two years at T—ZERLE o
inception.
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30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. BARKIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following REAEHIR - NEFKRESEANRAEND
outstanding capital commitments: T

2011 2010
—e——% —T-3%

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE

Capital expenditure in respect ERAWEDE  BERZED
of acquisition of property, BARX
plant and equipment:
— contracted for but not provided in the — B 2#BIRNERE BT
consolidated financial statements WMERPEAE 60,355 43,571
— authorized but not contracted for — ERBEREL 10,922 12,901
71,277 56,472
31. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 31. RKBRGE
The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a state- AREBETEEES /T EBAEENE
managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC FKENKRBHEIKE - AEEEZES
Government. The Group is required to contribute a specified EXRTENETEAD L ESM I BATHE
percentage of its basic payroll costs up to a rate determined by BEE AN R ERARBAEEIHR - K
respective local government authority to the retirement benefits SERRARBAFENETEA/RE
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with EIEHIEEHR
respect to the retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified
contributions under the scheme.
The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect of the AN S B M B F E B R AR R A8 A5 &)
retirement benefit scheme during the two years are disclosed in HRSBRERNMIE10 -

note 10.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 32. WEEMIEE A 7]
During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group made the REEZT——F+-_A=+—HItHF
following acquisitions: B BEREERATHRE :
(@ Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo (@ WIEXKEBHHS%HER(X
(the “Tianjin Rituo Acquisition”) EBRWED
Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo WHEXEH 55 % By
On 21 February 2011, Weihai Electronic, a wholly-owned RZEBE——FZA=+—H £A2Q
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a capital increase RIM2ENBAREEE TEHMA
agreement (the “Tianjin Rituo Capital Increase Agreement”) FEZAFHERERTEBIEA (5
with two independent third parties, F # (Mr. Wang Xiang) AR EARAISTE )T s
and T & Bl (Mr. Wang Weiguo) (collectively referred to as BB RXZAFEERE] B
the “Tianjin Rituo Founders”) and pursuant to which Weihai bt BEEFRAREEHRIEAR
Electronic made a capital contribution of RMB58,600,000 to ¥ 58,600,000 7T -+ i A 5= & A B8
Tianjin Rituo, and in return the Group acquired 55% of REBRHS55% - s EEEE
equity interest in Tianjin Rituo. This acquisition has been RUEEEANRE - 2B EENEE
accounted for using the acquisition method. The amount of TR/ ARK1,823,0007T © A
goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was B RZEAREERERER
RMB1,823,000. Tianjin Rituo established in the PRC which HERBERRGER AEEWEX
principally is engaged in the manufacture and sale of EHRNEERIRAERTHRELE
automotive harness products. Tianjin Rituo was acquired so DEp o

as to continue the expansion of the Group’s automotive
wiring harness operating segment.

Consideration transferred BEERE

Cash Re 58,600
Contingent consideration arrangement (note below) s ARBE L HE (T B ) (5,229)
Total Bt 53,371
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo
(the “Tianjin Rituo Acquisition”) (Continued)

Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo
(Continued)

Consideration transferred (Continued)

Note:

The Tianjin Rituo Founders provided guarantee to Weihai Electronic that the
aggregate amount of the audited net profit after tax of Tianjin Rituo for the two
years ending 31 December 2012 (the “Actual Profit”) will not be less than
RMB40,000,000 (the “Target Profit”). If the Actual Profit is less than the Target
Profit, the Tianjin Rituo Founders shall pay Weihai Electronic 34.4% of the
difference between the Actual Profit and the Target Profit, and Weihai
Electronic will have to contribute such sum back into Tianjin Rituo through
increasing the registered capital of Tianjin Rituo, while the Tianjin Rituo
Founders will proportionally contribute capital to Tianjin Rituo according to

the sum that Weihai Electronic contributed; or

On the other hand, if the Actual Profit is higher than the Target Profit, Weihai
Electronic shall pay the Tianjin Rituo Founders 28.1% of the difference
between the Target Profit and the Actual Profit, which is capped at
RMB22,500,000. Subsequently, the Tianjin Rituo Founders will have to
contribute such sum back into Tianjin Rituo through increasing the registered
capital of Tianjin Rituo while Weihai Electronic will proportionally contribute
capital to Tianjin Rituo according to the sum that the Tianjin Rituo Founders
contributed.

The fair value of the contingent consideration on the date of acquisition and 31
December 2011 are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position as financial asset at FVTPL of approximately RMB5,229,000.
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Bt -
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—T——F+ZA=+—ALMAEAFE X
RS EZERREAET eE(ZEEER])
D’ AR 40,000,000 T ([ B 2%
MDD WEERFNIOREEER - XEBH
BV EHERBEETFENER R E 5
MZEFEN34.4%  REBE TN ABBIG
mRZERHEFMEAMKEBHREIAGH
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B PR EBREE 3k
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BaF E=xmm281% a8 A ARE
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. WEEHMIB AR (&)
(@) Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo (@) WEBXRFEH#H55% Mz ([ X
(the “Tianjin Rituo Acquisition”) (Continued) ERHRWED#E)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of WEBRHEKBEERCEREME
acquisition are as follows: mr
RMB’000
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE MR 8,957
Intangible assets (note below) EREE (R XXHIsE) 23,280
Inventories FE 28,601
Trade receivables B H WA 63,741
Bank balances and cash IRITAER LIRS 65,350
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAM R RIE (81,547)
Bank borrowings RITEE (8,502)
Deferred taxation liabilities BIERIEAE (6,156)
93,724
Note: Intangible assets represent customer relationships of approximately Wit B EERRPBEHYARE
RMB12,810,000 and technology knowhow of approximately 12,810,000 7C & BB B 1T 49 A R ¥
RMB10,470,000. 10,470,000 7 ©
The receivables acquired, which principally comprised FriSEWHIETERIEE SRR
trade receivables, with a fair value of RMB63,741,000, H - HEEEEAARK63,741,000
approximated to their gross contractual amounts. There is no I HESAHEEEE WESY
contracted amount considered uncollectable. SEEWE AT ARG o
Goodwill arising on acquisition Iy B B A Yy R R
RMB’000
AREFT
Consideration transferred EERRE 53,371
Add: Non-controlling interests o SRR 42,176
Less: Recognized amount of identified net assets  J& : BB Z AT &R EEFEZ
acquired, including Weihai Electronic EHRTE  BREEEEFM
capital injection of RMB58,600,000 to RERAHTE AR 58,600,000 7T
Tianjin Rituo (93,724)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEIEE LR 1,823
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo

(the “Tianjin Rituo Acquisition”) (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition (Continued)

The 45% non-controlling interest in Tianjin Rituo recognized
at the acquisition date was measured by reference to the
proportionate share amounts of net assets of Tianjin Rituo of
RMB93,724,000 (including Weihai Electronic capital
injection of RMB58,600,000 to Tianjin Rituo) amounting to
RMB42,176,000. The fair value of net assets of Tianjin Rituo
at the acquisition date was estimated by applying an income

approach.

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo because
the acquisition included the workforce of Tianjin Rituo. This
asset could not be separately recognized from goodwill
because they are not capable of being separated from the
Group and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged,
either individually or together with any related contracts. The
goodwill is not expected to be deductible for tax purpose.

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition

32. WEEMIB AR (&)

(@

W iE K2 B #55% R ([ X
EHAEWE]D @)

WIBELHRE(E)

FUEE B BIRER M RE B 45% 3F

nHER2E R ERREEFEM
LB %8 A R ¥ 93,724,000 JTAT
EBRBEETAXERBTE
A B #58,600,0007T ) A A R I
42,176,000 7T ° &= H AU B
HHEEFEQAFEFERRAES
I

HARWBEERZRMNG N i
BENKBRZAERESL - Z&
ETHREBRAARHE  ANES
T B EREMBRRE LB
RASERHE  E3E - KER -
hA kR ZEERER AR
B o RERBELNEERAMA
AR

UWIBELH RS RAFE

RMB’000
ARHEF T

Cash and cash equivalent

sRE RIReFEBWER

balances acquired 65,350
Less: Cash contributed by Weihai Electronic SEAIRS (BsE)

(note below) (58,600)

6,750

Note: Weihai Electronic made a capital injection of RMB58,600,000 to

Tianjin Rituo which did not consider as a cash inflow nor outflow of

the Group.

Included in the revenue and profit of the Group for the year
ended 2011 are RMB138,282,000 and RMB2,759,000,

respectively attributable to Tianjin Rituo.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. WM AR (@)
(@ Acquisition of 55% equity interest in Tianjin Rituo @ WEBXEBAHS%ERS (X
(the “Tianjin Rituo Acquisition”) (Continued) FERHARWE]D &)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition (Continued) WIEEEM B LA FHE (E)

(b)

Had the acquisition of Tianjin Rituo been effected on 1
January 2011, the revenue and profit of the Group for the
year ended 2011 would have been RMB1,883,819,000 and
RMB123,648,000, respectively. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purpose only and is not necessarily an
indication of revenue and results of operations of the Group
that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2011, nor is intended to be a
projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro forma’ revenue and profit of the
Group had Tianjin Rituo been acquired on 1 January 2011,
the directors of the Company calculated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible
assets based on the recognized amounts of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets at the date of
acquisition.

Acquisition of 87 % equity interest in Huizhou Daya
Bay and the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay
(the “Huizhou Daya Bay Acquisition”)

Acquisition of 87% equity interest in Huizhou Daya Bay and
the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay

On 4 May 2011, Weihai Electronic entered into the
acquisition and capital injection agreements (the “Huizhou
Daya Bay Acquisition and Capital Injection Agreements”)
with certain independent third parties, including HHEEE (Mr.
Tian Hongzhen), & #3 ZE (Mr. Zhou Shaohua, “Zhou
Shaohua”), A A (Mr. Yuan Huoyou, “Yuan Huoyou”), £
K f (Mr. Wang Jiazhan) and E A B (Mr. Wu Yuelong)
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Huizhou Daya
Bay Vendors”) and pursuant to which, Weihai Electronic
acquired an aggregate of 87% equity interest in Huizhou
Daya Bay from the Huizhou Daya Bay Vendors for a total
consideration of approximately RMB13,300,000, which was
paid during the year ended 31 December 2011. Huizhou
Daya Bay is a company established in the PRC which is
principally engaged in the design, research and development,
manufacture and sale of communication wire and cable and
related products belonging to the wire and cable segment of
the Group. Upon the completion of the acquisition, Huizhou
Daya Bay was owned as to 87% by Weihai Electronic, 5% by
Zhou Shaohua and 8% by Yuan Huoyou, respectively. The
Huizhou Daya Bay Acquisition has been accounted for using
acquisition method.

(b)

R EH N T ——F—A
—BER AEEHE—ZT——F
HFENRARGERED R AAR
#1,883,819,000C & A R ¥
123,648,0007C ° &= & FHE
BHEH R ARERMEER —Z
——E A—B#&FR  AEERK

RS EEEETREAIEER - 75
WJ@%%E EJJ?EJK%%E °

REERRRNZRENR _-T——F
—A—AHE - AEENEE
AR R - RABEZERED
X BFE - RBLELEENRE
RHINCERSBEFEDE &
B RENTEURETEENSE

W B SN A Z2 87 % Yz
&m%mx&*&gqgm
RE2E A 1)

WHE BN A ZEE87% By #E 25 K A
B A G EE

R-ZT——FHAWNB  BBEET
METFBIE=FIVBERTE
WaE (MR EWE R EE %
&) BEMMELE - FAREL
i RANERE  TFEEERR

AEEE(TXHBIEIMN KR E
FH Bt BUBEFREMK

“*EW%W?MK&&Q%
w%m%ﬁ BREOBEARE
13,300,000 7T * E’\Eiz —=—%F
+-A=t+—HIEFEXf- %m
R EARFBIKZA—EA
Ix@%@ﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ&mmﬂ
FF WEE . RS RIHE RAIEM ©
RUIEEIERKE BN KL ES
RIRESE T5H 87%E - B
ARERBE%NERMARANE
HH 8% M - BN K& EE
B AU A AR -
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 32. WEBHIE A =)
(b) Acquisition of 87 % equity interest in Huizhou Daya (b) WEBE M KEEES7% MR
Bay and the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay Rm B M A EEE( EM
(the “Huizhou Daya Bay Acquisition”) (Continued) REEWE D) &)
Acquisition of 87% equity interest in Huizhou Daya Bay and WIEZE N A EE B 87% By 25 K 4]
the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay (Continued) BEMAEETE(E)
Consideration transferred BEEAE
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash B 13,328
Assets acquired and liabilities recognized at the date of WERHEKEBEERERERER
acquisition are as follows: ko

RMB’000
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment M - WE R&E 36,231
Intangible assets (note below) A E (T Mis) 2,620
Inventories & 20,735
Trade receivables B 5 RN RIA 72,453
Bank balances and cash IRITREBREIRE 5,295
Trade and other payables B 5 K E At T FRIE (71,040)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (53,262)
Deferred taxation liabilities EERIEAE (4,521)
8,511
Note: Intangible assets represent customer relationships with the amount of M mPAEREFPBEHARE
approximately RMB2,620,000. 2,620,0007T °
The receivables acquired, which principally comprised trade PTG FEMRSRIR = 22 05 5 55 8 K
receivables, amounts due from related parties and former B EREET RATBRRAOR - K
shareholders with a fair value of RMB72,453,000, FRE(E A AR 72,453,000 + 82
approximated to their gross contractual amounts. There is no HAtFRRE - R OS8R
contracted amount considered uncollectable. BT ATHE -
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of 87 % equity interest in Huizhou Daya
Bay and the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay
(the “Huizhou Daya Bay Acquisition”) (Continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition

32. WEEMIB AR (&)

Wy Bs =M R E2 87 % MR
REEMAREZEZEE (T EM
REEWEE ) (#)

WEELHEE

RMB’000
ARHEF T

Consideration transferred BERAE 13,328
Add: Non-controlling interests o et 1,106
Less: Recognized amount of identified W BB Z AR E EREL

net assets acquired R (8,511)
Goodwill arising on acquisition W E L RS 5,923

The 13% non-controlling interest in Huizhou Daya Bay
recognized at the acquisition date was measured by reference
to the proportionate share of amounts of net assets of
Huizhou Daya Bay of RMB8,511,000 amounting to
RMB1,106,000. The fair value of net assets of Huizhou Daya
Bay was estimated by applying an income approach.

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of Huizhou Daya Bay
because the acquisition included the workforce of Huizhou
Daya Bay. This asset could not be separately recognized from
goodwill because they are not capable of being separated
from the Group and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with any related
contracts. The goodwill is not expected to be deductible for
tax purpose.

PULEE A BRI R IN K& 13%
I H RS2 ERM AR EEEF
BREEHMREESEARE
8,511,000t 5t 2 A& A R ¥
1,106,0007T - M KR EMEE
FEAFEERBAEMET -

RN R BRI REEN S
WEBR R EEM KR EE
ZEETREERIAEHE AR
BHETEE-—RERTAEBEAD
BIYNAEE RS - B& - 58
R SRR - ZEEEYAA
% - ZFRBELNBEBRM
TR
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of 87 % equity interest in Huizhou Daya
Bay and the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay
(the “Huizhou Daya Bay Acquisition”) (Continued)

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

32. WEEMYB ARl (&)

W BB N K E2 87 % KRz
R BN A E & ([ =M
REBWEE D &)

WIBEL R 2T HFE

RMB’000
ARETTE

Consideration paid in cash NIRE X FHRE 13,328
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired & : FT{33 & RIR & SE WL (5,295)
8,033

Impact of acquisition on the result of the Group

Included in the revenue and profit of the Group for the year
ended 2011 are RMB114,588,000 and a loss of
RMB1,979,000, respectively attributable to Huizhou Daya
Bay.

Had the acquisition of Huizhou Daya Bay been effected on 1
January 2011, the revenue of the Group from continuing
operations for the year ended 2011 would have been
RMB1,922,411,000, and the profit for the period from
continuing operations would have been RMB125,003,000.

The pro forma information is for illustrative purpose only and
is not necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2011, nor is intended to be a projection of future results. In
determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group
had Huizhou Daya Bay been acquired on 1 January 2011,
the directors of the Company calculated depreciation of
property, plant and equipment and amortization of intangible
assets based on the recognized amounts of property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets at the date of
acquisition.

In August and December 2011, Weihai Electronic further
injected RMB20,000,000 and RMB43,200,000 into Huizhou
Daya Bay which have diluted the shareholding held by the
non-controlling interest. An amount of RMB679,000 was
adjusted to reflect the change in non-controlling interests as
shown in the Group’s consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The percentage of equity interest of Huizhou Daya
Bay held by the Group increased to 97.27% at the end of 31
December 2011.
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32. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

Acquisition of 87% equity interest in Huizhou Daya
Bay and the capital injection to Huizhou Daya Bay
(the “Huizhou Daya Bay Acquisition”) (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the result of the Group (Continued)

The two acquisition-related costs amounting to RMB110,000
have been excluded from the consideration transferred and
have been recognized as an expense in the current year,
within the administrative and general expenses in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

In March 2012, Wei hai Electronic acquired the 2.73% non-
control interest with the consideration amounted to RMB
1,992,000.

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)

Related parties of the Company:

The directors of the Company consider that the following
entities are related parties of the Group:

Name of related party

BEATER

Mr. Chi
Bt
Mr. Chi Zhongmin
BERRELE
Ms. Yang Fuwei
BHERL L
Ms. Yang Huahua
BEELL
Chenlin International
MBI
Chenlin International Trading Company (“Chenlin Trading”)
EAEEEZ A (RMES])
(Weihai Yushunrong Plastics Co., Ltd.?, “Weihai Yushunrong”)
BUBHIBSRER AR AR ([EEHRIES )
(Weihai Darong Compound Material Co., Ltd.*,
“Weihai Darong”)
BUBRRERMHARAT (TBEAR])

# The English names are for identification purpose only.

32. WEEHIB AR (#)

(b) UWrHB R M KE3E87% KRz
&H%'J‘NKEE;’.%?EE(F%'N‘I
REEWEE ) (#)

WA EBFRATE ()
MEKBEEBAKRAZEARE

110,000 TRETABEHRE KD
EEWLA;VT(Z\%EL& %ETTJBZ& ﬂX
ERETMFEARETE -

RZE——F=F BEETFRHE
FEFEHIERR Y 2.73% » RIBAOAA
K #1,992,000 7T °

33. BEALIRS

@ ADTHBEAEAL

ARREERR ATER
EERREAL

ERAE

Relationship with the Company
B2 B HYBAR

The director of the Company

RAARES

The brother of Mr. Chi

BFRERS

The spouse of Mr. Chi

B R AR

The director of a subsidiary

MERRES

Immediate holding company
BEEERAT]

An entity controlled by Mr. Chi
ERRAEFINER

An entity controlled by Mr. Chi Zhongmin
BEREEEFINER

An entity controlled by Mr. Chi Zhongmin

BERELEEGINER

: BEXETEERAS
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BEANERF )

(b) Significant related party transactions b)) EXBEALIRS
The Group has significant transactions with the following HE-ZE——F+-A=+—8HF

related parties during the year ended 31 December 2011: B REBETHMEBEATETE

AR5

2011 2010
—g-—F —2-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT

Purchase of raw materials from: BUTARIBERME
— Weihai Yushunrong — B BHIESE — 2,026

— 2,026

Sales of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BB MRE M

and prepaid lease payments to: ENEET
— Weihai Darong — BUBAER — 5,170
(c) Compensation of key management personnel: (0 FEEBEABNHH :

WRE-F-FF+-A=+-8
E=2——F+=A=+-AIF
¥ AAAEFRALEEEER

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other
members of key management of the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011 were as

follows: EBEMKBNEMMNT
2011 2010
—E——F —E—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET ARETIT
Salaries and other benefits TEREMBEF 3,539 2,680
Discretionary bonus By IEAT — _

Contributions to retirement IRIRTEFIET IR

benefits schemes 114 60
Share-based payments LARS 17 S (- &9 5178 816 1,275
4,469 4,015
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34. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

e

34. EBEAQXRHHEMRRKRESR

RBERR - BARRAHBEMRREKD

BERELE

2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Unlisted investments in subsidiaries B ATIELTRE 678,293 662,504

CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables E 5N E M U GRIA 22,152 9,815
Pledged bank deposits EHEARITER 16,000 384,620
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 2,042 17,415
40,194 411,850
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE

Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H M ER R 7,342 7,458
Bank borrowings RITEE 15,122 377,494
Other current liabilities HEtrEhatE 5,816 5,816
Other financial liabilities Hiregas 6,311 1,773
34,591 392,541
NET CURRENT ASSETS mENEEFH 5,603 19,309
683,896 681,813

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#E
Share capital A&z 97,401 97,401
Reserves R 586,495 584,412
683,896 681,813
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE  35. & TIK B A Bl EE1E

COMPANY
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the end of the RMEEAR - ARRIMBRAMFBW
reporting period are as follows: T

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company
as at 31 December 2011
R+=A=t-AH
ADE LG R

Place of
establishment/  Fully paid share/
Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital 2011 2010 Principal activities
B/ EHEHRE,
WEBAREM P L 3t B HEMEF —B-—F —T-TH FEXEK
O/O 0/0

Directly held by the Company
ARAIEERE

Weihai Electronic® PRC USD47,999,982 100 100 Manufacture and sales of signal
power cord assembly, wire and
cable products and connectors
and investment holding

BAET" FE 47,999,982 % 7T 100 100 BUERHEERERGME -
REEMERRAR
REER

Hongxin International Hong Kong HKD1.00 100 100 Trading of signal cable assembly,
power cord assembly, wire and
cable products and other products

BA 1.00/87C 100 100 BRERRGAN  SREAMN
REERNAMER

Honglin Technology Taiwan TWD?70,000,000 100 100  Marketing, research and
developments of signal cable
assembly, power cord
assembly, wire and cable
products and other products

B aig 70,000,000 %7 & # 100 100 HERELFEEREALT -
ERGAN  GEEMR
HitER

Wuhan Technology* PRC USD8,000,000 100 N/A Manufacture and sales of signal

cables and wire harness

HERHT H 8,000,000 % 7T 100 TNER BEREEERERER
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

35. XA T B A RNFSE =)

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company
as at 31 December 2011
Rt-A=+-AH

Name of subsidiary

WEBAREM

Indirectly held by the Company

Place of
establishment/
incorporation
BRI/ FE

FR 3L it B

Fully paid share/
registered capital
E8RMKRG,

HEMER

LG )T

Principal activities

FREK

AAFEERE

Chenhong International Hong Kong HKD0.00 100 100  Financing

BATER 0 0.00/7T 100 100 F&

Weihai Cable? PRC UsSD15,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of
signal power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors

e FE 15,000,000 3% 7T 100 100 BERBEERERGAN
BEEmRERESR

Changshu Electronic? PRC UsSD5,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of
signal cables and wire harness

EAEF 3 5,000,000 T 100 100 BUERBEEERR MR

Changshu Cable? PRC USD6,500,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of
signal power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors

EAEE 3 6,500,000 T 100 100 BUEREEERFAMN -
BEEmREESR
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 35. A A BB A R E &)
COMPANY (Continued)

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company
as at 31 December 2011
Rt-A=+-AH
RNF G R
Place of
establishment/  Fully paid share/

Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital Principal activities
B/ EBEHNRE,
WEAREH B33t B HMEEX —% T-2F IEXRH

Indirectly held by the Company (Continued)

AR aIFERF (B)
Changshu Connecting- PRC USD12,500,000 100 100  Manufacture and sales of
Technology” signal power cord assembly,

wire and cable products and
connectors

AR R i 12,500,000 T 100 100 BUERBEERERGAN
BEERREER

Dezhou Electronic? PRC UsD18,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and sales of
signal power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors

BHEF f 18,000,000 7T 100 100 SERBEEEREREAMNT
BEERRERS

Wuhan Electronic? PRC UsD1,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of
signal power cord assembly,
wire and cable products and
connectors

REMLRE T 3 1,000,000 % 7T 100 100 BERBEEEREREAMNT -
BEEmREESR

Suzhou Huachun?* PRC RMB20,000,000 51 51  Manufacture and sales of
iron panel and aluminum plate
useful for computer keyboards

#MEZ F AR 20,000,000 7 51 51 SEREETKEEMAER

KsmtR
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 35. & AT B D R E &)
COMPANY (Continued)

Attributable equity interest
held by the Company
as at 31 December 2011
Rt-A=+-AH
RNF G R E
Place of
establishment/  Fully paid share/

Name of subsidiary incorporation registered capital Principal activities
B/ R EBEHREG,
(i) PNCR=EE B34t B HREX —% T-TF IEXRH

Indirectly held by the Company (Continued)

AR AIFERE (&)
Shenzhen Communication PRC RMB6,000,000 80 80 Manufacture and sales of
Technology** router antenna, WIFI antenna

and telephone antenna

ARYBERR P A 6,000,0007C 80 80 RERBERHMBERE
BEXERERKE

Chonggqing Technology** PRC RMB10,000,000 100 100  Manufacture and sales of
signal cables and wire harness

EREMER FE AR #10,000,0007C 100 HERHEERRIER

Huizhou Communication PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Manufacture and sales of

Technology* router antenna, WIFI antenna

and telephone antenna

BINEARRHR HE AR 5,000,000 7T 100 100 BENBERAEFAR
BRRGNERRE

Tianjin Rituo* PRC RMB11,111,111 55 N/A Manufacture and sales of
motor wire antennas

RERE hE AREIL11,111 T 55 NER REREEAERSR

Huizhou Daya Bay* PRC RMB38,600,000 97.27 N/A Manufacture and sales of
communication wire and cable
and related products

BN A& TE AR 38,600,000 7C 97.27 TER SEEREEEREARER
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35. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 35. XA A B A TIWNES &)
COMPANY (Continued)

Note: With the exception of Hongxin International and Honglin Technology which HizF - Bk Hongxin International K3k EHS 2 BN E
were incorporated in Hong Kong and Taiwan, respectively with limited BRAEFMAZABRARIN  AAGH
liability, the other subsidiaries of the Company were established in the PRC in MM AR TS — R iEE RS
one of the following legal forms: Bl Avas
e Wholly foreign-owned limited liabilities enterprises e INEBERRAT
: Sino-foreign joint ventures ‘ FINEEDRE
# Domestic limited liability enterprises # BERNEREERT

# The English names are for identification purpose only. * X ETEERER -
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